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Business Model

An individual with care
requirements requires a home.

The local authority designs a care
package, identifying a care provider
and property for the individual.

The care provider is paid the [ull
amount for the care package and
pays rent to the Approved Provider,
or the Approved Provider is paid
the rent directly.

The Approved Provider pays Civitas
amounts due under the lease

What We Do

Social Housing Pioneers
CSE 15 a leading provider of care-based community

housing in the UL

CS+ bheheves that access o a decent home 15 a basic
human nght from which so much more can be achieved,
particularly for people who are living with a lhife-long
disabilizy. With mullions of people stuck on housing
waltung hists across the UK or ‘rapped 1n long stay
hospiials, CSH became “he first public company to bring
large scale equ'y investmen: N0 “he seciorn

The Company has rhe dual objecuves of achieving both
posmive financial returns and large scale measurable
soclal impact.
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Financial Highlights
as at 31 March 2023

How We Performed

Basic and

Diluted EPS: -42.0%
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Profit Before Tax
£25.5m -43.1%
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2023

e

44.8
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36.1

EPRA EPS*
4.43p -8.1%

Fonce

2023

LAV
4.82
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4.93

NAV per share*
109.16p -1.0%

NAV
£661.9m -2.0%

NAYV increase since
IPO* -9.5%

Poney I m1on Poreon
2023 2023 2023
[ 6619 |
ATA% PP B
110.30 678.5 12.6
AoVA 2071 Aty
108.30 673.5 10.6
Investment Dividends declared Total Shareholder

property?
£978.1m +1.0%

Fryoan

2023

968.8

915.6

(Ordinary shares)
5.70p +2.7%

Ponoe
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5.55
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5.40

# Alernanve Performandce Measuies Tenms are dehned in the Glussary
100 an (hdinary share held since Jaunch (peicentage nal annuahsed)
2 invesimoent properly independently valued Sec noate 15 0 of the Counsolhidated inancal Statements lor detarls o the valuation

Return®
-16.5%
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1.6
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CIVITAS SOCTAL BOUSING PEC
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Key Achievements
Operational Highlights

697 properties £835 million 4,594 tenants Dased on supoorted oy across 178 local
acaguired vested witn dependanie long 1erm 131 care authority partners
accommodation .eases signed witn providers
19 Approved
Providers

The Good Economy, the social impact advisory firm, in its semi annual independent
Social Impact Report in November 2022 on Civitas, has classified Civitas' assets

as ‘Contributes to Solutions’ according to the internationally recognised Impact
Management Project {IMP} dimensions of impact. TGE also notes that Clvitas’
funding contributes to increasing the supply of specialist housing, easing the
burden on residential or inpatient facilities.

1 wver the Wle of the Company as ar 31 Maich 2023

Levered IRR* since IPO

Past performanace 1s not 3 tehabla indicaror of uiuie pertermancs
* Alemnative Partormance Maasute Sea Appendix tior the caloulavon

Share price performance (pence)
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Our Portfolio
By UK Region as at 31 March 2023
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South West 120 15.5

Londen 26 129
West Midlands 101 113 116
Yorkshire and the Humber 96 10.83 10.7
Wales 34 no 106
North West 101 101 104
South East 65 101 9.8
East Midlands 58 36 8.3
North East 64 5.8 6.4
I East of England 32 40 39

Market Value (%)
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. - -
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697 properties

Tenancies
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Humber
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y
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North East
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Wales

London
East ol Enepland
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Our Portfolio

By Approved Provider as at 31 March 2023

Annualised Contracted Rent Roll (%)
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Market Value (%)
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Investment Adviser’s Report

a high-performing portfolio.

Portfolio
40% of residents living in Civitas properties receive over 50 hours of care per week.

High acuity portfolio

Provide homes to those who need long-term quality accommodation
Largest portfolio of $§H in England & Wales

Premmum Fitch rating retained at "A” secured and ‘A-* unsecured
Average rental growth of ¢ 5%

Sacial Impact
e 4594 high-aa

Phase two work with E.ON
Conunited work across identified properies

Targeling 25% reduacion in carbion emissions
Connnued access to government grant funding sources

Targertng munmmiam =2C A C7 hy 2

Highly Experienced Team
The asse: managemen: team set up 0 work with and assist our Approved Providers have
speclalisms from:
¢ ocal authority commissioning of specialis: supporzed housing
senior level rents and housing beneftr advisers
USING managemen: and comphance

Operty asgeT managemens

Commissioning of care

CIVITAN SOUCTAL HOUSING Pl

1 snurce The Good Bronomy Civitas Sacial Housing PLEC Annual Empac) Repon 2021 June 2021

-
o



Introduction

Civizas Invesrmen® Managemen: Limited {('CiM" 15 the Invesimen: Adwiser 1o Civitas Social Housing PL.C ("C8R"} and 18

‘he leading provider of care-based housing in the UK C7V comprises a team of 3¢ individaals with a range of experuse
1n specialist suppored housing. real estate management and complex care needs CIM has the capacity and specialist
knowledge o manage the CS= porifolio at a granular level and has caluvated sirong professional relationships across

“he sector over the last decade.

Overview of Results

n the LY prior 1o the launch of the Company, equlity

and private capiial played a very small par: in “he socal
housing secior. Over ame, U< demographics changed and
-he number of adults with long-term, complex care needs
has been steadily increasing.

This 1s reflected 1 a number of instiruanonal investors
including aspects of social housing within their
nvesimen: sirategies.

Results Highlights

e Six years of consisten: rental growth and progressive
dividend payments tha: have increased from an inimal
3.00p per share to 5.70p per ghare far “he year ended
37 March 2023

e A retained high-quahty invesimen: crediz rating from
T1irch Ratings of A secured and A- ansecured since
March 2027, which CSH was the firs: 1o secure In
thig gector

e Anacuvely managed por-ffolio of operasional real
estate with a sector-leading team of professionals
assigtung and enabhing high gualy and longevity of
homes and income.

e Profzssional suppor: ‘o enable Approved Providers to
enhance “he quahty of their delivery and demonstrate
long-—erm financial and operational independence

e Targeung investmen:s and homes which enable
“he delwvery of higher end care as this s where the
greatest need exists and where the applicabilizy of
exemp’ rents 1z clearly demonsirated.

e AN actave and continuing programme working
with =.ON 10 permanenly reduce carbon emissions
across the portfolio, leading ‘o lower energy cos:s for
residents and a more carbon neitral porifolio.

e Seciorleading parmerships with natonal and local
charites delhivering real change and contimuing to
enhance CSE's reputancn as *he mos: expenernced
investor in soclal infrastructure in the UL

e (% has a highly experienced asse: managemen:
1eam which has overseen some £25 million of physical
improvemen:s 10 the porfolio since incepnon, largely
paid for by the vendors of the properties.

Sector-Leading Social Qutcomes
ESG

Cur ESG 2olicy 18 located ar www aivitassocialhousing.com.
I: provides an overview of the Company’'s invesiment
procedures and sets out the 3oard’s commuiment ta a
CONTINUOUS IMprovemean: process in 1:s appreoach tw

FSG integraniorn.

ESG Rating Providers

.M engages with the leading =8G rating providers o
set ous “he activities that are underaken by C8- and

o ensare these are profiled and evaluated correctly.
Notabkly, acnive parncipanenin the 2022 GRES3 Pubhc
Tisclosure Assessment has resulred in C85 retaiming

an A score previously atained in 2627, whilst the peer
group average score has moved up fo 3. C3= 15 4p

10 second posiion within its Comparison Group (LK
Residennal), Meanwhile, the sk Ranng Scare for 85 by
Sugtamalyticg remains at 4.9 (Low 1sk) as was reporad
In “ebruary 2025

§202 SLNODDY ANV LAOd0d
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Investment Adviser’s Report
Continued

‘The latest independen: report by The Good Economy
on CS= was published in November 2022 and notes
C8F’s conunded progress in dehverning measurable
soclal impact. Social value analysis by The Good
Sconomy, carred outin Varch 2021, found thar, overall,
the porifoho generated £227 million of social value

per year, inclading fiscal savings 1o public budges of
£75.9 million per year.

Of parnicular note with respect o the porticho:

e 4°% of CSH's 697 propertes have been brough: into
~he specialist housing sector for the first ume

e CSE contindes regular engagement with 1's Approved
Jroviders 10 moniior the quality of 178 stock

e mprovemen: works have enhanced “he energy
efficiency of homes

e 27% of respondents to the survey of residens carried
ous by CI¥ i March 2027 reported that they were
sanizhed wnth the gqualry of ‘hewr home

e CSH Approved Provider parners have reporied 99%
stanrory compliance - considerably batier than the
wider affordable housing secror,

Environmental: Carbon Reduction/
Energy Cost Savings

CIV connnues to work with 20N {(a leading UK energy
and solunons company! under a national framework
agreemen: 1 partnership with CS= “enan:s, 1o mprove
‘he environmen:al performance of the por:foho The
'fabric firs:' approach o reducing the porfohos
carhon fooprint includes the ins*allanion of cavizy wall
ingalation, loftinsulanon, external wall ingulanon, air
soarce heas pumps and solar ?V and bacery storage 10
identufied properies within the por:folio. The insmallation
of rhese energy efficient measures, utihsing avallable
governmen: grants and other funding sources, will
opimise valae for the Company. our counterparies
and our shareholders The collaborazion with = ONas
delivering significan: envronmert-al enhancemen:s
without any COST o Our Approved Providers

The 2hase 2 rerrofis surveys will help ro refine the
implemensation programme and idennify the best
me-hod for reducing ~he -otal carbon dioxnde
emissions (and fusl cos st assocated with individual
praperies over the mediam or long serm. The overall
anerygy performance of “he porffolio, asidentifiad

on ~nvironmernsal lerformance Ceraficates O
reporis daza has improved over the last "2 months The
proporion of properiaes with 22C Raang A Cis carrently
557 and the carbon foorprninsiestimated from propery
characrens-icg! has redirced by 2% per Civiras “enancy
ifrom 2 89 onnes of SO fenancy in Farch 2022 0

26 monnes of OO fenancyt The whole social housing

sector, and indeed the whole housing secior, continues
Lo require significant pubhlc investmentif 17 18 to mee? the
current governmen: guidelines on achieving net zero
carbon emissions by 2050

Government Policy and Regulation
Reforming the Mental Health Act

Current menzal health legislation results in many people
with men:al health 1ssues or learning digabiy needs being
detamed in large msuunions thas are often inapproprnate
for the indrniduals. 215 estimated by NES Digral that there
was a rise in annual mental health deentions from 45864 in
20.6/2077 o aver 83239 m 2020/202°

Once people are seciioned 110 an insuunon 1 hecomes
very difficulr and costly 1o move them into a suppored
living community seing.

As a resalt of these concerng, the Governmen: commissioned
an independen: body chaired by 2rofessor Sir Simon
Wessley 1n 2077 Currenily in draf: form in -he Zouses

of 2arhamens, the Yenial 2ealth Reform Act seeks to

raise :he threshold for detaining people with a learming
disabihry and/or autism unless they have a coexising
peychiainc disorder.

We helieve tha: ‘hus Act will drive even more demand for
comrmuruty housing and care set'ings which are already in
shor: supply, furher secunng the value and impor:ance of
“he C5~ porfolio

The CS5= porfolio wall further benefis frorm “he following
broader marke: dynamics.

Social Housing Regulation Bill 2023

The overall regulanon of social housing 1s under review
with the main objective of delivenng rransformanonal
change for sooal housing residenss and fulhlling the
Governmens 20.9 manifesto pledge 10 "empower residen:s.
provide greater redrese, beter ragulanion and improve the
quahzy of social housing”

The implication of “hus rewnews for C5='s porfolio 1s
expected to be posive as 1m aims o bong landlords closer
w0 therr tenants and more facused on addressing -heir
nesds rackly Oar Approved Providars are very close o
“heir residents nesds and vwork 1n parnership vath care
providers wo ensure good gqualiy service ourcomes, all
suppored by the granalar azzer managemen: provided by

C avery day




Investment Adviser’s Report
Continued

Supported Housing (Regulatory Oversight) Bill

This bill, which 1= under review, seeks 10 improve

‘he regulation and outcomes of supporied exempt
accommodation. This foliows reported cases, paricularly
of temporary housing, thar shiould not gqualify as

exemp: accommodation.

Financial Review

As at 37 March 2023 the Net Agse: Value of the Company was
£651.9 milhion, being 10916 pence per share, a 1.03% decrease
on the 110.30 pence per share at 3° March 2072, A nex

fair value gam on investmen: properties of £2.6 million

(2022 £12.5 milhon} was recorded 1n the year.

Operational cash flows mcreased moderazely <o

£39.5 million 2022 £39.2 miulion). Ongoing rental collections
hroughout he year suppor.ed the Company's healthy
operaung cash flows desplie furher increases ©o the cos: of
debt as all facilities were put onto a fixed basis.

Rental Growth and Dividend

The por:folio generated rental income {excluding
any insurance and service charge rechargeables)
of £53.2 mulion. represen:ng c.5% increase over the
corresponding penod last year

The contracted ren: roll now increases through indexanon
only as no new equty has been raised and ‘herefore no
new Investmenss have been made in the penod.

ounng the year. the Company declared and paid four
dradend distnbutions meluding one dividend of 7.3875p
and three instalmern:s of 142500

Debt Fixing and Reducing Risk

C. M arranged the following deb: facilimes which fixes deb:
on “he portfoho at an average rate of 3.92% anul Augus: 2024
asis prudent in the current INieres: rate environmens.

Remaining

Term at Loan
31 Mar 23 Principal
Lendeors __ _Faclity {years)  EQ00 All i rate
Scotish Widows Fixed 4.59 52500 2.89¥%
Desscne Bank Fixed 485 76875 iacleka
A, London
Branch
HSBC Fixed oy 2.67 100,000 4 50%
[nterest
rate cap
Pa:West Fixed oy 138 60.660 2607
Intercst
rate swap
MECG Fixed 491 84.550 314%
3.67 367,925 3.92%

We have recelved terms from lenders to refinance the
NatWes: facility which 1s due to expire in Augras: 2024,

Governance

CIM conunues o engage acively with the Company's
Approved Provider parners and care providers, offenng
adwvice and shared learming.

The 3eard, compnsed of ive independent non-exacunve
Directors, carrles odt an annual 3oard performance
evaluanon exercise and hosts penodic strategy sessions
In addimon 1o regualar planned 3oard meetings.

Summary

CIM contitrdes ta closely and proacively asse’ manage
‘he largest por:fohio of specialist care-based housing in
‘he LXK

There is demonsirable demand 1n excess of supply
and sigmfican: further legislation that 15 hikely o
contnue o mncrease demand for the properues in the
Company's porifolio.

We connnie o underiake our work with a view o zoth
enhancing the value of *he poriffoho and protecting the
interest of our underlying tenants.

Civitas Investment Management Limited

invesimen: Adviser

28 June 2023
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Asset Management Initiatives

The Asset Management Team undersiand the value of a good home. With nearly 100 years' expenence besween them
working in the housing field, there 1s a 1ot of knowledge we can share.

As part of our active asset managemens: of the G55 porifolio. we work with and support our pariners tackhng 1ssues and
finding solanons to help sustain the ‘enancies of the most vulnerable people living 1n our homes

A recent example of this was with Cale Sireer and Fampden Road. These properies are managed by Trinty Housmng
Association and are popular properies with long standing residens:s. =owever, Trinity had siruggled o mee: 1's housing
benef: potenual. Officers from the :eam worked closely with Trinity and supporied them o put the informanion and
evidence togerher for :nibunal Trinisy won the tnbunal and the mater was resolved with a full backdate and rent
agreed 'T'his was a grea: resul: for the teamn and for the tenanss at *he schemes.

Case Study

York Mews, Clacton-on-Sea

A detached wo siorey block of seven self-contamned flats
constracted around -he "950s. Some exrernal works were
identified as bewing required and a review was underaken Jar’
at'he assel Assessmen: reporss obraimed suggested a2
chat replacing the heaters withun the flats and other —-
rrunor works would improve the energy efficlency and., Tlat 4

1t most cases, improve the =2C ratings aT the same me
We therefore tendered a programme of works over mwo
phases - the firs: phase jus® before the previous Winzer Tlats
period 0 replace the exizung heaters with high hea:
rezen’ion storage heaters - the second phase during the
following Spring/summer pernod was “o undertake “he Slar 7
axtarnal works o remove the exisang render. replace and
decorate ;o improve the extertor of the buitding

Before After

“lat 4

Talb
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Sustainability

The business model of the Company 1s to provide long-
term suitable homes for indmwduals with care needs;
acting in a sustanable manner is key 1o achieving

-his aim. Properties that are owned by the Company
are -ailored o mee e furure needs of the zenants
and, where regultred. are actively asse: managed

o provide long-rerm funcuonahty and value to the
wider community.

Environment

During the iInvesimen: due digence phase, the Company
looks ciosely at the environmental impact of each
poiential acquisition, and encourages a sustainable
approach for mamTenance and upgrading properties.
Through cellaboraiung with specialist developers and
vendors, the high standards the Company expects from
each mves:men: N the care-hased housing sector 1s
adopied by other companies in the sector.

Onece within the portfolio, the propertes of the Company
are actively managed, and the ‘nvesimen: Adviger
assesses whether there are opportunities o mmprove the
environmen:al efficiency of the properaes, in addinon o
o her asse: management mninatives. The Company has an
enviranmens: Social and Governance ?olhicy which can be
found on the Company's websire This goes into further
deratl abour the Company's 525G approach and how 1:
mtegrates with Investmen: sirazeqgy -Urther details on the
Company's 55G approach can also be found on pagss 3/
0 46,

The 3oard has considered the requirements o dizclose
‘he annual gquantty of emissions; further dezaill on this s
included in the Repor of the Directors on page %2,

Diversity

The Company does no: have any employees or office
space and. as such, the Company does not operate a
diversity pohey with regards 1o any adminisiranive and
managemen- funclons.

Whils® recognmising the imporiance of diversiry in the
boardroom. the Company does no: consider 12 o he

11 the ineres: of the Group and 1zs shareholders -0 se:
praescrniprive divaersity critenia or targets. The 3oard has
adopred a diversiy pohcy in respec: of appoinimen:s
~o ke made o 'he 3oard and will conlinue :o montor
diversity taking such sieps as 17 considers appropriae
TO Main-am 15 pOsStion as a merrocraiic and diverse
brusiness. The 3eard’s objecnve 15 10 maimiain effeciive
decision making. including “he impact of succession
plannmng All 3oard appoinimen:s will be made on mern:
and have regard o diversity regarding faciors such as
gender, echnmiairy. skills, background and experience
Thiz immclades Director appointments o the Audls and
anagemens: sngagemen: Commizes and Nomination
and Remuneranien Commites See Corporate Governancs
S-atement on page 55,

The 3ocard comprises three male and two

female non-executive Jirectors. Throughout the year,
the Company complied with the Hampron-Alexander
Review's jarget of a minimum 33% representation of
women on S1'85 35C boards.

The 3oard 15 aware of the recommendauons of the
Parker Review, which will be taken into consideranion as
part of the Board's succession planning. See Corporaze
Governance 3:atemen: oh page 56.

The Board of Direciors of the Company's subsidiarnes,
which are non-operational, each comprise one female
and up to four male Jireciors

Human Rights

Grven the Company's turnover for the year under review,
11 now falls wrthin the scope of the Modern Slavery

Act 2C15. The Company published its modern slavery
statement on 22 September 2021

The 3oard 13 sansfied that 1o the best of 11g knowledge,
“he Company's principal advisers. which are liszed 1n
‘he Company ‘nformazion section, comply with the
provigions of the L Modermn Slavery Act 2015,

The Company's business 1s solely in the UX and sherefore
1s considered o be low sk with regards ro human
righis abuses.

Community and Employees

The Company's properies enable the provision of care
to some of the mos: vulnerable people in the community,
ensurning safe and secure accommodanon, ratored o
mee: individual care needs. The Company has increased
che provision of care-based housing, brimging new
supply 10 the secior and providing homaes 0 over 4,500
people. All of the Company's properiies enalle the
rrovigion of high levels of care, generatung local jobs and
helping o suppor: local economies

The Company has no employees and accordingly no
TequuIremen: ‘o separately repor: on this area.

The nves:men: Adviser 1s an equal opporiuniies
employver who respects and seeks 1o empower each
individual and the diverse culiares, perspecnves. skills
and experiences within 12s workforce.



Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Overview

The Direciors overarching duty 1510 act in good farth and
n a way that s mos: likely 10 promote the success of the
Company as se® out in section 177 of the Companies Act
2006, n doing so, Directors mus: take into consideration
the interests of the vanous stakehelders of the Company.
the impact the Company has on he communty and the
environmens, take a long-term view on consequences

of the decisions they make, as well as airn 10 mamniain a
reputanon for high standards of business conduc: and
fair treatment between the members of the Company.

Culfling this dusy naturally supports the Company

in achieving itsinvesiment objecuve and helps to
ensure that alt decisions are made 1n a responsible and
sustainable way. ‘n accordance with the requurements
of the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations
2018, the Company explains how he Jirectors have
discharged their dunies under section 172 below.

To ensure that the Directors are aware of, and
understand, their duties, they are provided with the
perinent imformanon when they first join the Board

as well as recewving regular and ongoing updates and
‘raining on the relevan: mat:ers. .-nduction and access
o traiming 1s provided for new Directors. They also
have connnued access 1o the advice and services of
+he Company Secretary and. when deemed necessary.
she Directors can seek independent professional advice
at *he Company’s expense. The Schedule of Maters
Reserved for the Board, as well as the Terms of Reference
of i's committees, are reviewed regularly and further
descnbe Directors respongtknlizies and chhgations and
include any graunitory and requlatory dutes. The Audit
and Management sngagemen: Cammittee has the
responsibilizy for the ongoing review of the Company's
negk managemens: sysiems and internal controls and,

‘o the exient that they are appheable, nsgks relazed to
-he matters set cutin section (72 are included in the
Company's nisk register and are subjec: 1o periodic and
regualar reviews and monronng.

Long-term Success

The strategy of the Company can be found on pages

26 to 29. Any deviation from, or amendmen: 1o, that
strateqgy 18 subject 10 3card and, if necessary, shareholder
approval. The Company's business model. which can be
found cn page 26, provides that the Board considers the
long-term consequences of 175 Invesiment decisions.

The Company grants long-term leases, generally 20 years
in length, 10 its tenants. The Company seeks to maintain
lasung relationships with 1ts :enants and suppor:s 1s
tenan:s In adaping properues (o meet their needs,
particularty improving and enhancing properties. (arther
detalls can be found on pages 37 10 16,

Stakeholders

A company's stakeholders are normally considered to
comprnse its sharehoelders, 1ts emnployees, 118 cusiomers
and 125 suppliers as well as the wider community in
which the company operates and 1mpac:s. The Company
15 differen: in that as an investmens: trust 1t has no
employees and, 1n terms of suppliers, the Company
receives professional services from a number of differen:
providers, principal among *hem being the investment
Adwviser.

Through regular engagemen: with 1:s stakeholders,

the 3oard aims to gan a rounded and balanced
unders:anding of the impact of 115 decisions. Feedback
from stakeholders 1z gathered by the nvestmen: Adwviser
in the first instance and communicated o0 the 3oard n its
regular guarterly mee:ings and otherwise as required.

The imporance of stakeholders is taken ino accoun:

a: every Board meezing, with discussions involving
careful considerauon of the longer-term consequences
of any decisions and therr impheations for stakeholders.
The following secrion explains why these stakeholders
are considered of impor:ance to the Company and the
actions taken o ensure that their interests are taken in-o
accoun: by the Board as par: of 1ts decision making.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Qur stakenolders Key areas of thtetest
Shareholders e Current and
Continued future financial
shareholder performance on

suppor: and
engagemen: are
critical so the

L ]
existence of the
business and the

L ]
dehvery of the
long-ierm sirategy
of :he business. .

-

*

both a NAV and
share price basis

Strategy and
business model

Corporate
governance

ESG performance
and sustaimnability

Chma:e Change
Dividend

How we engage

The Board welcomes sharehoiders’ views and p'aces grea. importance

on comm.nication with the sharchaoiders of the Company. The Board s
responsible for the content of comm.nicaion regarding corporaie iss.es
and for communicating iits views 1o sharenolders. The Board aims ‘o ensure
:hat shareho.ders are provided with sufficient information o understand
‘he risk/reward balance to which they are exposed by tne holding of

shares in tne Company. Aciive engagemen: with shareholders is carried out
taroughout the year and regu.ar commanication is undertaxen 1o ensure ihat
they understand tne performance of the business. The Board is commitled
1o maintaining open channe's of communication and 1o engaging wiih
sharehoiders in a manner which they find most meaningfd. in order 1o gain
an wnderstanding of the views of shareholders. These channeis inciude:

Annual General Meeting - The Company weicomes and encourages
atendance. voing and par:icieation from shareho.ders ar 7ne AGM. at waich
sharehoiders have the oppor.dnity ;o mee: the Direclors and Investmeant
Adviscr and 1o address q.aesiions (o them dircely The Invesiment Adwviser
allends the AGM and provides a presentazion on e Gro.p's performance and
its future ounoox. The Company va'ues any feedoacs and guestions it may
receive from shareno.ders anead of and during the AGM and taxkes acion.

as appropriate. The Board was pleased 0 notc :ha: a.l resolutions proposed a:
he Company’s AGM on 15 Sepemper 2022 were anproved by snareno.gders.
Publications Thc Ann.al Report and Haif-Year Resulis are made avaian.e

on the Company's wepsile, Tnese repors orovide shareholders with a ciear
snderstanding of :ne Group’s porifo o and financia. position I addition o ine
Ann.a. and Half-Year Repors regularly updazed informaton is avalakble on

‘ne Company website. inc.uding quarterly facisnee:s. key policies. the inves:or
relanons poacy and detals ol the invesimen: proper:y oorfoiio Feaedopack and/
or gues:ons tnc Company recelves from e sharenolders help the Company
evove IS reporing airing o render 1ne reports and wpdates transparent and
unders:andab.e.

Shareholder meetings - Shareho.ders are ab.e 10 meet wiln ine Invesiment
Adviser and ne Company’s Joint Brokers througnour the vear and the Inves:men:
Adviser provides informaon on (he Company on :n¢ Company's weoskie,
Feedbac< from a.. snareholder mee:ings wit the Investimen: Adviser and/or tne
Join: Brokers. and shareno.ders’ views. are shared wiin ;ne Board on a reg..ar
asis. Tne Chairman and otner memoers of ine Board, incl.ding tne Senior
Independen! Direcior and Chair of :ne Audi: and Managemren: Engagemen:

@, are aval.ao.c (o mee: wiin snareno.ders 'o wndersiand “heir views on
governance and ne Comnany's performance where ey wish 1o do so

Comrmi:




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Cur stakeholders

Sﬁaféholder;

Continued
shareholder
support and
engagement are
crizical to the
extstenice of the
business and the
delivery of the
long-term srategy
of the business,

Key areas of intetest

How we engdge

Current and
future financial
performance on
both a NAV and
share price basis

Strategy and
business model

Corporate
governance

ESG performance
and sustainability

Climate Change
Dividend

Shareholder concems — The Beard gives due ¢onsideratoen to matters

raised by shareholders ‘n the event shareholders wish to raise igsues or
concerns with the Board or the Investment Adviser. they are welcome 1o
write 10 the Company at the registered office address set out on page 31

in hine with increasing sharehclder focus on Environrmmerital, Social and
Governance (‘'E3G) matters, the Board reques:s reguilar updates from the
Investmen: Adviser. The Board retains overall responsibility for ESG 1ssues
and the Company's operational performance. ‘mplementazion of ESG
matters are undertaken by the Invesiment Adviser on behalf of the Board.

rurthermore, ESG reporting has been disclosed on pages 37 10 46 in the
Annual Report and the 3oard is open to discussion with shareholders on
this topic 1f requested.

Investor retations updates — The Board regularly monitors the
shareholder profile of the Company. With the majority of shareholders
being a combmation of institutional investors and private client brokers,
the Board receives regular updates on investors' views and atutudes
from the Company’s Brokers and the Invesimen: Adwiser. The results of
~hese meenngs are reported 0 the Board asg par: of the formal reporung
undertaken by both the Investment Adviser and 3rokers.

‘neluded in the Report of the Directors on page 51 are detalls of
substantial shareholdings in the Company.

On a regualar basis (sometimes weekly) and a' Board meetngs, the
Directors receive updates from the Company's Brokers on the share
trading acuvily, share price performance and any shareholders’ feedback.
as well ag an update from the Company's Investor Relations adviser,
Buchanan, and the Investment Adviser on any publicauons or comments
by the press. To gain a deeper understanding of the views of 118
shareholders and potential investors, the [nvestmen: Adviser mainzains
regular contact with them and also undertakes investor roadshows.

Any relevan: feedback 1s taken inzo account when Directors discuss any
possible fundraising or the future dividend policy.

Following the year end. the 3voard recommended an offer to shareholders
of 80 pence for each share held 1in the Company from Wellness Unity
Limited {(a wholly owned subsidiary of CK Asset =Zoldings _imited). Durning
-he Takeover Offer process, the Board engaged with sharehclders and
recerved their views on the Takeover Offer. which 1t took into account
dunng its digcussions. “urther information on the 3oard’s decision in
relation 10 the Takeover Offer can be found on pages 25 and 52.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Gur stakeholders

Key areas of interest

Investment .
Adviser

Holding the
Company's shares
offers investors
an imvestmens:
vehicle through
which they can
obain exposure
to the Companvy's
por:folio of
properues. The
'nvestmen:
Advisers
performance .
1S critical for

the Company

t0 successfully
deliver izs
wvesimen:

srateqgy and

meert 1ts objective

1o provide
shareholders

with an atiractive
level of iIncome.
tagether with

the potenual for
captal grow:h.

Other service .
providers

in order 1o

funcion as a R&T o
with a premium
hsting on -he
London Stock
mxchange, the
Company relies on

a diverse range of

repusakle advisers ®
for suppor:
N meenng
all relevan:
obhganons

L ]

Current and
future financial
performance

Shared
commaercial
objectives with
the Company

Operational
excellence

Long-term
developmen: of
its business and
resources

=SG performance
and sustamability

Current and
future financ:al
performance

Shared
commercial
objecives with
he Company
Operanional
excellence
_ong-term
developmen:
of the service
providers
Busimesses

Sugramability

How we engage

The asse: management of the Company’s por:folio 1z delegated 1o

the ‘nvesimen: Adwviser, which manages the assets in accordance

with the Company's objectives and policies. At each 3o0ard meeting,
reprasentatves from the Invesimen: Adviser are in attendance 1o present
reports to the Directors covering the Company's curren: and future
acuavities, porfolio of asseis and 1ts iInvestmen: performance over the
preceding pericd.

Maintaining a close and construcuve working relazionship with the
‘nvestment Adviser 1s crucial as the 3oard and the Inves:men: Adwviser
both aim to continue o achieve cons:sten: long-ierm rewrns in line
with the Company's investment obijeciive. Important components of the
culure of both the Company and the Invesiment Adwviser are:

operating n a fully supporuve, co-operatve and ogen environmen:
and maintaining engoing commuanication with the Board between
formal meeungs;

e encouraging open discussion with the nvestmen: Adviser, allowing
nme and space for onginal and innovasive thinking;

s recognising thar the interests of stakeholders and the ‘nvesrment
Adwviser are for the mosr part well aligned, adop:ing a tone of
consiructive challenge;

e drawing on 3card members indwvidual expenence and knowledge o
suppor: the Invesimen: Adviser In 1ts monuonng of and engagemen:
with other stakeholders; and

e  willingness 10 rnake the 3oard members expenence avallable 0
suppoer: “he Investmen: Adviser in the sound long-rerm developmen:
of 115 business and resources. recogmising ~hat the long-:erm healih
of the ‘nvesimen: Adviser 1s 1n the interes:s of shareholders in the
Company.

The Company’'s main funcuons are delegared "0 a number of service

providers. including the Administrator, the Company Secretary, the ATV,

the Reqgistrar, the Corporarte 3rokers and the Deposiiary, each engaged
under separate contracs. The 3oard mamntaing regular conzac: with 1is
key external providers and receives regular reporung from them. both
hrough the 3oard and Commiiiee meeangs, as well as outside of the
regutar meenng cycle Their advice. as well as their needs and views,
are rouuneiy raken 1nto account. Through 17s Audiz and Managemen:
~ngagemen: Commiiee, the 3oard formally assesses their performance,
fees and connmuing appoinrmens: at leas: annually o engure tha: the
key service providers conunue to funcuion at an acceptable level and
are appropria:ely remunerazed o deliver the expecied level of service

The Audit and ¥anagemen: sngagemen: Commiiee also reviews and

evaldazes the control environmen: in place at each key service provider.




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Our stakeholders

Key areas ob interest

How we engage

Care providers

Tenants

Current

and future
performance
Welfare of
tenan:s

_ease obligatons

Vond
managerment

Greater
independence
Mainzaining high
level of care
mproved
personal
ouiComes

At the outset, itis important to nete that the Company does not have
any legal or operational responsibility for the delivery of care in the
properties within the portfoho. Hewever, the Board and the Investment
Adwviser have taken the view that they wish to have a detailed
understanding of the delhivery of care and the interaction with the major
care providers who dehver thus care. Accordingly, the investment Adviser
maintains an actve dialogue with many of the care providers to build
constructive and mnformed relationships.

At the same time, as part of transaction due diligence at the ume of
acquisition of properties, the Investment Adviser undertakes due
diligence with respect -o the operational and financial performance of
all care providers who are proposed o dehver care into the particular
properties. This includes the financial standing of the care prowider, 1ts
CQC ratung and :he nature of the SLA agreemen: covenng volds between
the care provider and the Approved Provider

The Investmen: Adviser 1s noted as having demonstrated considerabie
experise and understanding of the care taking place within 1ts
propersies.

The Company's properzies are adapted for the use of individuals with
long-term care needs within & community seming with the specific
aim of achieving beter personal cutcomes and independence for the
individuals.

The sector in which the Company operates 1§ regarded as having
achieved significan: success tn delivering these positive outcomes
compared to long-term older style remote insututional care.

On a reqular basis, members of the Investment Adwviser visit properties
accompanied by Approved Provider and care provider pariners to see
first hand “he nature of the housing and care provision that 1s being
delivered. Whils: this process has slowed as a result of the pandemic,
the ‘nvestment Adwviser has conunued o engage with its tenants. This
18 supported by the regular Approved Provider seminars at which the
wellbeing of tenants ig discussed 1n detail.

In addition. the Company under:akes residen: case studies and surveys
rhrough careful and considered interaction via the care provider o
assess the positive impact our propertes and associated specialised care
have had on the individual and their wellbeing.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

How we engage

L]
Continued
Qur stakeholders Key emas ot lmt;les[
Approved e Current
Providers and fuuire
performance
e Sustainabilizy
» Comphance
and property
managemen:
+  Welfare of
tenants
e Lease chligations
REgu_l-atot C;I . ?mém(:lai and
Social Housing operational
(RSH) sabilicy
s Governance
s Compliance with
heal:h and safery,
and regulazory
standards
e 3Saferyand

wellbeing of
underlying
tenan:s

The Company's Approved ?rovider pariners are an imporant part of the
investment madel as the responsibility for collecnion of housing benefic
and subsequen: payment of rent, the maintenance of the properues
under the full repainng and insuring leases and, mos: wmportantly, the
safeqguarding of the underlying tenants through the above means, lies
with the Approved Providers.

The nvestment Adwiser works closely with the Company’s Approved
Provider partners to improve standards and governance and 10 introduce
practices and procedures :ha: make the Company's Investment processes
aver more robus.

The investment Adwiser has a regular open dialogue with the Approved
Provider parmers. haising mon:hly on comphiance, health and safery,
mamnzenance and furure-proofing schemes, as well as hosung quarerly
serminars to discuss curren themes/trends affecung the sector and to
sroubleshoot. This serves as an opportuni:y 1o build relationships and
share bes: praciice.

The ‘nvestment Adwviser 1s supported by the establishment of The Social
FHousing Family CIC, a no-for-profit comrmunity inferest company
operaed independently of the Company whose stated aim 1s to enable
Approved Providers holding the Company's leases 1o increase skills and
expertence and to provide funding to promoie enhanced performance.
Membership is open to any Approved Provider that holds Crvitas leases
and the effec: of membership 1s 1o ransfer ownership of the Approved
lrovider o the social housing family Auckland Homes Solutions was the
first Approved Provider o join and has now recruited a very experienced
and semor execunve eam and board of management. Qual:as
communy benefir society has also joined the C.C.

'The Cornparny 18 ﬁot 1:561} regulated by The B35, b'u:. Y isampoTiant o
maintain open and regular dialogue 10 ensure tha: the Company and the |
RS+ are working together o improve the secior.

The ‘nvesimen: Adviser has a regualar and ongong daloguae with “he 28=
and wtth the Approved Provider parners regulazed by the RS=.

The Company also publishes responses o the regualatory judgements of
“he 38+ regarding he Approved roviders working with “he Company as
par: of the 25="s general review of Approved “roviders engaged 1n the
provision of property services for vulnerable people as announced

in Vay 208, This demonstraces the Company's desire ¢ main:ain a
dialogae with the 28~ and g desire 1o see thart the postions improve \
where needead. |
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Continued

QOur stakeholders

Key arcas of interest

Other regulatory
authorities

The Company can
only operate with
the approval of
ity 1eyulalurs wlio
have a legitimate
nterest in how
‘he Company
operates 1n the
marke: and treats
its shareholders.

Local authorities

Lenders
Availability of
funding and
hiquidity are
cructal to the
Company's ability
to take advantage
of investmen:
opportunitias as
They anse.

e« Comphance
with statuatory
and regulatory
requirements

e Governarce
based on best

practice gindance

e Better reporang
ro shareholders
and other
stakeholders

How we engage
The Company regularly considers how 1t meets vartous regulatory and
statutory obligations and follows voluntary and best practuce guidance,
and how any governance decisions it makes can have an impact on

1:s shareholders and wider stakeholders, both in the shorter and 1in the
longer-term.

The Board receives quarterlty regulatory comphance monitonng updates
from the Investment Adwiser.

The Board receives quarterly comphance updates from the AITM regarding
the Company's compliance with its invesiment policy and the Invesiment
Adwvigser's comphance with the investmen: Managemen: Agreement.

‘The Board also has access 10 the advice of the Company Secretary who
provides updates and advice on regulatory. statutory and governance

matters for considerazion by the Board ar its quarterly meetings and as
and when required.

e Provision of
safe and secure
properues of a
high qualbty

+ Sustainabilizy
for long-term
placements

& Current and
fuure financial
performarnce of
the business

¢ Cpenness and
trangparency

e Jroacive
approach o
COMMUNLCaion

e Operational
excellence

It 15 important for the Company to build and maintain relanonships with
local authonues as they have an important role 1n idenufying areas

of high demand, agreeing rents and referrals 1o the Company's asse:
management Inianves.

The Company will engage with the local authority commissioner either
direc:ly, or through speciahist consultants, Approved 2rovider and care

provider pariners as par: of the Company's due diligence o ensure that
each properwy being acquired has been commissioned by the relevant

local authonty and that rent levels have been discussed and agreed.

The Company has arranged deb: faciliues from a wide range of lenders
and engages with these on a regular basis through regular meetings and
presentanions o ensure they are informed on all relevant areas of the
business. The conunual dialogue helps to suppor: the credr relatonships.

The Company has reaffirmed 1ts ‘nvestiment Grade High Crediz Quahty
Raung from Fizch Ratings Limized of "A" (semior secured) and a Long-Term
DR (ssuer Default Ratung) of "A-"with a Stable Outlook.

This will enable the Company 1o pursue 11s siraiegy in relaton to debt
funding, 1in addition o conunuing 0 work with the Company's existing
lenders, with whom the Company has built strong relazionships.

During the year, the Board considered and closed a five year term deb:
faciliry with Deutsche 3ank AG. Further informanon can be found on
page 25
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Qur stakehoiders

Key areas of interest

Communities
The Company's
assets rely on a
srong, positive
connection

with the local
commuiinities in
which itg business
operases

Charity partners

Acceprance

of care in the
community
Avallalhy of
local facihhies for
tenants

2ehvering
needed suppaort
o vulnerable
adults
‘mproved
wellbeing of
vilnerable adulis

FSG performance
and sustainabihty

How we engage

A key componen: of the Company's portfelio 1s that the properties within
It are se: within community environmen:s so that individuals are able as
par: of thelr care plan to interac: with the local communlity rather than
keingisolated,

This 18 achleved 1n consultanon with local authorities in determining
tha+ *he 1minal settings are approprately diversified within the respective
community and are not clustered 1in a way that would lead 0 1solation.

This assists the individuals and also ensures appropriate integrailon
within the community. On a day-to-day basis, care providers and
Approved Providers operate policies to ensure posinve relationships
with neighbours and surrounding dwelhngs. The activiues within the
Company's properies crease employment within the local community for
both housing and care workers.

The Company suppor:s a number of organisations whose objectives
are to provide improved oupicomes for vulnerable adults affected by
homelessness and other care needs.

The Company commiig arge:ed financial suppor: to fund specific
programmes which help those affected by homelessness by teaching
chem skills and offering support o preven: them from being in tha-
position again.

The Company engures regiular calls and meetings with our charity
parners 10 update cn progress and projects being undertaken, as well as
arending events in suppor of their work




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Principal Decisions

Jrincipal decisions have been defined as those tha: have
a matenal impac: 1o the Group and izs key siakeholders.

in taking these decisions, the hirectors considered their
dutes under section 72 of the Act Principal decisions
made dunng ~he year were as follows.

New Regulatory Clause Initiative

In 2022, she Board considered and agreed a new
approach o the Company’s lease maodel with the goal
of supporing addinonal regulatory compliance and
addressing percepuons of risk. The new regulatory
clause enables Approved Providers 1o achieve greater
alignment batween income receip:s and lease habilines,
ser achievable capital solvency requirements agains:
lease obligations and dermonsiraze a furrher degree of
risk sharing.

The new lease clause has, following detalled negonanon
inclading legal inpus, received approval from the beards
of t'wo 1minal housing associations with whom it had
been discussed. The Ccmpany had previously sought
and obtained formal wrnitten confirmauon from 178
valuers that the inclusion of a ¢lause of this sype within
“he Company's new and exising leages will not of 1self
cause a diminution in the value of those leases or in the
uanderlying asse‘s.

Takeover Offer

As announced on § May 2023, the 3oard made the
decision o recommend o shareholders an all-cash offer
of 8C pence for each share of the Company by Wellness
Uiy imrred (a wholly owned subsidiary of C{ Asser
=oldings amized).

Alrhough the 3card believes the offer undervalues

-he long-term prospec:s of the Company, the 3oard
recognises tha: -he Company and the sector in which

17 operates faces a number of challenges in light of the
curren: macro environmen: and odslook. Thig includes
the considerable negauve senumen: in the public
markets :owards the Company and the social housing
sector which the 3oard beheves are unhikely to be
overcome in the short to medium erm and will continue
:o have a matenal impac: on the Company's share price
prospects n addimon, despize delivening on revenue,
NAY and dividend growth since 20, the Company's
shares have ‘raded for some ime at an en-renched
dizcoun: o NAY

On 23 ane 2023, “he Offer became uncondimonal

Updates to Debt Arrangements

ounng the yvear, the 3oard considered and clesed a new
five year term deb: facihzy of c.£7. mulhon with a major
maropean bank lender

The facility was deploved i full 1o redeern the
Company's exisung facilizy with Lloyds 3ank of

£60 million as well as providing additional hqgudity. As a
result, all of the Company's debt facihnes are at Q0% fixed
or capped rates.

Buyback Programme

During the vear, the Board monitored the dechne in the
Company's share pnce and 1n response, the Board agreed
he implementanon of a share buybhack programme
under cerrain parameters, which ig being operated by the
Company's Joint 3rokers.

Turther information on the Company's buyback
programme carn be found on page 50.




Strategic Overview

Purpose of the Company

The Company was established 1n 2076 with the purpose
of dehvernng long-term responsikle. stable returns to
mvestors and achieving positive measurable social
impac: and FSG benefits on a large scale. [t should
achieve this as a resul: of Inwroducing long-term equity
capital into the socal housing secior with a particular
focus on care-based community housing. 3y doing so,
this would form a bridge between equity tnvestors and
the social housing sector and bring together aspec:s of
healthcare with social housing.

The Company has since developed “he larges: por:folio
of care-based community housing in the UX tha: provides
long-ierm homes for more than 4,500 individuals across
half “he local authonues in zngland and Wales.

As a result of this success. the Company exiended 18
mandare to be able 1o ener into rransactions directly
with the N=§ and with leading charries with aninzeres:
i the provision of speacialist housing tha: has a strong
care or support element, 1s consistent with public policy
and whose cosig are me: by tha public purse for which 2
offers value for money.

Investment Objective

The Company's invesimen: oljechive 18 0 provide
shareholders with an atraciive level of Income, together
wirh the porennal for capital growth from mvesiung in a
porrfolio of Social “omes, which benefis from inflauon
adjusted long-term leases or nceupancy agreemen:s with
Approved Providers and o deliver. on a fully inves:ed
and geared basis, a targeted dividend vield of 3% per
annum , which “he Company expects 0 tncreage hroadly
in line with inflazion

Investment Policy

The Company s Invesimen: policy 1s 10 inves: n a
diversified por:folio of Social =omes *hroughout

“he Unized <ingdom. The Company intends 10 mee:

“he Company's Invesimen: objecive by acquinng,
ypically indirectly via Special Purpose Vehicles,
porzfolios of Social =omes and entenng o lonyg-term
inflanion adjusted leases or occupancy agreemen:s

for rerms primanly ranging from 10 years 1o 4C years
wth Approved “roviders. where all managsmen:

and mainienance obhqganons will ke serviced by the
Approved ’roviders. The Company vwnll not underake
any development acuvily Ar assume any developmean: or
consracion risk. —ovrever, the Company may engage in
TENOVAINYG Or CUSIOMISING exXisting homes, as necesgary
The Company may make praden: use of leverage o
finance the acquisiiion of Social Zomes and “o preserve
capltal on a real basis.

The Company is focused on delivening capi:al growth
and expec:s 10 hold s Portfolio over the long term and
therefore 1 1s unhikely that the Company will dispose
of any par: of the 2orfoho. ‘'n the unhkely even: that a
part of the ortfolio 1s disposed of, the Directors intend
to remmvest proceeds from such disposals 1n assets 1n
accordance with ‘he Company's investimen: policy.

Investment Restrictions

The Company inves:s and manages the 2ortfolio with the
objecave of delivenng a high-quality, diversified Portfolio
‘hrough the following invesiment restrictions’

e the Company only invests in Social =omes located 1n
“he Unrred <ingdom;

e ‘he Company only invests m Social =omes where the
counterparty "o the lease or OCCUpPancy agresmen: 1s
an Approved 2rovider;

e nolease or occupancy agreement shall be for an
anexpired penod of less than 1C years, unless the
shorter leases or OcCUpancy agreements represent
par: of an acquisinen of a porifolio which the
nvestmen: Adviser intends o reorganise such thas
‘he average term of [2ase or occupancy agragment 1s
increased to 15 years or ahove;

e ‘he aggreqgate maximuam exposdre to any single
Approved Provider s 25% of the Gross Asse: Value,
once the capttal of the Company 1s fully invested;

e noinvestment by the Company in any single
gengraphical area, 1n relatton 10 which the houses
and/or aparmen: biocks owned by the Company are
locazed on a conniguous or largely conuguaous basis,
exceads 20% of The Gross Asser Value of the Company;

e ‘he Company only acquires completed Social “omes
and will not forward finance any developmen: of new
Social —omes;

e he Company does no:inves: in other al:ernauve
inves:men: funds ar closed-end investmen:
companias; and

e he Company 1s not engaged in short selling.

The invessmen: imus detallad above apply at the ume of
“he acqgmeion of the relevan: inves men: in the 2orfolio
once fully invested The Company wo.lld no: be required
<o dispose of any investmen: or to rebalance the Portfolio
as a result of a change in “he respective valuanons of 12s
asse's.

Gearing Limit

The Direc-ors seek 10 Use gearng o enhance egqulty
rerurns. The level of barrovwnng 1 set on a praden: Gasis
for the asse: class and seeks "o achieve a low cos: of
fands, whilst maimn-aimng “he flaxibihy im “he underlying
securty requirements and “he siracture of bo'h the
corfoln and the Comparny.

1 The dindend vield 15 based on the orkgmal [PO poce ot 100 pence per Ordinary share The targef drvidends ate 1argets only and do not 1epresent a pront torecast
There can be noassurance thar the 1argais can o witl be met and should not be taken as an madicanon of the Company s expected or aciuzal tumire resualts
Accordingly potenual nvestors should not place any relhiance on these aigers n decding whethe! or nor fonvestin the Company o assume 1hat the Company
will make any distnibutions 4t all and should decice 101 themselves whether ot nof the targe! dividencd y1ei0s are reasaonable of achizvable



Strategic Overview
Continued

The Company may. following a decision of the Board.
raise debt from banks and/or the capral markets and the
aggregate borrowings of the Company is always subjec:
w0 an absolute maximum of 40% of Gross Asse: Value
calculated az the ame of drawdown. Current geanng s
35.61% (2022 41.45%)

Debt s secured at asse: level, whether over a paracular
property or a holding entity for a particuiar series of
properties, without recourse 10 the Company and also
pozendally at Company level with or without a charge
over the Portfoho (but not against particular assets),
depending on the opumal structure for the Company and
having consideration to key metrics including lender
diversity, cost of deb:, debt 1ype and matmunty profiles.
Ortherwnse there will be no cross-financing betweaen
mvestments in the Porifolio and the Company will no:
operate as a common reasury function beween the
Company and its imvestments.

Use of Derivatives

The Company may choose w0 utilise denvaves for
efficien: portfolio managemens: n paracular the
Directors may engage 1in full or parnal interestraze
hedging or otherwige seek o mitigate the rigk of mmteres:
rate Increases on borrowings incurred 1n accordance
wih the gearng limits as par: of the managemen: of the
Porfolio.

Cash Management

The Company invests in cash, cagsh equivalen:s, near
cash msrumeanss and money market instramenss.

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs")

REIT Status

The Direcrors conduct the affairs of the Company so as to
enable it to remain guahfied as a RZT for the purposes
af Part 12 of the Corporauon Tax Act 2010 (and the
regulations made thereunder).

Culture

The Directors agree that establishing and mamntaining

a heal:hy corporate culture among the 3oard and in 1ts
inzeraction with the investment Adviser, shareholders
and other stakeholders will support the delivery of 115
purpose, values and sirategy. The Board seeks o promoze
a culuare of openness, delzate and integrity -hrough
ongoing dialogue and engagement wih its service
providers, principally the investment Adviser.

As detailed 1n the Comporaie Governance Sazement,
<he Company has a number of policies and procedures
in place (o assist with mainzaining a culture of good
governance, including those relating 1o drversity and
Orectors’ conflicts of interest. The Board assesses and
monitors compliance with these policies as well as the

general culture of the Board through Board meeungs and,

in pariacalar, during the annual evaluation process which
15 andertaken by each Director {for more informanon, see
the performance evaluaton section on pages 56 and 57).

The Board's culture 1:self 18 one of openness,
collaboration and constructive debate 0 ensure the
effectuive contribuiion of all Jirectors, particularly 1in
respec: of the Beard's decision making. Consideration
of our stakeholders 1s embedded 1n the Board's decision
making process. Please see our s&ction 177 Slatement on
pages 7075,

Result

Measure Explanation o
ncrease in NAY - Targel to achleve capiial appreciation whils:
per share maintaining a low risk sirategy from enhancing

NAV increase c->f_l]._?p7pér share 12.4%
from 1IPG (2022: 72.3p per share 12.6% from 12C).

the gualiiy of cash flows from inves:menss, by

physical improvemen: of properties and by

creatnng a significantly diversified, high-qualiy

portfolio.

Oividends per
share :argeted a dividend of 570p per share.

For .he year ended 3! ?\/Iarcl{“2023. the Company

Toral dividend of 570p per skare declared for -he
year o 31 March 2003 (7022: 555p).

Namber of local Target nisk ruugation through a diversified
authorities, pertfoha (once [ully invested) with no mare
Approved

2roviders and
care providers

-han 25% exposure 10 any one local authoriy or

single Approved Provider and no more :kan 20%
exposdre 10 any single gecgraphical aresa. ence

-ke capiial of the Company is tully inves:ed.

As a: 31 March 2023

e 178 local authoriiy parners (Z022: 178 Jocat
aurhority parmers)
19 Approved Providers {2622; 18 Approved Providers)
131 care oroviders (2022: 13G care providers)

The Company's larges: single exposure 15 10 falcon
Housing Associauon C.C and currently stands at 1%
(2022: °9%). The larges: geographical concenraion 1s
in the South West, being 4% (2022 16%).

Laan o
Cross Asses
{_Leverage)

gross assels.

Targewed -o:al deb: drawn no mare than 40% of

Leverage as ai 51 Mareh 2023 of 95.5.% of grass
assets (2022: 34.43%).
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Strategic Overview

Continued

EPRA

The Company 1s a member of the suropean 2ullic Real zstaie Associanon ("SPRA"). EPRA has developed and defined
-he following performance measures o qive transparancy, comparabilty and relevancge of financial reporiing

across enties which may use different accounting standards. The Company 1s pleased o disclose *he following
measudres which are calculased 1in accordance with 2RA gaidance. These are all Alternatve Performance Measures of

“he Company.

EPRA Earnings

Earnings from operational
acuvities.

A key measure of a
company's underiyimg
operating resulss and an
indicanon of the exten: o
which carren: chividend
paymen:s are suppored
Iry earmngs

EPRA Net Reinstatement
Value (“NRV")

=2RA NAV metnc which
assumes thar entuties never
sell assets and aims o
represen: the value required
o rebld the enaty.

EPRA Net Tangible Assets

(*“NTA™)
EPRA NAV metric which

assumes thas entties buy

and sell assets, thereby

crystallising certain levels of
unavoldable deferred tax

EPRA Net Disposal
Value (“NDV")

ZPRA NAV metric

which represents the
shareholders' value under
a disposal scenario,
where deferred ax,
financial wigrumen:s and
cerzain other adyastmen:s
are calculated “o the full
exten: of their hlabilizy, ne:
of any resulhing tax.

The SPRA NAV se- of memecs make adjustments to the NAV per the iinancial stazements 1o
provide stakeholders with the mos: relevan: informanon on the fair value of the assets and
llakilimes of a real estate iInvesimen: company, under different scenaros.

EPRA Earnings

26,929,000

2037
SV

EPRA NRV

“

653,780,000

673,416,000

EPRA NTA

653,780,000

[y

673,416,000

EPRA NDV

i

673,645,000

678,191,000

29,810,000
o 207 |
30,630,000 74,042,000 674,042,000 671,476,000
EPRA Earnings per share EPRA NRV per share EPRA NTA per share EPRA NDV per share
[ IR T [ T S PR N SN

Gamic o anrd 1 - RN

"

107.82

109.96

i .
107.82

109.96

i

A A Tl O
4.93 108.38 108.38 107.97
Sast performance 1s not a rellable indicasor of fusare performance. Jor detailled workings reconaihing the above

measures to ~he 38 resulis. please see Appendix T 1o these financial satements on pages 122 10 25,
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EPRA Net Initial
Yield (“NIY”)

Annuahiged ren:al
mcome based on the
cash rents passing
at the balance
sheet daze, less
non-recoverable
property operating
expenses, divided
by *he marke: value
of -he proper:y
with {estimated}
purchasers’ cos:s.

EPRA Topped-up Net
Initial Yield (“NIY™)
This measure
incorporates an
adjus:ment t0 the
EPRA NIY 0 respect
of the expiration of
ren:-free perniods

(or other unexpired
lease incenives such
as discounted rent
periods and stepped
Tents)

A comparable maasure for portfolio
valdaions. These measures should make 1t
easlier for investors o0 judge themselveas, how
the valuation of portfalio X compares with

portfcho Y.

EPRA Costs Ratio

Admims:ranve and
operating costs
(inchuding and
excluding costs

of direct vacancy)
divided by gross
rental income.

A key measure 1o
enable meaningful
measdrement

of the changes

N acompanys
operaung costs

EPRA LTV

Jebt (including net
payables but net

of cash halances}
divided by the market
value of propery
(including net
receivables).

A key (shareholder-
gearing} matnc

to determine the
percentage of deb:
companng to the
appraiged value of
‘he properies.

EPRA Vacancy Rate
Estimated Marke:
Renzal Value ("ERV') of
vacant space cdrwided
by SRV of the whole
portfolio.

A pure’ (%) measure of
Invesmen: property
space tha: 1s vacan:,
based on =RV,

EPRA NIY

EPRA Topped-up
NIY

EPRA Costs Ratio!

EPRA LTV

EPRA Vacancy
Rate

i}
1

2agt performance 1s not a reliable indicator of futare performance. “or detailed workings reconcihing the above
measures o the RS resule, please see Appendix ' to these inancial statements on pages 22 1o W2u.

1 The tanos Melusve ol vacancy costs are the same as 1he (Ao cxclusive of vacancy costs for 2022, 2021 and 2020
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Principal Risks and Risk Management

The 3oard considers that ‘he nsks detalled below are the principal nsks facing the Group currencly, along with the risks
detailed in note 3.0 1o the financial szatemnents. These are the nsks thar could affect the ability of the Company (o delver
178 strateqgy. The 3oard confirms thar the principal nisks of the Company. inctuding those which would threaten its fature
performance. solvency or icgndity, have been robustly assessed throughout the year ended 31 March 2023, taking o
accoun: the emerging nisks such as the longer term, climae change nsk. cyber security nisk and recraiimen: of staff a:
counterparues nsk, and that processes are 1n place 10 coniinue this assessment.

The Audiz and Managemen: “ngagemen: Commitiee has divided the Company's risks imto the following risk type
categornes:

e Sirrategy and Competitiveness;
e Operational including Cylker Cnme;
® nvesiment Managemen: and

s Accounting. .egal and Regula:ory.

tach nsk contaimned 1n each category 1s reviewed for 178 1mpac: and probability by the Audit and Vanagemen:
Engagemen: Commisee at least mwice dunng “he year.

The Audit and Management Engagemen: Commitiee takes raesponsibhiy for overseeing “he effectiveness of nisk
managemen: and mnternal conirol systems on zehalf of the 3card and adwises the 3oard on the principal risks facing
che business.

rarther details of fisk managemen: processes that are 1n place can be found in the Corporaie Governance Saremen:
on pages 57 and 58 The principal and emerging nsks and ancertaimres relaing o the Group are reqularly reviewed
by the 3oard along with rhe internal consrols and risk managemen: processes that are used 0 miugate these nsks
The 3oard acknowledges that the Takeover by Wellness Unity Limited may resalt inincreased nsk both dunng the
fransinon and subsequently Specifically the Directors have not had detailed vistbility of the offerar's pos: complenion
funding for the group or the detailled plans behind the intenuons statemen:s included within the announcement.
Oversight and monizonng durng this period will take on cnnical imporiance ‘T'he Board hasdennfied one new
princieal risk durng the yearias set oul n the 118t of principal nsks and uncerramies;. The risk assoclated with a
disrupnion o share price dus 10 negatve senumen: In the soclal housing sector was 1dentified as having the mghes:
impac: and hkelthood The risk associated with promoning “he Company 0 generare investar demand was removed
as a principal risk by the 3oard dunng the year as the Takeover Offer by Wellness Unity amited has reduced the need
for the Company o generate addinonal invesior demand. “urher details on this and the other principal nsks and the
managemen: of those risks are described below:

Impact

Very
unlikely

Very

Unlikely Possible Likely Likely

Probability



Principal Risks and Risk Management
Continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

1

2

Strategy and Competiuveness nsk
The Company's share price

is disrupied due 1@ negative
sentiment towards Lne social
a0using secior [ollowing a
rargeted atlack by a shor setler
and po.lution frem other events in
the secior

~his risz remained ar the same
leve. as the vear ended 31 March
2022

Impact

The Company is targeted

oy a short seller or activig:
shareno.der eading 10
dfa.iin he Company's
share price and a
widening ol :ne discoun:
10 NAV.

Significant numbers of
shares may need 10 ne
repurenased leading o
ala.in the size of the
Company and hguidity
T2, 0Ca LONS,

Strategy and compenuveness risk

Tne Company and its opcra:ions
are subec: 1o laws and regulations
enacted oy nazona: and .ocal
governmen's and government

po.icy.

This risk remained a: ‘ne same
.eve. as he yvear ended 31 March
2022,

How managed/mitigated

The Board is commited (o0 maintaining
open channels of communication with
shareho.ders and engaging in ways
sharcho.ders find most meaningful in
ordar 1o gain understanding of shareholder
vicwrs Turtharinformauon on the Board's
cngagement wita snareholders can be
tound on pages 17 10 25.

The Board seeks to provide f.ll disc.osure
on 1ne counterparties and the siructure of
rransactons so tha: al. staxenolders are
kept reliably informed on the Company's
business dealings.

The Board regu.arly reviews (ne
Company's buyback po:icy 1o ensure this
1s in alignment with the interes:s of the
Company and snareholders. The Board

is a.so mindful of the possibly to issue
snares and reguar.y reviews its policy in
this area o ensure tat it is consisten: witn
the Company's sirategy. [D receives regu.ar
spdates from the Company's Drokers 1o
ne'p inform 1ts decisions in tais regard.

linpact

How managed/mitigated

Any change in the

iaws, regu.atons and/
Or governmean: oo.icy
alfeciing the Conrpany
and iis opera:ions may
nave a maoria: advarse
effec: on tne ability of the
Company 10 suocessiully
pJdrs.e 11s invesimen:
poicy and meoest i
INVEesimen: onacive
and on tnhe value of ing

Company and e snarcs.

t nd compeliliveness rnsk .
As a resi. of competition {rom
oher parchasers of socta. nousing
oroperiies. the Company's aoilily
‘o dep.oy capiia. effective.y wiimn
a reasonan.e dmeframe may be
resricied of “he netinitia. vields a:
waich the Company can acguire
propearies may decline sacna tna:
argel returns cannal o me!

Taisris< remaimed al the same
eve. as the year ended 31 Maran
2022

impact
Therate of capita.l
deploymen: wou. d droo.
decreasing reiurms o
snarcho dors.

The Company [ocdses on niche rea. ostate
secors where it pelieves the regl.a.ory
framework and under.ying demand
dynamics 1o be ronust

ne Inves'ment Adviser has sirong ind. sy
contac:s and has good snowledge on
oolicy opimon and directon.

The Board obtainz reg.tar wpdates
from professiona. advisers 1o monior

develooments in reguiation and egisiation.

Impaét: -
High

Probability:
Likely

Impact:
Very high

Probability:
Unlikely

How managed/mtigated
The Company has sirorng in<s wiln vendors
and a robust pipeiine of fulire acqguisiiions.

Tnec Beard reguiary raviews ne pipe.ine
ol poentia. acgdisitions and monitors the
mar«e. .andscape.

The Board 1s awarc of the current
compelive socia. noasing mar<e: and
recodgnigas e T pact Nis may 1ave on
e Company's anidhy 10 deploy capia.
cffeetively

Probability:
Unlikely

o]
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Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

4 Investmenl Ianagement nsk Impact

How managed/mitigated

Tenant defauiiing under the lerms Loss of rental income in The portioiio is nigaly diversified o reduce Impact:
of a case ‘he snor: erm. the impac: of defaul: [xicnsive diligence 1 Medium
undertagen on all assets. which is reviewed
This risk remained at the same andad chalenged by the Board.
‘evel as the year ended 31 March - . . . Probability:
2022 f\e [nvesimen: Adv?ser WOTKS proactively Likely
wih Approved Providers 1o address any
potentia: concerns.
The Board is provided with regalar updates
on the ‘enan’s with any concerns raised for
discussion
The Board nas noted 1aar the Company’s
his:ioric eve: of defa. s has peen
& Investment management sk fmpact How inahadged:muttgated o . o
The va.uc of the investments made  Thae vallation of tne The Company inves's I pro ecis wiin Impact:
by tne Company may cnhange from  Comrpany's assers would stap.e. prede‘ermined. .ong-erm .cascs in High
ame to lime according to a variety fa'l. decreasing the p.ace wiin CPl or CPI 0.us 1% indexation
ol factors, inc.cding movements NAV and vie.ds of the and s sirategy is not focused on sa ¢ of
In interes: rates, inf_ation and Company. properties. Probability:
genera: market oricing of similar - ) L Possible
P — 12 Boargd rccpzycs reguiar wodaics on
faciors tnal might irpac, mvesimen:
This ris« remained at tne same va.uations
leve: as the year ended 31 March
2022
6 Investment management nsk Impact _ How managed/nunigated
The cuITent macroeconamic Less favouranlc nommowing  The Invesimen: Adviser, AIFM and Impact:
environment nas increasced the erms increase (ne Deposiary monior covenan:s in piace wiin - Medium
ievel of nsk around ihe Company's  tinanqing cos:s reducing deot oroviders and pregen: (o e Board on
financing arrangemen:s regarding  yorurns o snareno ders. a geartery basis
borrowing terms and covenans. o Invesmen: Adviser everages ne Probability:
T T e e Possible
~his was iden:ified as a new ris< TC.anNonsNips i aready has in 1ne mar<et
d.Iing ne year, o torm :ong term parinersnips wih deo:
oroviders a: ra:es it a.ready has acaleved
an simiar pro ecis witnin tne same
MAaCro mar<e:,
The Invesimen: Adviser repors 1o
Board on disciss10ns Wi nan<s w
Algaldghs al tne eardesi opporiLniiy if
rigg nas increased
7 ]n‘!(:slrl\en_l management risk Ir_r_\p_a(_l___ How [[lg}ldqed,'lmllq@led R - o o
D.e diigence may no: revea. a.. Tae Company wo.ld e Comrnany underacges deaied d.e Impact:
facts and circoImsiances 11al may oserpay for asses diigence on e properiias, ineir condiiien, . High
0C T2ICVanT in connection witl an I oainng snareno.der e proposed renta. _evess - oencamar<ing
mvesiren: and may no: 9ICvVen: 7a .0 Ted Lcing ren.a againg: comparao.e scnemes .sing e
an acg.isition ocing mascrialy income and “ercinre exlernda. CoNs..ans waere req.aired and Probability:
overva.ucd O ICNta. 5TICAINS 0CING (o0 rps 115 own oropriesary daanasc - and on ne Unlikely

a.ris<

nigris< remained ar oo same
e as ne year ended 31 Maran

Aporoved Providers and care providers
nvo.ved in eacn propeaery 1o ensare na. ine
DAICNAase Orce 1§ ron.us:

Tne Board consulers no d e diigence
«nderiacen wWaen agproving acg.isiions




Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

A Investment management risk

Impact

Loss of xey siaff at the Inves:men:
Adviser.

This risk remained al ine same
level as the vear ended 31 March
2022,

Negaiive invesior
gentimert. .eading 1o a
reduc:ion in snare price.
Reduciion in apiliy
salree off marg<et and
favouraple deas

_How managed/niugated

9 Swategy and competitiveness

The Company fails 0 respond o
1s5ues related to cimate change,
erther direcuy as enhancements
to proper:ics or indirectiy via its
chmare change reporting.

This risk remained at the same
level as the year ended 31 Marcn
2022,

Impact

Decrease in &
tne Comopany's assets and
a negative impact on (e

Company's snare price

1 _Vperational. ncluding cyber girqe
Serious accident or poor
managemenl amongst Approved
Providers due ‘o staff shortages
and .0ss of competcnee,

This risk remained gt the same
_evel as the year ended 31 Marca
2022,

Impact

RenLlaiionai damages for
1ac Company.

Emerging risks

cmerging risks are considered during the reqgular

rnsk review. and would be specifically discussed and
evaluated as they anse dunng the vear ‘nput from the
‘nvestment Adviser on emerging nsks 1s considered by
the Audi and Managemen: tngagemen: Comrmizies.

Key emerging risksidenafied and considered dunng the

year include:

¢ _ong-Term Chmate Change - the impact of chimate
change. over ‘he longer-rerm on the businesg. The
Company 18 committed to understanding =5G nisk,
inclading the particular impac: of chmate change
on the business. Chimare change poses an indirect
nsk to the Company's operations, the environmen:
and scciety. and the Board ts aware “ha: appropnaze
acton 18 requred o reduce s impact The 3oard
uses the updates from the .nvesimen: Adviser as they
relate to the performance of the company and the
mpac: of long-erm chimate change 10 help manage/

mitigate thig nsk.

The Board congiders tne risk of the Impact:
Invesumnent Adviscr losing key stalf and :he High
siccession plans the Invesiment Adviser
has in p.ace.

) . Probability:
The Board has noted the ongoing .

- - Unlikely

expansion of (ne Investment Adviser's
SUDPOTt Leam

How managed/mingared . R L
Regular review and consideration by Impact:
the Board including the inpa: of climate High
change specialis:s at the Investimen: Probability:
Adviser. Unlikely
Advice received from exierna. protessional
advisers.

How mandged/mitgated ,, e .
Reporiing trom Approved Providers and Impact:
monitoring of Approved Providers by the High
Investment Adviscr. Probability:

Unlikely

e Cyber Security — the impact of a cyber gecurity breach

within the Company or 1:¢ service providers. The
Audit and Managemens: Engagemen: Commiiiee
reviews and monizors the cyber security controls of
he Companys service providers on a regular basis to
manage/miigase this rnisk.

Please see the Company's 553G Repor: on pages 37 10 46
for further details.

The Listing Rules require premidam-hsted commerclal

companes 1o disclose in thewr annual repor: whether
‘hey have reported on how chimate change affects

“heir business i1 a manner consisient with the
recommendatons of -he Task Force on Climase-related
Tinancal sclosures (TC00 and 10 provide an
explananon and other informanion if they are unable

o doso. ‘naddimon, the UK Governmen: intends "o
inrroduce mandazory climate-related disclosures to
supplemen: the requurements under the Listing Rules. The
Foard has chosen no: o adop: “he requiremenss early
and expects these 10 be appheable o the Company in the
financlal yvear 20241
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Going Concern and Viability Statement

Going Concern

The 3oard regularly reviews the posiuon of the Company
and 1ts ability to coniinue as a going concern a: its
meenngs. The financial stazements zet out the curren:
financial position of the Company.

As at 31 varch 2023, -he Company held cash balances of
£45.8 million (ne: of operating and financing amounts
due). The Board has evaluated the financial posiion

of the Company which has maintained iis premmum
investment grade raung from fi1:ch Rasings td — a well
esrablished rating agency with a strong familiarity with
the alrernanve healthcare real estate space, which gives
the Company confidence in the abihity to raise future
deb: and/or equity capr:al in order o fund the Company's
nvestmen:s for the long term and o faciliate the
paymen: of dividends to ghareholders Based on these,
‘he Board helieves that the Company s 1 a posiion 10
manage 1ts financial rnsks.

Vanous forms of sensiivity analysis have been
performed, in paritcular the financilal performance

of tenantz and a reduciion in passing rent. As a:

37 March 20235, the passing ren: would have to drop by
approximasely % before any of the Company's inzerest
cover covenan:s are breached. The propery valies
would need to fall by around 3% before breaching the
loan o value covenant.

The Company's performance in ~he even: of severe
rus plausible downside scenanos used for viabihioy
are equally apphcable for going concern. At the date
of approval of this report. the Company has safficient
headroom wrhin rg fiinancial lean covenants. The
Company also benefits from a secure Income s:ream
from leases with long average unexpired term leases.

Leverage 1s pradenily maimntained as a level of lesg “han
40% of Grogss Asses Value

The Company's aracles of association include a
reqiiremen- for the 3oard o propese an erdimary
resolunion ar the annual general meenng following the
fifth anmiversary from the initial pubhc offering of the
Company for the Company "o coninue m 128 curren: form
he Connmuanon esalanon;. On 25 Seprember 2022, at
‘he Annuaal General Veening, shareholders reprezentng
1898 478 455 voted in favour of the canminaanon of he
Company being 98.849% of -hoge who voted.

O 9 May 202% an announcemen: was made 10 the marke:
for an ali-cash offer of the Company from Wellness Unity
Lmited, a wholly owned imdirect subsidiary of C{ Asser
Holdings amited {CKA)Y On 28 June 2023, when the offer
became unconditional, CKA subsequently became the
dlumate controlling party of the Company. and a related
party under _AS 24. The Group's existing commisted delbt
facilines contain a standard change of control clause
which has now been tnggered due 0 the offer becoming
ancondinonal This could result in the existing committed
deb: facihities being withdrawn. The Group does not have
visikulty of the pos: completion funding for the Group at
+his nime. Therefore, this could create some uncerainty as
w0 the Group's going concern position. The Jireciors note
‘he detalled in:entons statemens included within the
anneouncement on 9 May 2025 which siaies that CgA does
not envisage making any changes 1o the managemen:
team nor any digrnipion o any Codnterparias or

0 he underbying senan:s The condiions cuthned

above indicate a matenal uncerainiy which may cast
significan: doubt upon the Group and the Company's
abihity “o continue as a going concern. The financial
grazemen:e do not inelude the adiustmenss shar would
result If the Group and the Company were unable 10
COMIINUE a8 a goimng concem.

Hdaving considered all of the above, the 3oard s of the
opinion tha: the gomg concern basis adop:ed 1in the
preparaton of the consolidated financial statements
1S Appropnate.

Viability Statement

The Directors presen: the Company's viability stazemen:
which summarises the resul:s of their assessmen: of
‘he Company’s curren: posiion, 178 principal nsks and
prospec:s over a pernod 1o 3. March 2028,

The Company acquires hmigh-gualtty progery with a
parucular focus on proper:y providing care for the long
serm. The properies acquired are on long-term full
repainng and mmsuring leagseg in a gecor of “he marke-
with vary high levels of need. The cos: base of the
Company 1s proporionately low compared "0 revenile
and “here 15 a hugh level of cerlain™y over eos:
incarred. On “his basis. “he Company 18 expeciad to be
vable well beyond the five-year “erm considersd in the
Company's tesnng belowr

o e

The assumpnions undermpinming the forecas? cashflows
and covenan® compliance forecas:s were senstised

-0 explore the resihencs of the Company o the
poentalimpac: of the Company s principal nisks and
UNCeramnies.



Going Concern and Viability Statement ‘.

Continued

The prospects were assessed over a five-year period for
the following reasons

i) the Company's .ong-term forecast covers a five-year
penod,

ii) the leng:h of service level agreemen:s between
Approver Prowiders and rare providers s typecally five
years; and

iii) the Company’s leases are typically 25 vears on fully
repairing and insuring ‘eases, enapiing rcasonan.e
cerainty of ncome gver (e next ve years.

The Company's five-year forecast incorporates
assumpiions related to the Company's investmen:
srareqgy and principal nisks from which performance
results, cash flows and key performance indicators are
forecast. The principal risks are set out on pages 30 10 33.
Of these nsks, those which are expecied @ have a higher
impact on the Company's longer-ierm prospects are
those related to the curren: macroeconomic environmen:,
which has increased the level of risk around the
Company's financing arrangements regarding borrowing
terms and covenants. The risk associaed with a
disrupton 1o share price due to negative seniment in
the social housing sector being idenafied as having

the highest impact and hkehhood. The Company has
considered 115 strategy over a longer term and. in hght

of the inherent demand for the Company's properies
and the vulnerable nanre of the uliimate 1enans:, the

nisk of change 1n fuwre housing pohicy is considered

<o be imited. The prnncipal nisks are mitigated by the
Company's risk managemen: and internal control
processes, which function on an ongoing basis.

The Board, via deleganon o the Audit and Managemen:
~ngagemen: Commtiee, monitors the effectiveness of
the Company's sk managemen: and internal control
processes on an ongoing basis. The monttoring acuviies
are described 1n the Report of the Audir and Management
wngagemen: Commitee on pages 60 10 62 and

inchude direc: review and challenge of the Company's
documented risks. nsk raangs and controls, and review
of performance and compliance repor:s prepared by

the Company's key supphers and the mdependean:
external audizors.

The 3oard of Direciors has carned our a robus:
assessmen: of the principal and emerging nisks facing
the Company. including *hose tha: would threaten 1's
pusiness model. future performance, selvency and
hepndity. Where appropriate, the Company's forecas's are
subject to sensimvity analysis, which invelves applying
severe (bur plausible) condinions and flexing a number of
assumpttons simulianeously

The sensitnnties performed were designed to provide
the Directors with an understanding of the Company's
performance in the event of severe bu: plausible
downgide scenarios, taking full accoun: of mingaing
actions that could be taken to avord or reduce the impact
or occurrence of the underlying risks outhned below:

e 0% of tenants defaulting under a lease. The cuicome of
this scenario reduces profiis on average over the five
year forecast by 18% per annum and reduces cash by
F£20 million. However, the Board remams comfortable
tha: dnndends could be paid and any hakimes could
be settled ag there s still a sufficien: level of cash in the
business. Therefore the business remains viable over
the five vear penod and

e deteriorazion in economic outlook, or a change in
governmen: housing pohcy which could impact the
fundamentals of the social housing gecior, including
a negatve impac: on valuazons and a 5% reduction
in annual rents. The outcome of the severe downside
scenano was tha: the Company's covenant headroom
on existing debt {he level at which the investrment
property values would have 1o fall before a financial
breach occurs) reduces by (3%, prior 1o any miigating
actiong such as asse: sales. which indicates tha:
covenan:s on exising facihnes would net be breached.

The remaining principal risks and anceraimnties, whilg:
having an impact on the Company's business, are

not considered by the Dwrectars ‘o have a reasonable
likelthood of impacung the Company’s viabihity over the
five-year perniod, therefore the scenanos outhned above
are the only ones tha: have been specifically tested.

Based on the results of their assessmen:, notwithstanding
the matenal uncer:ain:y ansing from the offer from CKA,
the Directiors have a reasonable expecianon that the
Company will be able 1o contunue 1n operaznon and meet
1ite llabihisies as they fall due over the five-year penod of
thelr assessment

Michael Wrobhel

Chalrman

28 June 2025
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The Portfolio’s Carbon Footprint
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Tonnes (TCO.} per Civitas Tenancy

March 2023 March 2022

2.61 2.65

Source (Cvitas ietained EPC data

znergy ferformance Cerificates (E2Cs) are 1ssued All rental propertties are legally required to have an EPC
following the energy survey of a Property by an energy in the UK and a good energy rating indicates tha: the
assessor. =PCs lllustrate the energy efficiency of properties residents of the property will benefi: from:

and give a property an energy rating from A (very e _ower energy bills — energy efficient properties will
efficient) 0 G (mefficient]. Zach sIChs vahd for G years and result In comparably lower resident consumpilon and
includes a hist of recommendarions tha: provide guidance therefore reduce energy bills

on how the energy efficiency of the property could be

) e _ower carbon foorpnint —1ncreasing the energy
improved to reduce energy kills and carbon emissions.

efficienicy of the properties will lower carbxon emissions

e mprove property valie - improving the energy
rating will also likely enhance the value and ensure
consisten:ly low vold levels at the properies.

Civitas EPC Distribution (Domestic/Non-Domestic) — March 2023

Non-domestic/Higher Acuity [l Domestic/Homes

39.8%

43.1%
40.9%

Scurce Civilas retamed EPC data

Domestic/Homes
Thewe refer o daellin
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Energy Performance/SAP Ratings

Carbon Reduction — EPC/SAP Ratings
D A R T Teeouton EIRE- N R [EE RS - EO FRRPFE
Civitas continues to improve the overall energy performance, with a
continued focus on properties with EPC ratings D and E, through active asset
management, including property improvement works, renovations and

scheduled post-completion works.

EPC Distribution across the Portfolio at 31 March 2023

ADZ2

D342

F OO0

G GO

Crvizas 35= properies tend 1o offer larger accommodanon for tenants than convennonal social housing or other privaze
dwellings The properues are predomimantly siree: properies buil pre 194C wizh sohd walls

As showtn in “he rable below, the energy performance of the Civizas porffolio compares favourably againg: the
performance across all housing tenures as reporied n the 2020/2° =nghish =ousing survey (==5}. Civitas 5= properties
have a larger proporion of detached and semi-detached properies compared o social rented and private rented
dwrellings.

Comparable EPC/SAP Ratings
by tenure (%) (domestic/homes only)

Energy Performance Certification Band o
Mean

SAP
———____._ AIB_ € D E _F_ G _ Rating
29 400 46.8 7.8 2.2 03 65.7

30 415 417 88 37 12 645
35 65.2 281 23 Q.7 0z 701
All tenures 3.0 445 427 71 2.2 05 663

Civitas domestic (March 2023) 1.0 409 364 117 00 0.0 671

Owner occupied

Private rented

Social rented

source English Housing Sutvey (2021) Annex Table 28 Enengy eliiciency tauneg bands by tenure 4021 & Annex Table 27 Mean SAP tahing by tenure 2021



E.ON Partnership (Phase 2)

“‘ONM

The collaboration with EON has been based on the
adopton of a "fabne first” approach to reducing the
porfolio's carbon foorprin:. Detalled retrofit surveys
wdentify the potential w0 nstall cavity wall insulaton, [oft
insulation, external wall insulation, air source heat pumps
and solar PV and battery storage at targeted properues.
The installation of these energy efficient measures {(where
congidered viable), utihsing avaliable governmen: grants
and other funding socurces, maximises value for the
Company and for our counterparties. The environmental
enhancemenss are heing dehvered a: no cost 1o our
Appraoved Providers.

Bracken Hill, Mirfield

wWorking with Approved Providers, the ohgong

Phase 2 remrofir surveys are being undertaken o refine the
implemenzation programme and identify the bes: method
for reducing he total carbon dioxide emissions {and

fuel costs) associated with individual properues over the
medium or long term. The overall energy performance of
the portfohio, as idenafied on znvironmental Cerforrnance
Certificates (E’C) reports data has improved over the last
-2 months. The proporion of properies with 5PC Rating

A Cas currently ¢.b5% and the carbon footprint festimaned

from propersy charactensucs) has reduced by 2% per Crvitas

enancy (from 2.65 -onnes of CO2/tenancy in March 2022 to
A61onnes of CO2Mtenancy’.

A single starey cottage built during the late 1800s. Capital works were required to make some improvements o the
general appearance of the property and deliver energy improvements to create an uplift in the energy rating.

C5= mihated two professional surveys - the first to understand the requirements to undertake necessary repairs and
improve the asset condition — the second to understand the energy improvement cptions available. The works were
carefully planned and resulted 1n an overhaul of the asset with some of the works listed below:

New UPVC windows and front door installed
External wall insulation

Repairs to roof and loft space

Additional insulation into the loft space
Replacement modern kitchen

Decoration throughout including floorning upgrades
Ingrallasion of high hea: retention storage heaters
Additional ventilation installed

a4 ¢ * 0 8 2 9

The EPC rating has improved from a G to an E.

CSH is in the process of installing a dual tariff electricity meter which will continue to improve the EPC rating to 2.
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Social Impact

Social Impact — Publication of The Good Economy Report — Published

November 2022

The Good Economy (TGE) — November 2022

TGE, independent social impact advisory firm, assessed Civitas' performance against its stated

impact objective and the target outcomes to which the Company aims to contribute.

TGE considers that
Civitas hasmade a
meaningful contribution
to increasing supply

to meet the high

level of demand from
commissioners for
supported housing
across the country.

“The portfolio continues to
provide homes for people
with a range of support
needs. including leaming
disabilities, physical
disabilities and mental
health diagnoses.”

Impact Objective

9

Social Need

Provide housing
that meets an
identified social
need

Supply

Increase the
supply of
social housing
across the UK

Quality

Improve the
quality of social
housing

Civitas have worked

“Civitas is systematically
improving the energy
efficiency of older stock
by running a retrofit
programme alongside
energy supplier EON."

Contribute
Towards

Wellbeing

Improve the
wellbeing of
residents

THE
GOOD
ECONOMY

“Civitas has consistently
provided support for
charitable organisations
whose activities align with
the Fund's core mission to
deliver positive outcomes
for individuals with
support needs.”

Outcomes

0Qo

Value

Offer value for
money for the
public purse

40% of residents
lving in Civitas
properties receive
over 50 hours of
care per week.

82% of residents
aged betweon
20 and 49

particularly
for vulnerable
people

41% of properties
new to social
housing at the point
of acquisition

69% of properties
in the 40% most
deprived local
authontues

with Approved
Providers, signing
off on adapticns to
€Nsurc propertics
continue to meet the
changing needs of
residents

87% of respondents
reported that they
were sansfied with
the quality of thewr
homes

53% of respondents
reported an
improvement in
thelr independence
between

their previous
accommeodation and
their current home

£3.51 is created
1n social value
for every £1

of annualised
investmoent




Social Impact
Charitable Partnerships

The Company has supported and worked wirh the following charities since [PO

The House of
St Barnabas

CauD Y

dayr
y

WIS H

THE NEWORK FOR WOMEN
WORK NG N SOCIAL HOUS NG

Little ..
Sprouts

the

Care
workery
charity

“The Choir with No Name

The results of an anonymous 2022/23 survey about the expertence of choir members a: chaoir

demonstra:e the consistently positive impact and the value of CWNN work in improving the

lives of people impacted by homelessness:

* 89% reported a sense of belonging at choir

« 90% feel valued at choir and said chotr improved thewr confidence

* 85% have made mearingful fnendshups at choir

= 84% said chow helps them feel less 1solated

» 88% sawd chaow helped them feel more optimisiic about hife

« 84% reported a greater sense of purpose and futfilmen: as well as feeling monvated wo iy
new ‘hings

+ 80% reponted improved mental health

The House of §t. Barnabas

The House of St 3arnabas 1s a socal enterprise member's club tha: helps London’'s homeless
people back into work, through its Zmployment Academy.

Smployment Preparation Programme:

= 108% of working graduates are satusfied with their job hours

» 95% are sausfied with their job security

« 52% are satisfied with their pay

» 95% have overall jobz satisfaction

= 97% say oyur men:ors have had a positive impact on their quality of Iife

WISH

W.SH 1s a membership-based network for wormen working acrass every discipline of UK housing,
with a focus on championing positive outcomes for wormen working in the sector. Civitas suppor:
contribures to the champroning of posrive ouicomes for women working in the sectorn

Little Sprouts Health and Wellheing Charity
Litile Sprouts Fealth and Wellbeing Charity 1s dedicated to improving the health anad wellbeing
of our community through cooking workshops, recipe bags. community food shops, “check

and chater' programmes and surplus food collection and distribunion. Civitas suppor:s

Litlle Sprouts with the operational cos:s of the charity, particularly dunng COVID-19. The funds
were used to open a further community shop which uses food as an engagemenst tool to help
address physical, saocial, mental and financial 1ssues.

The Care Workers’ Charity
The Care Workers Charity (CWC) exists 1o help care and suppor: werkers through crisis using
financial suppror: and support centras. Civizas suppor: funds raming of mental health firsT aiders’
o provide each CWC member company, with the traiming and rools 10 provide beter menzal
health suppor: to the care workers
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Charity Partners Case Studies

The Choir with No Name

The Choir with No Yame (CWNN) has been ranning choirs
involving people impacted by homelessness since 20C8,
growing from a first rehearsal in London with just five
people ¢ siX thnving choir communiiies, singing with
over 700 people and performing for tens of thousands of
people across the UK every yvear. We curren:ly have choirs
n London, Liverpool, 3nghton. 3irmingham, Cardiff and
Coventry, with plans 1o launch more chaoirs over the nex:
few years.

The Choir with No Name formiila 1s simple, bus 1t works:
weekly chaoir rehearsals all year round followed by a

haor meal rogether, and excring, aspirational gugs for
everyone o work towards and look forward 1o. Our choirs
are supporive, safe spaces for people going through a
tough time, empowering thern o feel more able 0 rackle
the challenges they face We are currently evolving our
way of working in:o a more co-produced and culmrally
democranc approach, with choir members geting more
involving 1n the design and delivery of theirr choirs, which
15 a really exciting rransformanon for the organmsauon.

Creanve programmes are exiremely effective in achieving
postave outcomes for people mpacted by homelegsness.
They tackle inequalizy, increase social inclusion and
challenge prejudice. I© can help people to progress

thetr wider interes:s, which 13 especially impor.ant in
reducing anxiety and lonehiness that can of:en affec:
people impacted by homelessness, even when they
move on o independen: accommodation. We support
members o make friends. improve their wellbeing. build
confidence and skills, and posiively impac: their personal
circumstances ousside of chotr.

. our rnost recen: 2023 member survey, 89% said they
felt a sensze of belonging a: chowr. 9C% said 1t helped
increase their confidence, 83% said being in choir gave
hem an increased senge of purpose and fulfilmen: and
75% repored that thewr paracipanon in chorr has helped
~hem achieve ar leas: one posinve life change outside
choir including secunng housing, iinding work or beter
management of addictions. We are excremely proud of
“hese resals.

We established our parnership with Civizas Social
=ousing ?le in 2077 and have been exiremely grazeful
recipents of ongoing suppor: for the cos:s of delivering
our weaekly rehearsals and foor stcomping gigs every year.
Thanks o Ciwvitas, we can keep oar doors open. the music
plaving and our membpers singing.: providing somesthing
o0 look forward o every week and gigs o work rowards: a
chance ‘o socialise vath therr friends, ear a hor dinner, and
dliimasely feel seen and heard.

A word from our choir members:

Ruthie's Story

66

When I first started singing with CWNN 1 was really
nervous just standing there in the group singing.
Then, by the Christmas concert, I was grabbing

the mic and singing solo! My confidence has really
improved. I think it's because you just feel like you're
in a really safe space and that people genuinely care
about you. It just feels very loving and authentic.

There’s been so0 many unforgettable moments and
50 many emotional moments. It's amazing seeing
other people transform as well. I've made friends
and connections and, the big thing is, trust. It's been
a real big deal to me that people actually care. They
genuinely care and notice when you're missing. It
sounds a bit extreme, but people care if you're alive
and that you're alive and well. It's been consistent. It

doesn’t stop. ’ ’

Richard’s Story

66

TI've sung all my life so when I heard about the Choir
with No Name [ thought it could be for me. I was
living at the Salvation Army at the time. The best thing
about choir is the confidence it gives me. I've broken a
25-year cycle with drugs — 1 don't think I could've done
it without choir. When I talk to people who aren’t sure
if CWNN is for them 1 say, ‘Come along once, I'll sit next
to you and if you don’t like it you don't have to come
back’. I've encouraged a few people to join and so far,
they've all come back! I'm so happy to have found
CWNN. In my first rehearsal I was so nervous, but by
the second I was singing my heart out. It's made such
a difference. I'm not existing anymore, I'm living, and

that’s huge. , ’




Charity Partners Case Studies

House of St Barnabas

The House of St Barnabas 1s a socal enterprise and chanty
that works 1o support people affected by homelessness
back into long-term employment. Qur vision 1€ of a fuure
where lasting good work, a secure home and a supportuve
network are a reality for those affecred by homelessness.

Underpinned by cur vibran: members’ club in 3oho, oar
=mployment Academy provides on siie employmen:
and skills trairung for people who have expenenced
homelessness.

We work with around 100 people every year and 79% of
graduartes repor: their quality of hfe has improved since
participaung in the Employment Academy.

Our men:onng componens: 18 the key t0 our success

and, thanks o suppor: from Civitas, we are closer 1o
succeeding in our rrussion of ‘Good Work, Good Home" for
all our graduates.

Mentoring at the House of §t Barnabas 15 no- traditional
In the way <hat professional mentonng requires a similar
set of knowledge and experiences. t1s relatnonship-based
mentoring which s based around mterpersonal skills

and communicanon. The purpose of the role1s to work
sogether with Employment Academy staff 1o suppor:
people 1into work and help them progress.

Our men:ors have had a posiive impact on quaality-of-lfe
changes for 97% of responden:s.

Jill and Ellen

rlten began her journey as a mentor by paricipatng

In ourtwo-day raining, which provides extensive
preparation for this very special role. She quickly followed
up by attending the men:oring "speed dating' event
wherte she met several recent graduaes looking 1o be
paired with a mentor. Fowever, she was contacted by

~he Menzoring Team 10 askif she would be interested in
men:orng someone she hadn' had the chance ‘o meet
because they couldn™ attend the 'speed daung” event due
o childcare responsibilities.

This is how Ellen met Jill

Nl and her young daughter found themselves homeless
n 2020 1l didn's have a job and didn’: know what she
wan:ed 0 do erther. Unsure of where to go or what 10

do. she wurned to a social worker for help, who arranged
emporary accommeoedation for 1ll and her daaghter

Then 1M was parin touch with =ouse of S Barnabas, After
graduating from the amployment Preparaiion rogramme,
she had the opporunity to be paired with a men:or.

=llen and Nl me: for therr first mentering session at the
3ntish Library They quickly connected over the fact that
il had a five-year-old daugh:er and Ellen has experience
of bringing up young children in Zondon FEllen had lots
of suggesuons for free activities for children. This built
hil's confidence o attend galleries and museums with her
daughter, which she had never done before.

s they developed their mentornng relauonship. Ellen
also helped Nl to update her CV and cover letter. She
also encodraged il to sign ap for free computer iteracy
courses and provided suppor: with Jill's applcaton for
awinter fuel allowance as well ag making sure tha: she
recelved her Chrnistrnas benefl” bonus.

Jill has since secured ajob as bansta at a S3oho members
club on a par-time basis so she can kalance her chuldcare
respansibilities.

Jill's Story

66

I didn’t know what to expect from the House of 5t
Barnabas. On the first day of the course, I thought it
wasn't really for me. But after my first week, 1 loved it!
Everyone there understood what I was going through,
day by day I felt more confident and more comfortable
being there. It felt like being with family. You get

used to waking up and having no one to talk to, but
suddenly I had people to talk to! It gave me a reason
to get up in the morning. Being at the House was a
lifesaver for me, it's definitely more than just a course.
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United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
(“UN SDGs"”) Alignment

Impact Objectives UN SDGs

B gl 0
Provide high-quality, energy efficient homes
Acquire High-Quality Homes  incorporating adaptations for people with

lifelong care needs

Target properties which address the needs.
and improve health and wellbeing of
vulnerable individuais reguiring a high level

-

of care 3 ARwEHER 8 FOOWOM X CRIWTH
0 O o Local job creation during construction /\/
m Satisfy Social Need Employment via Approved Providers/ L ‘I'

refurbishments and care providers on

responsible employment terms. including

living wage

Offer local apprenticeships and contribute to

local community events

% Provide Value for Money for public care and
housing budgets by enabling vulnerable
Provid L2 T
% Value for Money individuals 10 move out to institutional and
residential settings

Buy and convert existing and newly
Increase Supply completed properties from private to social
housing sector in perpetuity

Ensure Approved Providers and Care
Providers have the capability and capacity

to deliver high-quality service and outcomes
@] Build Quality Partnerships for residents over the [ong term
Green lease terms to be agreed with the @
counterparties
Adopt sustainability policy at governance level

Governance

Counterparty Governance

CIM, the Company's Investment Adviser. has engaged actively with its Approved Provider partniers throughout the last
year, providing shared advice and learning through:

W
Monthly and quarterly i

Weekly meetings with . 5 ' }
key operational staff § meetings to review |
g strategic priorities !
§ and key performance i
i} indicators 5 g

This counterparty engagement has ensured that CIM is able to proactively work with its Approved Providers with any
matters arising to support a continued high level of operaticnal performance. This support builds on our
long-term relationship with the senior management and helping to build resilience within the organisations.

Monthly Seminars
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CIVITAS SOUTAL HOUSING
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Governance
Indices

CIM's implementation of the Board’s commitment to continuous improvement in its approach to ESG integration
remains core to the investment strateqgy. Over the last year, we have engaged with ESG Rating Agencies such
as GRESB (formerly Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark), MSCI (Morgan Stanley Capital International),

Sustainalytics, and EPRA sBPR.
What is it?

GRESB 15 he lzading sustamabiliny benchmark
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T AN ACC

Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the period and up to the
date of signing the financial statements were:

Michael Wrobel, Chairman

Michacl has over 40 years’ experience in the invesimen:
industry as a por:foilo manager and of running insti:.iona.
ousinesses and retail p.sinesscs at Fide.aty and Garunore. He

Serves as a ‘rustee direcior of the BAT UK Pension Fund. the Male 60%
Deuiscne Bank UK pension schemes and as a irustce of the
Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited Re:iremen: Benefits Scacme. Female 40%

Michae!l has previoasly served as a non-cxecutive Dircctor of
severd: invesiment tr.s's and a nur per of indasiry assaciations
Michaec! has an M A in Economics from Cambridge University.

Michael was appointed ;0 the Board on 24 Ocioner 2015 and aas
scrved as Cnairman since nis appointiren:.

Caroline Gulliver, Director

Caroiine is a charered acco.n:an: with over 23 years experience at Lrns: & You ng LLP Durnng tha: ame,
she spacia.ised in 11e asse: managemen: gector and developed cxiensive experience of invesimen:
rasis. Sne was a memocr of vanous technica. committees of ine Association of Inves:mrent Companics.
3aeis as0 a non-execalve direcior and a.di: commiiee cnair for JP Morgan G.oba. Cmerging Marxets
[ncome Trus: p.¢ Internationa: Bioiechno ogy Trus: picand aordn European Logistics Income pic

Caroling was appoinied 10 1nc Board on 24 Ocoper 2016 and has served as Audir and Managemen:
Engagemrcn: Commisiee Chalr since ner appointment.

Peter Baxter, Director

Petcr nas over 33 years expenence in e mvesiment managemen: indosiry. He is a direcior of Showpal

[nipac: Managemen: Lid. a socia. impact inves:men: organisasion, and a rusice of Trust for London, a

cnarnan o fowndation He is also a non-exccutive direcior of BlaccRocz Greater European Invesimen:

Tr.st p.cPreviowsiy, ne served as Coief Execuiive of 0.2 Mutua. Asse: Managers (JK) Lid, and has

worked for S3caroders and Hi. Samae. in a vanciy ol invesimrent ro.es [le ao.ds an MBA from London

B.siness Schoo. and 1s an associale ol 1ne Sociery of Invesimen: Professionas i

8

Polar was appomnied 0 e Board on 24 Geioner 2015 and 1s e Senior Independan: Direcior and
Nomination and Rem.neratton Commites Chairman,

Alastair Moss, Director

A_astair is a property deve.opiren: @wyCcr Wit over 20 yoars' experience and 1s a pariner a: Hi.
Dic<ipson. He was a non-exec.live ditector of Nowing Hi - Cenesis Tr.s: Heis aiso a former Chairman
of the Invesimen: Commuiiee of the Ciiy of London Corporation. its Propery Invesimen: Board and is

P anning and Transporiazion Comrmitee He is a Trosiee of Marsna.’s Chary. Fle aas a.so geen a poard
memper of Sano Housing Assoziation and was a memoer of ‘nc Area Board of Ciiy'Weas: ITames. He was
a Co.nci.or ar Wesintinsier Ciiy Counci. for 12 years, ino..ding n1s (en.re as Caairman of 1ne P.anning &
City Deve opmen: Commiiioo

Aasialr was apoatnied 1o ine Board on 24 Goooer 2015

. .
Alison Hadden, Director

A IsONn Nas over 30 yoary exosrisnce in e an
DOSINIONS 4T $evera Ima or 10 L8Ing assoclanon

sing mdasity and nag ned a namoer of FrecLive
ine Lding CEO a: Paradign: Ho.sing. In inese ro s, 810 !

nas worced wiin many of 1e siagcro.ders in e nd.astry, ne Lding (ae Reg. ator of Sooia. Ho.sing
Saes correnty Vice Unairand a memosr of 110 Govemnanae Commisae of Peaks and Fains Housing

and Chair of Hoyford Re

aneralion. a for-oroh HousINg A%so1a110n 00raing 1n 110 Snerae  area

Allson was appoinied 10 a2 Board on 31 Maovemoer 2019



Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Report and the audited consolidated financial statements

for the yvear ended 31 March 2023.

Principal Activities

The Company 15 a closed-ended invesimen: company
and 1s a RET which was mcorporazed in ongland and
Wales on 29 September 2016, The Company is the holding
company of a number of subsidianes and its Ordinary
shares were admitted to trading on the Main Marke:

of the London S:ock Exchange on '8 November 2076

The Company inves:s i properlies ur propery-holdisy
S2vs, either directly or via a wholly-owned subsidiary,

n accordance with the Company's investment obyective
and policy.

Business Review

A review of the business and future developmen:s 1s
contamned in the Chairman’s Statemen: and investmen:
Adwviser's Report The principal nsks and ancertaimties are
detalled on pages 30 10 33 See note 350 for a sammary of
-he pos: balance shee: events,

Results and Dividends
The regul:sg for the year are shown on page 4.

The following dividends were paid on the Ordinary
shares dunng the vean

Fourth quarterly

15é_75p per share

dividend paid on 28 june 2072
First quarterly 1425p par shara
dividend paid on § Seprember 2022
“Second quarterly S W‘.ﬂ.?'li.’fazbrpérrshare
dividend naid on 9 December 2022
Third quarterly o *47251 per share
dividend ~pawd on "€ March 2023

Since the yvear end, *he Company has declared the
following dividend:

774)‘;13 per share
___P_ald on S [ane szs

‘Fourth quarterly
dividend

No final dividend 15 being recommended on the Ordinary
shares,

Directors
The members of the Board are histed on page 48.

All Directors gerved throughout the period under review.

The Board consists solely of non-execuiive Directors,
each of whom 1s independen: of the Investmen: Adviser
The Company has no execusve Directors or employees.

‘n accordance with Board pohey, all irectors will retire
and. bemng ehagible, will stand for re-elecuon at the AGMV.

Parformance evaluanon of the 3oard, 1ts Commitieas and
mdividaal Jirectors is carned outin accordance with the
procedure sel 0u: on pages 56 and 57

No Director s under a contrac: of service with the
Company and no Direcior or any persons connecred
with them had a matenal inzerest in the transactioens
and arrangemen:s of the Company. Deralls of Directors’
remuneratlon are set out 1n :he Directors’ Remuneration
Repor:on pages &4 1o 67

The beneficial interests of the Direc:ors in the secunues
of ‘he Company are se: out in the Directors Remuneraton
Repor: on page 67,

Through their Levers of Appoiniment, the Company
has provided indemnities 1o the Directors, 10 the exten:
permitied by law and the Company's Arucles, in respec:
of habihities which may anse in connection with claims
relaning to their performance or the performance of the
Company whils: they are Directors. There are no other
qualifying third-pary mdemmues in foree

The general powers of the Jirectors are contained
within the relevan: LK legislaton and the Company's
Aracles of Associanon. The Direciors are enttled to
exercize all powers of the Company, subjec: to any
hmizations imposed by the Articles of Association or
apphcable legiglation As se:out on page 50, the Arnicles
of Association may only ke amended by way of a specal
resolution of shareholders.
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Report of the Directors
Continued

Capital Structure

Issue of Shares

Ar the AGM held on 1% Septermber 2022, the Mirectors were
authornsed 1o 1ssue QY SECUTtIes Up to all agygregate
nominal amoun: of £6°0,736 (being approximately 0% of
“he 1ssued Qrdinary share capizall

The Company was also authonsed o disapply
pre-emprtion righ:s 1 respect of equity secunties and

<0 issue equity sec.rites for cash up ‘o an aggrega‘e
nominal amount equal 10 £62C.736 (being approximately
0% of the1ssued Ordinary share capital.

Purchase of Own Shares
At the AGV held on b September 2022, “he Directors were

granted the author:y ‘0 buy back up 0 9.549,585 Ordinary

shares, bemng '4.99% of the Ordmary shares i 1ssue at the
ame of the passing of the resoluuon.

During the year, the 3card mantamed the Company's
share buyback programme, under which a roral of
6.050.0C0 shares have been purchased in:o treasury for an
aggregate amoun: of £4.624 94750 (nominal valae £6C,500,
representing 0.97%) as at 3! March 2023

The aathority o buy back up 10 97,549,383 shares will
expire a: the conclasion of the next AGM of the Company
or on 30 September 2023, whichever 1s earlier, when

a resolusion for 1zs renewal will be proposed. Turther
informazion will he contained in the Motice of AGM, which
w1l be circulated -0 sharehalders 1n due course.

Current Share Capital

As ar 3. March 2023 there were 622467, 380 Ordinary
shares 1n 1ssue, of which 76 075000 shares were held in
treasury, represeniing 2.6% of the Company's total issued
share caprral The otal voung nghts of the Company as a:
37 March 2025 was 606,386,380

Shareholder Rights
Ordinary Shares

~ach Ordinary shareholder s enttled ‘o one voie

on a show of hands and, on a poll. 10 one vore for
every Ordinary share held The ngh: to arend and
vore at general meenngs of the Company may be
resriced whare a shareholder has failled o provide
informasion pursuan. to a noice served under section
793 of *he Companies Act 2006, The Ordinary shares
carry the righs o receive dividends declared by the
Company. ’rovided the Company has =fred atl of
1z hakbilries, dunng a winding-ap of “he Company.
“he holders of Ordinary shares are enazled o all of the
surplus aszets of the Company.

Transfers of Shares

Thera s no resricnion an the wransfer of the Company's
zhares other “han ransfers o more than four join:
ransferses and sransfers of shares which are no- fully

paid up or where the —ransferor or any ocher person whom

“he Company reasonably believes o be interested 1n the
cransferor’s shares has been duly served with a notice

Ao

pursuans ~o secnion /93 of the Companies Ao 2006

There are no special nghts with regard to control atached
to securriies; no agreemens:s between holders of securities
regarding their transfer known o the Company: and no
agreemen:s which the Company 1S party o tha: tmight
affect ts control following a successful takeover nd.

Articles of Association

The Company's Aracles of Asscciauon may only be
amended by a special resolution at a general meeung of
‘he shareholders.

As at the date of signing this Repor, the towatl voung
rights of the Company was 606,386,380,

Management Arrangements

Investment Adviser

The 3oard has appointed the investmen: Adwiser, Civitas
nvestmen: Managemen: mited, 10 provide investmen:
advice and 10 asset manage the property porifolio and the
assoclated day-to-day actvines, inchiding managemen:
of tenanted properties and marketing acaviies C:M s g
speclalist Investor in soclal housing propersy, with a focus
on specialist soclal housing, and has extensive expenence
i social housing and real estare invesiment.

The duties of C2vanclude the sourcing of iInvesimens
opporaimiies tha: meet the invesimen: critena of the
Company, controlling the acagusinon of approved
properties, asse: managemen- of all properties within
“he porioho, ongoing monvonng of The propertes and
tenants, maintaiming comphance with all relevan: rules
and regulations, and providing markeang and inves:or
relations services 10 “he Company.

Deralls of the fees payable 1o “he 'nvestmen: Adviser are
descnbed i note 8.8 of the financial statements. The
basts for the calculazion of the ‘nvesimen: Adwvigser's fees s
based upon the 1133 MAY

The agreemen: with OV s terminable on nos less than
2 rmonths notce by erther party, guch nolice not to expire
earher han 50 May 2025,

The performance of the nvestmen: Adviser has

been reviewed on an ongoing basis throughoa the
penod by the 3oard a1z quarerly meeungs. A formal
annual evaluanon g also carned oat by the Audr and
anagemesn: ~ngagemean Commiies.

The 3oard considers a number of facrors imclading
Investmen: performance, ~he gualry and quantimy of
nvesimen: opporunites presented, the skills and
experience of key s1aff and “he capability and resources
of the ‘nvestmen: Adviser o dehiver sansfaciory
performance for the Company. The 3oard 1 sanshsd with
“he parformarice of “he nves:

-mens Adviger and constders
s coninued appointmern: o be in the best interesis of the
Company and s shareholders,

The 3oard has noted thencension of Weallness Loty
amitzed faowholly ovwned subschary of CX Asser Zoldings
_tmired) o mamnsam Civias _nvestimen: Yanagemern:
impted as nvestimen: Adviser to the Company once “hs
Takeover s completed. On 25 [une 2823, the Takeover Offar
became uncondional




Report of the Directors
Continued

AIFM

G10 Capizal Limured ("G'G7 or the "ATFM") has been
appomned as the Company's AlZM with effect from

24 Angust 2077, The AlFM currently recerves a monthly
fee of 2.7 basis ponts of the Company's to:al NAV for iis

services and the agreement 1s terminable on hree months’

notice by either pary.

Depositary

‘ndos Fiancial “amized was appointed as the Company's
Depositary with effect from 1 June 2018, The Depositary
provides cash monionng, safekeeping and asset
venficaiuon and oversigh: funciions as prescribed by the
Alternative Investmen: -und Managers Jireciive, The
Deposliary recelves an annual fee of £59.00C. net of VAT,
plus 0.006% of the firs: £350 million of any new equity
capnal raised per annum and 0.003% of further equity
raised per annum. subiec: ‘0 a maximum fee of £250,000
per annum. The agreemen: 1s terminabkle on s1x months’
notce by erther party

Administrator

The Company has appointed _ank Allernatve und
Admimsrators Limized ("Link”) as the Administrazor

of the Company and 18 subsidianes, with effec: from

28 “ebraary 2078, 10 underiake the accounzancy and other
adrmimisitatve duiles of the Company Tank 18 a speciahis:
admimistrator for investment funds, providing support
funcuons and experise talered for *his industry.

The Administrator receives a fixed base fee for the
provision of 178 services to the Company as well as an
entlermnen: (o addinonal vanable fees for dunes relating
0 corporate acnviies. The agreement 15 termnable on as
least six months nouce by either pary.

The dutes of the Administrator inclade the maintenance
of all Company and subsidiary books and records,
excluding those main:aimed by the nvesimean: Adviser,
monionng comphance with applicable relevan® rules and
regulations and other adminisrative duties as required.

Company Secretary

_ink Company Vatiers Limited was appointed as the
Company Secretary 1o the Company with effect from

28 March 20°8. The Secretary receives a iixed fee for the
provision of 17z services to the Company. The agreemen:
wag for an iminial pertod of one year and “hereafier

au-omasically renews for successive periods of 72 months,

unless terminated by evher party on at leasy six months’
noice.

Review of Service Providers

The performance of the service providers 1s reviewed

on an ongoing basis throughour the penod by the

Auadrr and Vanagemen: sngagemen: Commites and
formally once a year The Commizee considers a numhber
of factors mclading performance of dunies, the skills

and experience of key staff, and the capability and
resources of the gservice provider to dehver sausfaciory
performance for the Company.

‘I'he soard 1s gausfied with the performance of the service
providers appom:ed by the Company and considers their
coninued appoliniment ‘o be in the best interes's of the
Company and 1ts shareholders

Substantial Shareholdings

At 51 March 2023, the Company had been informed of
the following disclosable interes:s in *he share capital of
the Company:

Numbeor of  Percentage of

Qrdinary Total Voting

. _ shdres Righits
Investec Weal:h & Invesimen: Limired 62,653,821 i0.33 8
. Fad
5 a znskilda 3¢ ] _ L]
bkandmawska nskilda 3anken A3 6066567 -0.00 b
{(publ g
Srandard “afe Aberdeen 30,492,514 5.03 -
Massachusests Timancial 8 ey a
\“1 ‘E'ir("h 15€11s “inanclal Services 4030044 560 g
Company I~
R . E]
Tiney Smith & Williamson “amited 28,844 825 476 E
l.egal & General Group ?le {Group) 18,235,740 30 E
RlackRock. nc Falow 5% =

Continuation Vote

n accordance with its Articles, the 3oard preposed an
ordinary resoluuon thas the Company should continue
n1ts currens form w0 shareholders at the AGM held on
1% Seprembear 2022, As the resoluiion was approved by
shareholders, the Company will therefore connnue 1ts
business as presen:ly constinrted and will propose a
further connnuaarnon resolanon at the AGM in 2027 'The
Board 1s mindful that as the Takeover Offer by Weliness
Unty Limited (a wholly owned indirec: subsidiary of
C« Asser Roldings bimited) has on 2% June 2024 been
declared uncondinional. the resolunions proposed and the
forma- of the Company's future AGMs may be impacred.

Listing Rule 9.8.4

The hsting rule 9.84 outhnes a series of requirements
for sred companies 1o disclose certain iiems The
Directors confirm that the Company is required 10 make
a disclosure in respect of the diversiy requremeants
oulimed in Lisung Rule 9.8.6 (9) Thig disclosure can

e found on page 6. There are no further disclosures
recrtrad in relation 1o Lising 2ule 884

Financial Instruments

The Company ailises imancal msomimenss in s
operaiions. The financial instrumensts of the Company a:
30 Varch 20235 compnsed ‘rade recervables and payables.
other dehrors, cash and cash equivalents, non-cuarrent
Lorrowings, current borrowings and denvatives,

Orher than s fixed InTeres! rate debr facilities, 1713 the
Nrectorg opimon that the carrying value of all inanacal
mstraments on the Congohidated Stazemen: of “inancial
Posinion 1 equal "o therr fair value

10085 SY.LIALY

I'or a more detailled analysis of the Company's fiinancial
risk management, please refer o note £.0 of *he
financial slaements
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Report of the Directors
Continued

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Board has considered the requurements o disclose
“he annual quanty of emussions in tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalen: for acivinies for which the Company
1s responsible. The Board beleves that the Company
has. from a formal reporing perspectve, no reporable
ermssions as this reporting falls under the lessees’
responsibihizy as par: of the terms of theur fully repaimng
and msunng leases: emissions prodiuced from elther

“he regnstered office of the Company or from the offices
of other service providers are deemed o fall under the
responsibility of other paraes: and the Company has not
leased or owrned any vehicles which fall inside the scope
of the G=G ?rotocol Corporate S:andard. in relazion 0
‘he Srreamlined Energy and Carlzon Reporting (SZCR},
implemented by The Companies {Oirectors Report and
_imred Laability Rartnershups (snergy and Carbon Repord)
Regulanons 2018, for the year ended 3° March 2023 “he
Group 1s considered o be a low energy user

Regardliess of the obhganons of other paries, the
Company takes the ssue of environmen:al enhancemens
and emissions seriously as par: of 11s overall =8G strateqgy
and 1s evaluaing the portfolio, working with housing
managers. to consider where 12 can bring abou: further
enhancemern:s and improvements.

Curther details can be found in the =nvironmenszal. Secial
and Governance report on pages 57 1o 16,

Political donations

No pohacal donanons were made by the Company or 133
subsidianes dunng the year or the pror year

Charitable Donations

n addizion 1o s direct invesimen:s, the Company plays
a broader par: within the communiaes in which
works., Whils: recognising the practcal imizanons tha:
all financial iwvestors face, Civizas suppors voluntary
organisations that are aciave within the broader housing
and homelessness environmen:. Civizas also intends, as
par: of s broader financial and operanonal reporang. o
provide a commentary on :he posimive goclal change
and impac: *ha: resdls from the invesimenss tha: have
been made

The following chan-able donatons were pad dunng “he
Fear

Chary Donation

Choir wnth Ne Name o te:
—ousge of 3 3arnalkas £40.708
VWSS FEGRSG

The Care Wwaorkers Chanty

Toral o ) o
Independent Auditors

11 “he case of each Director in office at the date the Repor
of “he Jireciors 1s approved

e 5o far asthe Owrsctor 12 aware, There 1s no relevan-
audi informanion of which the Group and Companys
auditors are naware, aned

e hey have taken all the steps that they ough: to have
taken as a Dwrector in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audininformanon and to establish tha:
“he Group and Company s audiors are aware of that
informarion,

ricewaterhouseloopers .2 has expressed 1ts willingness
o conunie 1o act as aadizors of the Company and a
resolunion for 1:g re-appoin:men: will ke proposed at the
2023 annual general meeung. The Board 15 mindful thar,
should as akeover offer by Wellness Unuy Limuved (a
wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CK Asset Holdings
Limied) has on 23 June 2023 been declared uncondiiionatl,
the resoluuons proposed and he forma: of the Company's
AGN may hempacted.

Takeover Offer Process

On 9 May 2023, the Company announced tha: the 3oard had
reached agreement with Wellness Lty _imirted {a wholly
owned indirect subsichary of CK Azset Soldings _imized)
(the 'Offeror’} on the terms of a recommended all-cash
offer for the enuressuied share caprzal of the Company. «©
e mplemented by a Takeover Offer {the "Offer”.

Under the :erms of The Offer, each shareholder will be
eniled o recewve 80 pence in cash for each share held

n the Company. 'naddimon, shareholders who were on
‘he reqister a: the close of business on "9 May 2023 were
ended o recewe and retain the fourth quarer dividend
of 1425 pence (n respect of the penod . January 2023 70

3 Varch 2023

arther on 22, Vay 2023 the Company 1ssued a circular to
shareholders with respec: ‘o0 “he recommended cash offer.
which ser ous tha: for sharehaolders 1o accept the Offera
Form of Acceprance mus: be received by the Recerving
Agen: nolater than 2° July 2023, Subsequent o “his, the
daze for shareholder Torm of Acceprances To ba received
Iy the Recerving Agens was brough: forward 10 23 June
2025 0n 25 Jane 2023, the offeror announced ~ha: ~he offer
was declared uncondimonal.

The 3oard, which has been adwvised by “he Company's
Jons 3rokers (Panmure Gordon and Liberam) as o the
financial terms of the Offer. considers the terms of the Offer
-0 be fair and reasonakla

The Offeror has indwcated s incension ubjec: w0 the Offer
being declared uncandimional with the Offeror ob-aimning
75 per cen:or more of the voring nghts of -he Company?;
~o deiist the Company from he ~ondon 3:ock =xchange
Vain varkes for hsied securinies and thereafrer re-reqister
~he Company as a pnvate limred company ag soon as
pracucable follownng the cancellatnion of isting and
rading of the Company's shares This process wall ~ake
place following the release of “h= Annual Repor.,

Corporate Governance

The Corporaze Governance 3-a~emens, “he 2epor- of the
fAadr and Vanagemean: sndgadgerment Commitee and “he
Jrectors Remuaneration lepors form pars of the epor of
“he Nitecrors

Approval

The Repor of the Jirecors has been approved Ly “he 3oard.
3y order of “he 3oard

Link Company Matters Limited

Company secreary
28 ane 202

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF LINK COMPANY MATTERS LIMITED
COMPANY SECRETARY D c fwd,__..-




Corporate Governance Statement

Background

The FCA Lisung Rules and Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules require hsted companies o disclose
how they have applied the principles and complhied

with the provisions of the comorate governance code

0o which thessuer 15 subject. The provisions of the U¥
Corporate Governance Code ("UK Code’). as 1ssued by the
FRCn July 20°8. are applicable 0 the year under review
and can be viewed at www.frc.org.uk.

The Board has considered the principles and
recommendations of the AlC Code of Corporaze
Governance {'AlIC Code” ag 1ssued by the AIC 1n February
20°9. The AIC Code addresses all the prninaples set our 1n
the UK Code, as well as semuing our addinonal principies
and recommendanions on ssues that are of specific
relevance 10 the Compaily g8 an invesimen?: company.
The 7RC has confirmead tha: A'C member companies
who report agamst the A'C Code will be meeung their
obhgations in relation 1o the UK Code and -he associated
digclosure requiremen:s of the FCA. The A'C Code can be
viewed at www.theaic.co.yk

The 3oard considers that reporting agains: the principies
and recommendanons of the AIC Code provides
shareholders with full details about the Company's
corporate governance complance.

Statement of Compliance

=xcep: as set ou: below, the Company has complhied
with the provisions of the AC Code throughou: the year
ended 3! March 2823

Provision 23: Directars ara no: appointaed for a spembed
term. as all rectors are non-execuuve and the Board
bebeves tha:a irector's performance and their
conuanued contribuiion o the ranning of *he Company
s of greater imporiance and relevance o sharsholders
than the length of ume for which rhey have served as a
Drector of the Company. 2ach Jirecior 15 subtect 10 the
election and re-eleciion provisions se: out i the Aricles
which provide that a Jirector appointed dunng the year
1s required o retire and seek elecuon by shareholders
at the next annual general meenng following ther
appomiment. Thereafier the Directorg intend o offer

rhemselves for re-elecion annualty and will aim o nos be

un the Joard for more “han nine years

The UK Code includes provisions relaing o

e ‘he role of the chief execuuve, and
s  executive directors remuneralon.

The 3card considers “hat “hese provisions are not relevant
to the position of the Company, being an exernally
managed Invesimen: company. -n particualar all of the
Company's day-to-day managemen: and adminigirative
funcnons are oussourced to chird partes. As a resulr,

*he Company has no execunve Dwectors, employees

or internal opearanions The Company has therefore no:
reported further in respect of these provisions

The Board

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the 3oard

15 regponsible for the effective stewardship of the
Company's affairs, including corporate sraregy,
corporate governance, risk assessment and overall
inves:ment policy. The Sirectors have overall
responsibihity for the review of investment actuvity and
performance, and the supervision of the ‘nvestment
Adviser which 1s responsible for the day-to-day asset
management of the Company's portfclio.
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The Board consists of five non-executive Directors.
seeks 1o ensure tha: 1r has an appropriate balance of
skills and expenence, and considers that, collectvely, 1-
has substanual recent and relevan: expenence of palkhc
company managemen:, the U{real estate sec:or, social
housing and investmen: companies. All the Direciors are
independent of the nvestmen: Adviser and the ATTM.

The 3card has adop:ed a schedille of maers reserved
for decision by the 3oard, mmcluding inter aha,
determiming the Company's invesimen: objective and
policy, and gearng and dividend pohlcies. This schedule
of martters regerved for the 3oard 1s availlable on the
Company's website

The Direciors ensure “has nisks are effecuvely managed
“hrough robust policies and procedures, supporied by
“he nght values and culture. The Board's prnimary focus
15 the sustainabkle long-term success of the Group o
dehver value for shareholders, taking inio accounst other
s:akeheclders.
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Corporate Governance Statement

Continued

‘'he 3card s responsible for inves:men: decistons, other
shan o the exien: delegated 10 the A 7M and/or “he
Investment Adviser, and the appoiniment, supervision
and momenng of the Company's service providers,
including amongs: others, the ATFM and the nvesimen:
Adwviser. The 3oard 18 responsible for the internim and
annzal financial statements of the Company and. In
conjuncuon with the All'M, also approves the penodic
calculanion of the Net Asset Value.

The Chairman. Michael Wrobel, was independen: of

‘he nvestment Adviser at he tnme of his appointmen:
and 1s deemed by hig fellow Jirectors o continue o be
independen: n character and judgemen: and free of
any conflicang relatienships. He leads the 3oard and

15 responsible for 11s overall effectiiveness in directing
the Company. .n haison with “he Company Secretary, he
ensureas that the Directors receive accurate, amely and
clear informauon. Mr Wrobel considers himself 1o have
sufficien: ume o commits o the Group's affairs. Fe has no
significant commitmen:s other han those disclozed in
his biography on page 48. The role and responsibilines of
he Chairman are clearly defined and se? ous in wrising, a
copy of which 1z avallable on the Company's website,

Zarer 3axter 18 the Senior ndependen: Jirector of

“he Company. =e provides & sounding board for

-he Charrman and serves as an imermediary for the
other Direcors and shareholders, He also provides a
channel for any shareholder concerns regarding *he
Chairman and takes the lead in the annual evaliuanon
of the Chairman by the other Jireciors The role and
responsibihities of the Senwar ndependen: Jirecior are
clearly defined and se: out i wnung, a copy of which s
avalable on the Company's welzsie.

The 3oard hag no se: policy for the length of teniure of
Directors al*hough 1z keeps in muind the recommendasions
of -he AC Code dunng succession planning 71g the
3oard’s pohicy for all Directors o stand for re-election
annually. Recommendanons for elecion/re-elecion of
directors are made on anindividaal basis following
rigorods review ‘Nrectors are appointed under letrers of
appoimtment, coples of which are available forinspecion
ar the remizrered office of the Company and a7 the AGY/

Board Operation and Culture

The Board mee:s formally a* leas: quarterly. bu: also
meets on an ad hoc basts for the purpose of considerning
potenual ransacuons and associated due diligence.
The 3oard will meet o consider and, if appropriaze,
approve the acquisiuon of properties recommended

by the Invesimen: Adwiser. The nvestmnen: Adwviser
prepares an ;nvesimen: Proposal aper (7227 in respect
of the proposed acquisiiions which inctudes details

of the ransacnion and due diligence reports. Lpon
review of the PP, the 3oard contemplazes the siructure
of the rransacnon, any nisks arzached :o the proposed
rransacuon and how these would be mitigated/managed,
and the impact of the transacnon on the value of the
Group's proper:y por:folio, following advice from

“he valuers

for the purpose of momronng the porsfoho, the Board
recerves periodic repors from the AW and the
nvestmen: Adviser. detalling the performance of the
Company. The Board delegazes cerzain responsibilinies
and funcuons to the Audir and Managemen: “ngagemen:
Commuiziee, which has wrnien terms of reference,

To assist the 3oard in the day-to-day operations of the
Company, arrangements have been put in place 7o
delegate authorny for performing certain operatons o
the ATV “he Investment Adviser and other third-pary
service providers, such as the Administraror and the
Company Secreary

The Chairman demonagrazes obecrive judgemen:,
promozes a cdlure of openness and debase, and
faciizates effecuve contnibunons by all Directors, The
Oirectors are required o act wrh ntegny, lead by
example and promore this culzure within the Company

The 3oard seeks *o ensure ‘he alignmen: of the
Companys purpose, values and srategy with the culrure
of openness, debate and integnty through ongoing
dialogue and engagemen: with the nvesimen: Adwviser
and the Company's other service providers. The 3oard
and rhe nvesimen: Adviser operaze in a supporive.
co-opearatye and open environmens,

The 3oard schedules yearly meenings with the board of
“he nvesmen: Adviser, one of the purposes of which 1s
to recewe an insightnto the cal-ure of -he nvesimens
Advizer



Corporate Governance Statement
Continued

The culture of the Board 1s considered as par: of

the annual performance evaluation process which

15 undentaken by each Director. The culiure of the
Company’s service providers is also considered by the
Audit and Managemen: Engagement Cominittee dunng
the annual review of Thetr performance and while
considering their conunuing appolinmen:.

The Company maintains Dwrectors and Officers” habiliy
insurance on behalf of the Directors a- the expense of
“he Company, which was in force dunng the year ended
41 March 2623 and remains in force as at the date of this
repor.. The 3oard has agreed arrangements whereby
wrectors may take independens: professional advice

in the furtherance of theiwr duties. The Company has

also indemnified the Jirecrors in accordance with the
provisions of the Arucles of Assccianon.

Independence of Directors

The independence of all Jirectors 1s reviewed as pars of
the annual agsessmen: of the 3oard.

The 3card has derermined that each Director remains
independen: in character and judgemen: and 15 free of
any relationships or circums:ances tha: threaten their
independence of the Company or tig ‘nvestment Adviser
n paricular none of the Mireciors have ever been
execuives of the Company or the nvestmen: Adviser,
have had a matenal direct or indirec: relanionship

with the Company or i's stakeholders, have recewved
disproporaonate fees, have close family relationships
with stakeholders or represen: significant shareholders.

Board and Committee Meetings

A formal agenda 12 approved by the Chairman and
crredlared by the Company Secretary in advance of

each meenng o the non-execunive Directors and other
attendees A typical agenda includes: an analysis of
por:folio performance and exposure: an update on

‘he invesimen: pipeling; the Company's finanaal
performance; updates on mvestor relations; s:atuiory and
reqgulatory comphance, and any corporate governance
maners. Relevan: papers on thezems included on the
agenda are circdlazed in good tme w0 the members of
-he 3oard and 1zs Commiiees. In advance of the meeunyg

The Invesimen: Adviser arzends the 3oard meetings
~ogether with representanves from the A7V and
Company Secreary Representanives of the Company's
o~her adwvizers are also invited o aiend 3oard and
Commiiee mealngs from ime 1o tme.

The number of Board, Audiz and Managemen:
Engagement Committee and Nomination and
Remuuneranon Commitiee meeings held dunng the year
ended 3. March 2023 along wrth the attendance of the
Directors 1s set out below:

Audit and
Management
Engagement

Nomination and

tnarterly Romid Remunetanon

Meelindgs Committes Conmumittee

Humbet Number Mumber

entitled Mumber entitled Number entitled Mumbet

wattend atiended (oattend  attended  toattend  atlended
Micnacal
Wrobel 4 4 3 3 1 1
Aasiair
Moss 4 1 3 3 1 1
Allson
[Tadden 4 1 3 3 1 1
Caro.ne
Gul.iver 4 4 3 3 1 1
Peler
Baxter 4 1 3 3 1 1

The 3vard 1s scheduled 1o meet an a quuarierly basis.

1 addrtion 1o these meeungs the Joard also met on
three occasions to approve the NAV and drwvdend
declarations and on a further " occasions on an ad hoc
basis

Committees

The Company operates through the 3card and its two
3oard commiiees, namely the Audir and Managemen:
sngagemen: Commitese and the Nominauon and
Remunearaton Commisee (the “Commizees’) The 3oard
evaluazes the membership of -he Commitees on an
annual basis.

Audit and Management Engagement
Committee

The Audl: and Managemen: tngagemen: Commities
compriges all Directors. Carohine Gulliver, the Chair of
<he Audir and Managemen: Sngagemen: Commitiee,
18 a Charered Accountan: and s considered o have
recen: and relevan: financial experience. The Audit
and Managemen: kngagemen: Commi~ee as a whole
has competence relevant o the real eglate Invesmen:
Ccompany secIor

The Chairman 1s a member of the Audi and Vanagemen:
“ngagement Commitee, but does not chair 17, =18
membership of the Aadiz and Vanagemen: mngagemen:
Comrmiree s consdered appropriate given the small

size of “he 3oard and the Charman's knowledge of

the financlal services indusry A copy of the terms of
reference of ~he Audir and Managemen: mngagemen:
Commizee 15 avallalle from the Secrerary and on the
Company's welisie
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Corporate Governance Statement

Continued

he Commuitiee mee:s a: leas: three imes a year and
raviews the scope and resul:s of the external audit, 1:s
cos: effectaiveness and the independence and objecuvity
of “he external audrrors, including the provision of
non-aadis services.

The Commiz:ee also reviews the terms of the AII'M
agreement and rhe ‘nvestment Adviser agreemens:, and
examines the effecuvenesg of the Company's internal
control systems and the performance of the AITM,
‘nvestmen: Adwviser, Admimistraror, Depositary, Company
Secreary and Regisrar. and other service providers.

The Repor: of the Audit and Management sngagemen:
Commuiiee 1s set out on pages 60 1o 672,

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

The Nominanon and Remuneration Cominittee 1s
compnsed of all 2irectors and the Chairrman 1s the Senior
ndependen: Drrecior, Peter Baxter The Numinauorn

and Remuneratnon Committee meets as required for the
purpcse of considernng recnniment to and removalsg from
‘he Board; levals of remuneration pald 1o the Directars;
and review of the Direciors Remuneranon Report and
Remuneranon Polhcy. A copy of the terms of reference

of the Remuneraion and Nominanon Commisieea s
avallable on the Company’s website and 13 avallable by
recquest from the Company Secretary.

Board Diversity

The 3aard acknowledges the “CA rules on diversiy and
mchizion on company hoards

The Board 1z compnsed of a mixsure of individuals who
have an appropnate balance of skills and experience o
mee? the furdare opporsaniies and challenges facing the
Company. Appoinimenss to the 3oard are made primarily
on meriz. though the 3oard unders:ands he importance
of diversity in corporaze governance and rakes in:o
considerazion a vanesy of demographic annbases

and characrensnics when making decisions on 118
compaosition, The 3oard s aware of the new “asiing Rule
‘hati1s on a comply or explain’ basis which incorporates
‘he recommendations of the Parker and “ampTon-
Alexander Reviews which considered howr ethnuc,
cul-aral and gender diversiry could be improved on X
boards The 3oard has discuassed the new ethmic diversioy
discloguras regquired, namely. “hat from accounning
penods starang on ar after " Apnl 2022

a: atleast 407 of indrvidaals on the 3eard “o ke women,

bl atleas one zenor 3oard posmon to be held by a
womarn, and

b atleas- one ndividual on the 3card "0 ke from a
rminonTy ethre kackgroand

‘n accordance with Lasting Rule 9 Annex 2.1 the below
-able in prescribed format, show the gender of the
Directors at the year ended. The data below was
collecred through self-reporang by the Directors.

Numbcr of

Nuwmber of Percentage on  senion positions

Gender denlly or sex Board members the Board (%) on the Board

Man 3 60 2

Women 2 40 -
No: specificd/prefer

QL0 s5ay = - -

) . i Number of

Numbet of
Roard maembers

POrCenrage on  SenIor positons

Ethnie background the Boatd (%) on the Board

Winikie Britsn or ouner

White (ine wding

MINerioy white

Grouns) 5 100 2
Mixed/M
Grouos - - -

o.c Ethnic

Asgian/Amian Britisn

Blac/nfnean/

Caripbean/B.ack

Brizisn - - -
O hor ¢RI grosg

mnc.uding Arap - - -
Noospaecited/prefer

no: o say - - -

The 3oard 1z mindful that az presens, 1t does not comply
wizh the new ethnic and gender repregentation in
senor posiion diversity reqrirements and. the 3oard.
via The Nomunaion and Remuneranon Commiee, 1s
-aking appropriate steps 1o ensuare has Board siccession
planning takes these diversity requiraments 1o
consideraion

Induction of New Directors

A proceduare for the mdacton of new Directors has been
eztabhished, mcludmg the provision of anainduaciion pack
contaning relevan: informanon aboas “he Company

178 processes and procedures and meeimgs with the
Chairman and relevan: persong a: the nvestmen- Adwviger

Performance Evaluation

“or the year under reviavs. “he oard under-cok

an mnternal parformance evalaanon by way of
quesnionnaires designed "o assess “he srengths and
ndependence of he 3rnard and the Chairman. indrvidaal
Olreciors and “he performance of “he Soard’s Commuitees,
The areas conzsidersd are

e che frequency and effectiveness of 3oard and
Commites mesangs:

e “he si7e cOMPOSTIon and relevin” expenear of “he

Joard;



Corporate Governance Statement
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e theindependence and performance of the Direcrors
and the 3oard; and

e the rrammmng requirements of each Jirectorn

The evaluation process 1s facilizated by the Company
Secreiary under the Chawrman's direction and stractured
1o provide Directors with an opportdnity to express
their views in addinion to answenng specifiic quesions.
Peter 3axter, as the Senior independent Director, leads
“he appraisal of the Chairman. The 3oard undertook an
external Board performance evaluauon in 2027 and 15
cognisant of thetr advantages. [t will keep this eplion
under regular review.

The Company seeks to ensure tha: the 3oard has a
balance of skills and expenence hat are complementary
and enable the Board 10 operate efficien:ly.

All of the rec:ors have assessed “heir other ongoimng
commuitmen:s and are satisfied tha: they can commi- the
time necessary 0 execJte their duzies to the Company.

No significan: 1ssues were 1dencified dunng the evaiuanon
process. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
considers that all of the current rectors make an effective
contribution and have the requisite skills and expenence
o0 conunue 10 provide able leadership and direction for
the Company. 2 was agreed “hat all Jirectors should be
recommended for re-election at the next AGHW. The 3oard
12 mundfal thar should as Takeover Offer by Wellness
Lnity Limited {(a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CK
Asser holdings imited) has on 25 June 2024 been declared
anconditional, the resolutions proposed and the forma: of
“he Companys AGM may be impacted.

The Board concluded that each Durector brings consideralsle
experise and expernence w the 3oard and the Board
operazes with good independen: ‘hough* and challenge.

All Board members have assessed “heir ongoing
commitments and are sansfied that they can commue: the
ame necessary to execate their duaes to the Company.

The Board also uses the performance evaluation as an
opporanty o review and discuss strateqic 1ssues for
“he Company.

Conflicts of Interest

All Directors have a statutory responstbihzy 1o avoild
sivdations where a confber of interest exis:s, or may

ex1sT, berween the Company and an entity that the
Orector 1s erher direcily or indirectly involved with

The 3oard has procedures in place todenafy peienal
conflicrs and resolve any that should ange n the caze of
a conflict of interes:, the nature and exten: of the conflic:
are aszeszed agans: the existing iniernal control sTmiciure.
and the resuls of This assessmen: and achions taken o
resolve the conflict are documented in the minutes of
the relevan: 3oard meenng. No conflic:s of interest arase
dunng the perniod.

Health and Safety

Fealth and safety 1s of prime imporrance o the

Company and s considered equally with all other
business managemen: activities 1o ensure protection of
stakehnlders, bre they tenants advisers, suppliers, visitors
or ozhers. The Board regularly discusses health and safety
1ssues with the invesimen: Adwnser

The Company s committed o fostering the highes:
standards in health and safety as 17 belhieves that all
unsafe acts and unsafe conditions are preventable All
our stakeholders have a responsgibilizy o support the aim
of engunng a secure and safe environment, and all our
stakeholders are jasked with responsibtilizy for achieving
“his commitment.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Direc:ors are responsible for the sys:ems of internal
conirol relating o the Company and 115 subsidianes,
and he rehabihty of the financial reparang process and
for reviewing their effectrveness, ensunng tha: the nisk
managemen: and control procesges are embedded 1n
day-io-day operations.

An ongoing formal process, 1n accordance with the

SRC Guidance on Risk Managemens, ‘nternal Control

and Related Tnancial and 3usiness Reporung, has heen
estabhshed foridenufying, evaluaung and managing the
principal and other rigks mos: ikely o impact the Grouyp.
This process. which 1s regularly reviewed. together with
key procedures established with a view 0 providing
effecuve financial control, has been in place throaghout
the year ended 3! March 2024 and up 0 the date of this
Report.

‘The Audi: and ¥anagemen: thgagemen: Commiiee has
1in place a formal procedure for performing an cngong
robust agsessmen: of the Group's nsk managemen:

and internal control sys:ems. A nsk matnx has been
estabhshed against which the nisks identufied and the
controls in place 1o mingate those risks can he monttored
The nisks are assessed on the basig of the hkelihood of
‘hem happening. the mpac: on the buginess if they were
0 occedr and the effectuiveness of the controels in place

o miigate Them. ‘narnving at iis judgement of whas
rigks the Company faces, the 3oard has considered the
Company's operanons in the ligh: of -he following factors:

e thenature and exten: of risks which 1r regards as
acceptable for the Company w0 Lear within 1:s overall
basimess objecave;

e hehrear of such risks becoming realy,

e “he Companys abilizy to reduce the incidence and
impac: of ngk on1zs performance: and

e *hecosg:tohe Company and benefire related zo the
Company and "hird parues operaung the relevan-
consrols.
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The risk mainx 15 reviewead Twice a year by the
Comrmitiee and at other times as necessary. The principal
nisks facing the Company are se: our an pages S0 20 33 of
-his Annual Report, cogether with ~he processes applied
0 muigate those nsks

Orn an annual basis the Committee reviews the coniral
repor:s of 1is key service providers and the auditors note
any deficiencies 1n mmternal controls and processes tha:
have been identified during the course of the audue

The Audl and Managemen: Engagement Commitiee 1
mindful of these key nsks as well as considenng evolving
and emerging nsks such as the impact of the ongoing
Ukraime-Russia conflict, long-term climate change and
cyber securny which have the potennal 1o affect the Group.
The Commuttee ensures that the 3card 1akes appropnate
adwvice and debates theissues facing the Group.

Az each 3card meeiing, “he 3card receves reports from
‘he nvestment Advizer, the Admims:rator, the A and
“he Broker in respec: of compliance acuviiies, Company
financial performance and financial posision.

‘I'he con:rols. which are regularly reviewed, aim o
ensure tha: the asses of the Company are safeguarded,
proper accodning records are maimtained, and “he
financial informanon used within the business and for
vubhcation g rehakle. The nsk management process
and Company systems of internal controls are designed
<o manage rather than eliminate the nsk of faillure o
achieve the Company's objecnves and can only provids
reasonabile bui not absolute, assurance agains: matenal
missIalemens or luss,

The Direcrors have carnted out a review of the effeciiveneass
of the Company's risk managemen: and mternal consrol
systems as they have operated over the penod and up o
‘he date of approval of *he Annaal Repor. Dunng “he course
of the review. the 3nard has no: 1dentified nor been advised
of any failings or weaknesses which 17 has derermimed o be
significans

The Jireciors have considered “he appropnatenass of
establishing an internal audr funciion and. having regard
‘o the stractare and natare of he Company's acavites,
has concluded that “he funcion s unnecessary. The Aadr
and Yanagemen® “ngagement Commiree will reviews

on an annial basis “he need for “has funcaon and make
appropnate recommendations 1o “he 3oard.

Financial Reporting

The 3oard operaras the following key conrols in relanon
o fiinancial reporiang:

e ~"he Joard and Commitcee members review (quarierly
managemean: repor:s and supporing documents “ha-
are provided by the nvesimen: Advizer

s -h= 3oard has procedures in place for the approval
of expenses and payments -0 “hird pares and

e ‘he Commiriee members and 3oard review all
financial mformaton and announcements pror
<o publicatuon.

Corporate Responsibility

The Company regards comporae responsinlicy as
inzegral to how 1t conducss irs business. tig commisted ‘o
being a good corporate c1m1zen and behaving regponsibly
with a demonstrated rransparency of approach

To achieve this goal, the Company applies the following
prnnciples @0 its operations:

Business Conduct

The Company's iInvestmen: decigions are made on he
basis of generating shareholder value and ensunng

‘he long-term siiccess of the business. The selectiion of
supphers will ke made independensly by -he Company's
Directors upon advice from the ‘nvestmen: Adwviser

and in the best interes:s of the Company. The Board

will ensure thar appropnate controls are in place 1o
guarantee independence from the supply chain.

All customers and supphers will be reared faurly and
responsibly.

The Company will no: provide financial suppor: o
pohncal paries or polinicians,

The Company 1s resalizely opposed to bribery and
corruaprion The Company will no: use any illegal or
improper means 1o further 17s business interests, nor will
1= accept any forms of inducements intended o mfhience
178 INVesTmen: decisions.

Governance

The Company will prorac: the inrerests of 178 shareholders
and other stakeholders “hrough comphance with relevan:
legal and regulatory environmentg, and ‘hrough effective
managemen: of business nsk and opporuny

The 3oard will ensurs thatits members are raly
independen:. are competen: and have ‘he resources and
suppor: required o perform ~heir duties opaimally, and
~hatthe 3vard’s decistons are made in the bes:in-ares's
of the Company and 1:s shareholders The performance
of *he 3oard wnll be reqularly reviewed. and Direcors will
raire as and when cdeemed appropriate by -he 3oard in
accordance with bes praciica
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Socially Responsible Investment

The Board aims to be a socially responsible investor
and believes that it 1s 1importan: 1o inves: 1n speciahs:
social housing properiies in a responsible manner in
respect of environmental, erhical and gocial 1ssues. The
invesimen: Adviser's evaluanon procedure and analysis
of the properiies within the por:folio includes research
and appratsal of such matzers. and takes into accoun:
environmental and social policies and other busihess
1S58

farther details on the social impac: of the Company's
mvestments are included in the Social ‘'mpact repor: from
The Good Economy. a summary of which can be found
on page 40,

The Company recognises that environmental protection,
rezource effictency and sustainable developmen: are
necessary 1o ensudre that environmen:al damage is
lIimized and furthermore “hat, where relevan:, positive
actons should be -aken 10 improve the existing
envircnmen: for future generations.

Transparency

The Company aims o be fransparens, and 10 ensure
thar 1t commumcates with iis shareholders and
other stakeholders in a manner har enhances their
unders:anding of its business.

The Company mMairntaing accodning documertaion
tha: clearly idennufies the rue nawre of all business
transactions, asse:s and habihties, in hine with the
relevant regulazory. accouning. and legal requlirements.
No record or entry 1s knowingly false, distored,
incomplete, or suppressed.

All reporang s matenally accurate and complete and

n compliance 1n all material respects with gtated
accouanting pohcies and procedures. The Company does
no: knowingly missiate or misrepresent manageiment
nformanaon for any reagon, and the Company expec:s the
same o apply 1o s supphers

The Company may be required to make stazements

or provide reports 1o regulatory bodies, government
agencies or other governmen: departments, as well as to
he medha. The Company ensures that sach statements or
reports are correct, imely, and not misleading, and thaz
-hey are deliverad through the appropnate channels.

The Company provides, through 118 websiie, 1ts Annual
Report and other statemen:s. appropriate mformation
w0 enable shareholders and siakeholders to assess

the performance of 1ts business. 't comphes with

“he applicable laws and requlations concerning the
disclosure of informanion relanng o the Company.

Communities

The Company aims to ensure that 1's properties which
are agssociated with the provision of health services
provide significan: value-adding facilities in the
commuanities where it Inves:s,

Relations with Stakeholders

Detalls regarding the Company's engagemen: with 1ts
stakeholders are set out within the Strategic Repor: on
pages 7710 25,

Approval

The Corporate Governance Statemen: has been approved
Lxv the 3oard.

3y order of the 3oard

Link Company Matters Limited

Company Secre:ary

28 June 2023
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Introduction

The Audir and Management Zngagemen: Commitee (Che
“Cornmuiee” oversees the financial reporiang process for
“he Company. with considerazion of the internal controls
and nsk managemens: of the Company. and oversigh: of
the Company's comphance with accounung standards
and regulatory requiremern's. : also oversees the
performance of the investmen: Adwviser and the Company's
adminustrazive and company secretarial suppor:.

Composition and Role of the Audit and

Management Engagement Committee

The Commuiee 1s chaired by Caroline Gullhiver and
comprises all the Directors. The Commiee operates within
wren terms of referenice which are avallable on the
Company's wehsite as determuned by the Soard.

The prnnaipal funcnons of the Committee are to:

e oversee the financal reporang process for the
Company and moniar the integriry of the financial
stazernents of the Company and the Group, including
“heir comphance with accounnng standards and
requlatory requirements:

e advise the 3oard, where reques:ed, on whether the
Annagal Repor: and hiiranaal stazemenss, taken as a
whole, are fair, balanced and unders:andable and
pravide “he informanon necessary for shareholders
0 assess the Company's posiuon and performance,
buasiness model and s'rategy.

e review and momnzor the internal financial conirol and
rgk managemesnt sysems of the Company,

e monror and review annuaally whether an internal
audi funcion s required:

e review the nvestmen: Advisers whistleblowing
arrangements,

e approve The appolninient, re-appomimeans of
removal of -he external audrors, and approve “heir
remuneraion and terms of engagemen:,

e manage the relanionship hetweaen the Company
and he external audirors. including reviewng their
mdependence and objecuvity and the effeciiveneass of
“he audit process:

e develop and implemen: a policy on “he engagemens
of he exrernal audi-ors o supply non-aadi” services,
and

e revievr and momcor the performance of and
concractaal arrangemen:s with, ‘he ‘nvesimen:
Adwviser. the AT7 and other service providers

s wthin “he Communee s “atms of reference for s
members ‘o seek independen: professional advice. az the
Company g expense, as required in “he furherance of vs
dianes

Meetings

The Commuises mee:g three 1IMes a yaar o Wwo
occasions, pars of the meaiang 1# held with “he exernal
audirors wrhou: “he nvestmen: Adwvizer prezens The
Comirmi—ee me: chree ames in “he finanaal year and “he
meaings were arendead By gach membear ag #2” 0" on
zage vs.

Performance Evaluation

The process for <he evaluanon of the performance of he
Commutiee 1g disclosed on pages 56 and 57,

Risk Management and Internal Control
The Company has an ongoing process for idennfying.
evaluaiing and managing the principal and emerging risks
faced Iry the Group. Turther details can be found on pages
47 and 58

The principal nsks and uncertaines idennfied from the nsk
reqgister and a descnipnion of the Group's risk managemen:
procedures can be found on pages 30 10 45

Activities During the Year

The Commuzzee considered the Annual Repor, ~alf-Yearly
Report, any other formal financial performance
annoancemerni's and any other maters as spacified
under the Commlitee’s terms of reference and repored "o
the 3oard on how v discharged 1°s responsibilines.

The Commitiee discussed and considered the external
audi: performance. cbhjecuviyy and independence. tThe
external audnors re-appoinimens:, accounting policies
and Alrernanve Performance Measures, sigrufican:
accounuang judgemen:s and esiimates, the need for an
incernal auds funcion and the nigk register.

The Commutee concluded that aninternal aadi
funciion would provide minmimal additional comfor:
at considerable extra cost to the Company. ‘n:ernal
agsurance 1s achieved by the exisung sysrem of
monitonng and repormng by third paries which “he
Commiriee views as appropriaze and adequate The
external auditors are aleo provided with thard pary
internal controls repore and addinional informauon.
as requesed.

Dunng the year the Commitiee also conducted a
comprehensive review of the key agreements with

115 service providers, and a detailed revievr of the
performance. compoginion, personnel, processes and
inzernal conirol systems of the ATM. a review of all of
‘he Groups other corporare advisers and key sernce
providers. The discuszion included an assessmen: of
performance and swrabilizy of the services provided
in the context of the fees pald o each provider and a
revigws of ‘he terminanion period of each agreemen:.

The Commiiee considered “he terms of the nvesimen-
Management Agraement, "0 ensdre 17 conunaes o reflec
‘he commeroal arrangemen-s agreed berween “he
Company and the nvesmen: Advizer and was zanishad
“hat ~hig was the case

]

The Commiee digcussed and constdered “he Takaover
Offer by ‘Wellness Uniey oimized a wholly owned
subsidiary of CX Asse” =oldingz amrred. including the
work ande=raken by ‘he Company in relation ~o “he offer,
175 tmpact on the Company s nisk profile and on going
CONCETT




Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Continued

Significant Issues Considered by the

Committee

The Commuttee considered the key accounung esiimases
and judgements underlying the preparation of the
financial statements focusing speaifically on:

Valuation of Investment Property
The valiation of the proper:y porfolio s crucal to the
statement of financial position and reported regults.

Afrer discussion with the nvestmen: Adwiser, the
Commisee has desermined that the key nisks of
misstatement of the Company financial statemens:s relase
‘0 the valuauon of investmen: proper:y.

The valuauons of the investmen! propernes a: the end
of the financial year were independen:ly performed by
Jones Lang _aSalle .imited (]2 whom the Commiiee
considers o have sufficien: experuse, expenence and
local and nanonal knowtedge of social housing and
suppor:ed housing ;o under:ake ‘he valuanons.

I._ also conducss ininal valuanons of properies on
acquisition. The Direc:ors have ensared that JLl has
appropnate procedures 1n place o ensure there are no
ndependence conflicts with the services provided 0
“he Company,

The invesimen: Adviser confirmed o -he Commizzee that
:he method of valuanon has been apphed consistently
dunng the year. - further confirmed that, dunng the
course of the penod. ] was reqularly challenged by
“he inves'ment Adviser on the assumpaons used 1n the
valianon of the Company's investmen: properies o
ensure robus: and appropriate methods were being
apphed. The Investmean: Adwviser discusses these areas of
challenge with the Commizee

The audnors me: separately with |.L and reported back
<o the Commistee on s challenge of the valuatons

and assumprnions. The auditors were satisfied thas

“he valuations had been prepared using appropriate
merhads and assumpuions, and had been prepared in
accordance with 2.CS Valuation - 2rofessional Standards.

As explained in note “50 to the financial statemenss,

‘he approach adopied by the Company 13 10 recognise
Inmves men: properues at fair value with the fawr valie of

“he property being based on valaasiong performead by [0

The revaluanon of the iInvesimen: properiies gave rnse o

a a0

a revaluation gam of £2,640,000 1n ~he penod

Takeover Offer

The Commitee considered the valuanon work
anderzaken by ] {as instrucied 16 ae for the Company,
Panrmiire Gordon (LX) Lamied and aberum Caprial
imted) wirth respect 1o the Takeover Offer by Wellness
Unity amred (@ wholly owned indirec: subsidiary of C<
Aase: Joldings amied). The valuanon methodology used
by Il was consigient with tha! used during “he valuanon
for the year ended 3 March 2073 and had -he same
valuanon date

Maintenance of REIT Status

There are a number of conditions thar a company {or
principal company of a group R:1T) needs o satsfy in
order ro become a R:IT and remain within the regime.
The UK RE.T regime affords the Group a beneficial tax
rreatment for income and capital gains, provided certain
crirtena are met There 1s a nisk “ha: these R:ZIT condiions
may not be me: and addizional 1ax becomes payable by
the Company. The 3oard regularly reviews the 25T tests
that are performed by the Adminstrator

The Board 1s sausfied that the Company has maintained
178 R=IT s7atas throughous the year.

Geing Concern

The Commizee considered the Company's Going
Concern and Viability S:atement for the year ended

3. March 202310 hght of the Takeover Offer and 173 impac:
on the Company's deb: posiiion, it agreed the wording
dsed in the independent Audiors Repor which makes
reference 10 the matenal uncertainty idenufied,

Misstatements

The nvesiment Adwviser confirmed 1o the Commiziee that
17 was na: aware of any matenal nusstarements made
intentionally o achieve a paracalar presentation.

Conclusion in Respect of the Annual

Report and Financial Statements

Having reviewed the presenzations and reports from the
nvestmern: Adviger, the Commitiee 15 satisfied that the
financial statements approphately address the cniucal
ridgemenis and key esiimates, both in respec: of the
amoun:s repored and the disclosures.

The Committes 18 also satisfied that the significan:
assumpnons used for determuning the vahie of assets
and labihies have been appropnately scruumsed and
challenged and are sufficiently robus:. Accordingly, the
Commtee has concluded :hat the Annual Repor: and
financial s;atemenss, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and undersrandable and has recommended “heiwr
approval to the Board on tha: basis.

Auditors’ Appointment and Tenure

As a result of the UK's implemen:ation of the 5U7s
mandartory audi: firm rotanon requiremernt:s, the Company
15 required o ensure that the external audizors contract
15 117 onlt o tender as least every ten years, with the
proviso thas no single firm may serve as “he Company's
external audicors for a penod exceeding 20 years
“ricewaterhouseCoopers LY was first appointed as the
Company's audrors with effect fram March 2077, 70s
mrended thas the external audi will be pur ous o tender
no lazer than for the financial year commencing @ Apri
2026, whichg ten years afier the Company's imiual hsung.

Saira Choudhry s the audir partner allocated o “he
Company by ’nicewaterhouseCoopers L2 The audir of
‘he finanmal stazements for the year ended 3 March 2023
18 her second as senior statusory audior of the Company.
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Continued

Assessment of the Effectiveness
of the External Audit Process and
Auditors’ Independence

As part of 1its annual review of the effectiveness of

the external audit process, the Commiiiee obtained
asgurance on the qualiy of the external audi: from 1ts
own evaluauon, the audit feedback documenrzatton and
from correspondence and discussions with the audit
pariner nvesimen: Adviser and the Adminisirator.

The audirtors demons:razed a good understanding

of the Group, and had dentified and focused on the
areas of greares: financial reporiung risk, s reporiing
0 the Committee was clear, open and thorough. The
Committee has assessed the professional sceplucism and
challenge of managemen: judgemen: by the audiiors
and s sansfied tha: the auditors have demonsirazed
‘hese Tor example, the exzernal audtzors conducted a
review of the work conducied by JT.. in evaluating the
Investimen: property valuanons in which the external
auditors showed appropnate professional scepiicism
and challenge of radgement. The Commitee assessed
-he challenge provided by the external audiiors via the
external audiors repor:s provided ar the year end and
half yvear end meeinngs and quesioned the exiernal
audrors as appropnate. The Audit and Managemen:
Fngagemen: Committee Chalrman also me? with the
external audiors throughous the audir and half-yearly
review processes to ensure that the external audiors
were aligned with the Commitiee’s expectations. The
Commistee considered the advice included in the

FRC Pracniice Axd on Audi Qualiny when making this
judgement.

The TRCs Audi Quahty inspecuons Repor: on the audis
carned our by "nicewarerhouseCoopers Lu? was also
considered by the Commitee On the basig of these
facrors and assessmen:ts. the Commisiee has concluded
“has the external audi: process has been effeciuve

The Commiree assessed “he exiernal audiors
independence, gualificatlions, relevan: expertences,
and effectiveness of audiz proceduares. .n advance of
each audiz, the Commizee obrains confirmasion from
“he external audizors tha- hey remain independen:
and ha: the level of non-audnr fees are not an
ndapendence Threas

Non-audit Services

The Commizee has purinio place a policy for the
provision of non-audis services 1o the Company by the
audizors which 15 1n hine with the recommendaions se:
ous in the "2C's Guidance on Audl: Commuttees (2016) and
the requiremen:s of the J'RCs Revised =z hical 3tandard
{2019). The general intention of the Commitiee is 10 avoid
the provision of non-audis services by the auditors, other
than the review of the half-yearly repon, as these have
the potental 1o compromise the independence of -he
auditcrs. The Committee acknowledges that in cerain
struations it may be appropriate for the external auditors
10 provide such services o the Company for a vanety of
reasons inchiding cost effectiveness, depth of knowledge
and the ongoing relationship hetween the 3card and

the external audirors. All non-audr: fees are approved by
che Commizes in advance Where non-audit fee levels
are considered sigrifican:, the Committee considers the
appropnaeness of the mmdependence safeguards patin
place by the audniors,

The to:al fees paid to PnicewatarhouseCoopers L2 dunng
“he penod, net of VAT, totalled E447,0C0C 12022; £402,000) of
which £83C000 (2042 E44,000) was concerning non-agdis
zervices for The review of the half-yearly repor and

fril (2022: £62,000 for non-audi: services concerning a
planned 3ond ‘ssue which was posiponed}.

The audirors were selecied for the non-audi: services
relating to the posiponed 3ond issue following careful
cansideranon by the Commiriee The Commisee
Beheved tha: the ability for the auditors te audit ~he
Company's financial statements independently would
not be impacted by this work. 1715 standard pracice for a
Company s external audirors 1o underake this task.

Note 9.0 10 the consohdated finanaal statements
details all serices provided and “o7al fees paid o
“nicewaterhoiseCoopers .2 for the financial year
ended $° “arch 2023, 'The Commitee considers
CricewarterhoaseCoopers L0 10 ke independezn: of the
company,

Re-appointment of the Auditors

Taking into accoun: the performance and effecuivenass of
‘he auditors and “he confirmanion of -heir independence.
the Commitiee has recommended o “he 3oard tha: a
resolution "o re-appoin: PricewaternoussCoopears 1.2 as
he Company’s audirors be pu- o “he shareholders as the
forhcoming AGY.

Caroline Gulliver

~udit and “Sanagemen: Sngagamean”

Chairman.
Commis

28 June 2023
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Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Introduction

The Nominanon and Remuneranion Comrmmittee presents the
Report for the year ended 3 March 2023

Composition and Role of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee

The Nominaion and Remuneration Commings Comprisas
Peter Baxter, as Chairman, and the entire 8oard. all of
whom are non-execative rectors. Terms of Reference
have heen esrablished by the Board and are avallable on
“he Company's website.

‘The Nominaton and Remunearanon Commaitiee’s principal
duties are as follows

Nomination

¢ 1o review the siructure size and composition of the
Board, including izs skills. knowladge, expenence and
dwersiiy. including gender and ethmey:

e 0 consider the succession planning of Jirectors,
taking into account the challenges and opporraniies
facing the Company and the skills and expertise
needed on the Board 1n “he faturs;

e 10 be responsible foridenufying and nominating
candidares 1o 1l 30ard vacancies as and when
they arige;

s toreview annuaally the ame required from
non-execulive 2Irectors:

e o review the resul's of the 3oard performance
evaluanon as it relares o 3eard composiion and
succession planmng:

¢ oreview annually poteniial conflic:s of interests of
Directors as discloged to the Company and develop
appropnate processes for managing sach confhes; and

e o recewve and consider updates from the nvesimen:
Adviser on 175 own succeession planning acivi'les.

Remuneration

e todetermine and agree with the 3oard, a formal
and ransparent procedure for developng policy
on the remuneration of the Companys Char, Audis
and Managemen! cngagement Commiuiee Chair
and non-execanve Dreaciors;

e 0 ake into accoun: all faciors when considenng
the 2emuneranon Policy which 11 deems necessary.
mchiding reievant legal and regulatory requiremean:s,
‘he provisions and recommendanons of the A.C Code
of Corporate Governance and associared guadance;

s oreview the ongoing approprateness and relevance
of the Remuneraton 2olicy:

« o oblamrehable up-to-date informanion akous
remiunaraien in other companmes of comparable
scale and complexity and marke: pracrice generally:

¢ 0 beresponsible for estabhshing the seleciuon
creena. selecung. appoming and seiing the terms
of reference for any remunearanon consalzants who
advise “he Commizies: and

« o0 ensure tharcontractual zerms on terminanorn, and
any paymen:s made. are fair to the individual. and the
Company, hat faillure is not rewarded and tha: the
dusy 0 mitgate loss 1s fully recognised.

Activities During the Year

The Commizes meets at leas: once per year. Junng the
year. the Committee has:

e considered ‘he Beard's remunerarnon in view of the
responsibiliies and fime commitmenss for overseeing
the affairs of the Company. in hght of the Arucles of
Association as well as <he level of dividend paid o
shareholders during the year;

e reviewed the Jwrector's skill mamnx;

e considered the 3card's current succession plan, and
agreed that 1z would be pruden: for the 3oard o
phase the recraitment of addinional Jirectors gong
forward 1o allow progressive rotasion of Jirecrors and
facilitate effeciive succession plannmng:

s appoinied a Sub-Commitee to be responsible for
conducing the recrurmen: process o dennfy a new
candchdare for appoimntment 1o the 3oard,

e engaged recruizmen: agency. Odgers Berndston, to
assist with the search for a candidaze,

o reviewed the resulis of the 3oard’'s 2023 performance
evaluation process, the details of which can be found
on pages 56 and 57, and

o saushed iself that each non-executive reclor
serving a: the end of the year remains independens
and continues to have sufficient ume o discharge
their responsibilities to the Company.
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The Company 18 suppornive of the new lLigung <ales
Lemgissued by the Financial Conduct Authonty

on diversity and inclugion on company boards. The
Commuitiee 15 considenng a range of candidates from
diverse backgrounds. The Company's diversizy polhicy can
be found on page 56.

The Drectors’ fees were considered by the Commiiiee in
February 2023 Juring 18 consideranon, the Commutiee
w00k Into account the facrors of elansy, simplicity, ngk.
predictabihity, proporionaliy and ahgnmen: of Company
culwure. 1 also obrained the mos: up-—o-date indusiry
rernuneraion companson to aid in s decision-making
Sleage see the Direciors Remuneration Report on pageas 64
10 67 for detalls on Drector remanerasion.

Peter Baxter

Chairman, Mominauon and emuneranon Commitae

28 June 2023 =0
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’' Remuneration Policy
Introduction

The Remuneraiion Policy of the Company 18 57 by

*he 3oard. A resolunion 10 approve the Remuneraton
Pohcy was passed at the AGNM of the Company held

on 5 September 2022, The policy provisions set ous
below will apply until the Remuneration 2olicy 1s

pus w0 shareholders for approval at the AGM of the
Company 1n 2025. There are no changes proposed o
the Remuneration Policy. The Remuneration Policy is
binding and se:s the parameters within which Directors’
remuneration may be set,

Poticy

The Remunerasion 2olicy of the Company 1s 1o pay its
non-execu:tve Directors fees that are appropriate for
she role and the amoun: of sime spent in discharging
their duties, that are broadly in hine with those of
comparable real estase investmen: companies and tha:
are sufficient 1o attract and retain suttably qualified and
experienced individaals.

Directors’ Remuneration Components

Component

Anrniaal fze

Diector

Chearrman

The fees paid will be reviewed on an annual basis and
may also be raviewed when new non-executive Directors
are recrured to the 3oard. The hrec:ors of the Company
are entiled to such rates of annual fees as the Board

at s discretton shall from zime o nme determine The
Chairman of the 3card and he Audiz and Managemerit
“ngagemen: Committee Chairman are entitled to receive
fees at a higher level than those of the other Directors,
refiecting their addimonal duttes and responsibihiuies.
Annual fees are pro-rated where a change takes place
durning the financial year

.t addinon :o he annual fee, under the Company's
Aracles of Associanon  f any Director 1 requesied o
perform any speaal dutles or services ouside therr
ordinary duties as a Director, *they may be paid such
reasonable addiional remuneration as the 3oard may
from tme 1o nime derermine.

Rate at 1April 2023

tand 1 April 2022

o
F535.000

Pu[pose of Remunerauon o
Commuimen: as Chawrman of a pubhce
company

Annual fee Non-execuauve reciors

Commlimen: as non-execaive hreciors of
a pukhe company:

£54.000

Addinional fee  Chair of the Audir and Managemen:

ngagemen: Commisiee

Addl‘.ll)rﬁal fee  All irectors

~XDENSEs

All Drectors

F5.000  Tor addimonal responsibiities and ame
commryiment
Tenonary  Jor extra or special services performed in
thetr role as a Direcior
n/a  Renbursemen: of expenses incurred in the

performance of dunes as a Hrector

1 The Company s pohicy is for the Chairman of the Board to be paid & highet tee than the other Directors 1o tetlect the note onerous tole

2 The Company s Articles ot Associaton hinit the aggregate tees pavable to the Boad of Directors 1o 250 000 per annum

3 The Cumpany s pulic
wnetous 1ole

y 1S lor the Chane of the Audit and Managemen! Engagement Commilles to be pated a hugher fee than the ather Direntons 1o meflect the more

4 This 15 a provision ot the tfompany $ Articies  Additional 1228 would only be patd ynexes phonal CI0nstanees inrelation to the pettormdanes of et o speaial

SEIVICeS

S Directors ate enntitled 1o claim expenses 0 respect o duties undertaken in connection with thewr wle as a Director
The Caompany has no employees Accordingly there am no ditterences in policy on the remuneraton of Directars and the remuaneration of emgloyees
Mo Directon s enntled fo receive any remunaration which s pertormanae related As 2 result There are no periermanae condifions (n relahon to any elemants of the

Direcrers remuneration n exisience 1o sert a1 tins Remuuneiation Palicy

Direcrors and Officers halbilicy insarance cover 1s
main-aimned by the Company on hehalf of the ir

rs.

Oirectorg are en-1tled “o be paid all expenses properly
incuarred in arending 3card or shareholder meelings
or otherwise 1n or with a view "o “he performance of
“hewr dunes.

s all Jirecrors are non-execunive and there are no
employess. the Company does not operats any share
opton or ocher long-term incennive schemes and the
Tnirectors fees are not subject o any performance critena
Yo pension or other reiiremen- benef) schemes are
opera~ad by “he Company for any of s Mirec-ors.




Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Service Contracts

No rector has a service contract with the Company. The
Directors are appointed under leszers of appointmen:.
Their appoiniment and any subsequen: :2rminaion or
retiremen: is subject 1o the Amcles of Associanon. The
Dhrectors' letters of appoiniment provide that upon the
ermmanon of a Direcior's appoinment. that Jirecior
mus: resign in wrnang and all records remain “he
property of the Company. The Director's appoiniment
can be terminated 1n accordance with the Articles of
Association and withour compensaiion, There1s no
nonice period specified in the Arucles of Association for
the removal of Directors and all Directors are subjec: o
annual re-electuion by shareholders.

Approach to Recruitment Remuneration

The remuneration package for any new Chairman or
non-execative Director will be the same as the prevalling
rates determined on the bases ser ot above. The Board
will not pay any introduciory fee or incentuve T0 any
person (o encourage them to become a oirector, but
may pay the fees of search and recrnuitment speciahists

in connecton with the appoiniment of any new
non-execuive Direcior.

Views of Shareholders

Any views expressed by shareholders on the fees heing
patd 10 Jirectors would be taken into consideration by
the 3oard when reviewing levels of remuneration.

Remuneration Report

The 3oard presents 118 Directors 2emuneraion eport

m respect of the year ended 3 March 2023 The 3oard
has prepared this repor: in accordance with the Large
and Yedium-5Sized Companies and Groups {(Accoun:s
and Repor:s) (Amendmens:) Requlanons 2073 An ordinary
resolunion for the approval of the Jirectors’ Remunerasion
Report will he put to shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

The law requires “he Company’s auditors o audi: certain
recnired disclosures. Where digclosures have been
audited. they are indicated as such The audizors opimon
13 ncluded in the audirors repor: on pages 77 10 /8.

Annual Statement from the Chairman

[ am pleasad 10 pregent the Directors’ Remuneranon
Report for the year ended 51 March 2023,

ounng the year under review, the Board, via the
Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee, was
responsible for sesting the Company's Rermuneranan
Jolicy and Directors’ fees.

The repor: from Nomination and Remaneraiion
Commit:ee can ke found on page 63.

The Direcors are remunerazed for their services at such
rate as the Directars shall from ime o Time deermine.
The Board has se: three levels of fees: one for the
Chairman. one for other Direciors. and an addinional

fee that1s paid o he Mirector who chairs the Audis

and Management Ingagement Commailiee. ‘'ees are
reviewed annually in accordance with the Remimnerasion
Policy The fee for any new Jirector appoined will be
determined on the sgame basis.

Orwectors fees for the year ended 47 Varch 20235 were

at a level of £53.000 per annum for the Chatrman and
34,000 per annum for other non-execatve Direciors. The
Chairman of the Audit and Managemen: Zngagemen:
Committee receved an addinonal fee of £5,000 per
annum

There were no other paymen:s for extra or special
services in the year ended $1 March 20235,

At the AGM held on 5 September 2079, shareholders
approved the amendmen: 10 the Company's Articles of
Associanon which increased “he maximam aggregate
annual remuneraiion payable 1o 2irectors from £208,000
~0 £250,000.

The Direciors Remineration Policy was approved
at the AGM held on °5 September 2022. There will he
no significant change 1in the way the femuneranon
Policy will be implemented in the course of the next
financial vear.

The Directors Remuneratuan *ohcy will nex: be presented
o shareholders for approval ar the Company's AGV in
2028
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BT AND ACCOUNTS 2046

Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Directors’ Fees for the Period (audited)

The Directors who served durning “he year recerved -he following emolumenss:

Year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended 31 March 2022

Taxable Change Taxable Change
Director R Lo Fees benefits Total Q2023 Fors benef(rs Total 02022
Michael Wrobel (Chairman) £53,066 - E53,000 192% F£572.000 - F52.00C 4.00%
Alastalr Moss E£34,000 - E34,000 2.16%  F33.280 - F33280 4.00%
Ahson Zadden £34,000 - £34,000 2.16% £33280 - 135280 4.00%
Carohne Gulliver £39,000 - £39,000 188% £38280 - E38.28C 65.33%
Jeter 3axter E£34,000 - £34,000 2.16%  £33.280 - E35.280 4.00%
Towal £194,000 - E194000 90220 - £90220

The amoun:s paid o “he rectors were for services as
non-executive Directors. Taxalbile benefits includad m the
above table are 1n respect of the amoun:s reimbursed to
Jrectors as travel and other expenses properly incurred
Iy shem in the performance of therr dunes. There are no
varnable elemente in the remuaneration pavable o the
Directars

Under the Company's Arnicles of Associanon, the total
aggredgare remunaraion and benefizz 1in kind of the
Directors of the Company 1s subject 1o a maximurm of
FAECO00 1 any finanaal year. Any change o thig wouald
require shareholder approval

Loss of Office (audited)

The directors do not have service conirac:s with the
Company but are engaged under letzers of appoimntment
under which there 15 no enttlement 1o compenganon for
ioss of office. irectors are subjec: 1o annaal re-elsction
by shareholders.

Total Shareholder Return (rebased)

Civitas " '%i - ~.. i~  FTSE 350 Real Estate Index

18 Nov 31 Mar
2016 207

31 Mar
2018 2019

Company Performance

The following graph compares the performance for the
period from (20 on 8 November 2076 to 37 March 2623,
the roral shareholder return of ~he Company's Ordinary
shares relative o the FTS= All-Share ndex and TS+
Real =state ndex. Al'hough the Company has no formal
henchmark. these indices have been selected as the
JTS= All-Share represenss all companies of a similar
capizal size and the consiraents of the TT3= 350 Jeal
~state ndex are L¥X-based real esiate companies and are
~herefore considered o represen: the mosT appropnae
compara:ve.

31 Mar 31 Mar
2020 2021 2022 2023



Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The rable below sets our, in respect of the year ended
3P Marceh 2028

a) the remuneration paid o the Directors; and

b) the disinbunons made 0 shareholders by way of

dividend.
Year ended Yeat e:m;r-d
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
[ o _Epou o 00
Directors remunerauen 194 190
Dwvidends paid to Qrdinary
shareholders 34,459 34093

Directors’ Interests (audited)

There 18 no requiremen: under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the terms of their appoinimens: for
irectors to hold shares in the Company.

As at 31 March 2023 the Jirecrors (including their
connec:ed persons) had beneficial interests in the
following number of shareg 1n the Company:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Ordinaty Ordinary

shares sharcs

“Michae! Wrobel 200000 1720598
Alastair Moss 11,766 786
Ahson Zadden 31937 -
Carcline Gulliver 58,832 538832
Zeter Jaxier 82,065 = 82065

There have been no changes ;o Jirectors share inTeres’s
bemwween 31 March 2023 and “he date of -his Report -ach
Director has accepted the recommended all-cash offer
made by Wellness Lty imized for the ennre 1gsued
share capial of the Company the 'Offer’] in respect of
“herr own beneficial holdings,

None of the Jirectors or any persons connected
with them had a matenal interas: in the Company's
TTANSACTIONS, arrangements or agreements during
she vear

Voting at AGM

The Direcrors Remuneration 2olicy was approved at

‘he AGM held on 15 Septlember 2022 and the Directors’
Remuneranon Repoert for the year ended 31 March 2022
was approved a: the AGM held on 13 Sepember 2022, The
votes cast by proxy on these resolutions were:

voles for Vores against

% ol woles % of vores Votes Testal
_Resolution cast ) cast withhetd voucs cast
To approve
-he Jrectors’
Remuneranon
Repor: 99.65% 1.35% A6655A Y6569 7045
To approve
the Drectors’
Remuneranon
solicy 99.65% 0.37%  AB300Y 296,569.245

1 Voles for include discretionaty praxy votes grantect 1o the Chaurman by
sharezholders

Consideration of Shareholder Views

The Company is commi:ied o ongemng shareholder
dialogue and takes an acuve inierest in voling cuicomes
Where there are substanial voies agains: resolunions

1N relanon 1o rectors’ remaneraton, the Company will
seek the reasons for any such vote and will dezail any
resuling acuons tn the Directors’ Remuaneraiion eport.
3oth *he approval of the Direciors’ 2emuneranon epor:
and “he Directors Remuneranon 2olicy resolutlions were
approved by shareholders at the AGM on 15 Seprember
2022 The 3oard receved no feedback from shareholders
on these resolunions

Approval

The Direciors’ Remuneranon Repor: was approved by The
Aeard and signed on 18 behalf by

Michael Wrohel

Chairman

28 Tune 2023
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
in respect of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Diracrors 10 prepare financial
szatemen:s for each financial yvear Under tha: law the
Dwectors have prepared the Group financial statemencts
in accordance with U-adopted internatuonal accouning
srandards and the Company financial statements in
accordance with Unrted <ingdom Generally Accepted
Accodnning Practice (Lnrted Kingdom Accounung
S:andards, compnsing S35 107 "Reduced Mdisclosure
“ramawork”, and applicakle law)

Lnder Company law, Directors must no: approve the
financial statements ynless they are sansfied thas
‘hey give a rue and fair view of the state of affairs of
‘he Group and Company and of the profiz or loss of
the Group for tha: perniod. In prepanng the financal
statements, the Directors are required o

e selec: suntable accouniing policies and “hen apply
them consisienly:

e state whether applicable UL-adopred international
accouniung s:andards have been followed for the
Group financial statements and Lnited <imgdom
Accouning Standards. compnising <8 (07 have been
followed for the Company financial statemencs, subjec:
o any matenal deparares disclosed and explained in
“he financial srarements:

e make judgemenss and accounting estrmates that are
reasonable and prudent and

e prepare “he financial statemen:s on the going concern
Basig unlesg 1t s Imapproprae o presiume tha: the
Group and Company will continue i business.

The Direciors are responsible for safeguarding “he
agsets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonalzle steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irreqgulariies,

The Jirectors are also responsible for keeping adequate
accouning records tha- are sufficient o shovr and
explain the Group'= and Company's ransactions and
disclose vith reasonable accaracy at any me “he
financial posimon of “he Grouap and Company and
enable ~hem s0 ensure tha: the finanaal sta-emenss and
“he Mrectorg Remunaration fepon comply with the
Companies Ar

20060

The Jirectors are responsiie for “he mainzenance and
integricy of the Company's finanaal statements pukhshed
on the ulimate paren: Company & webhsile. _egislanon

i the Lnted Angdom governing the preparanion and
disseminanon of fiinancial stazemen-s may differ from
legusianon in other parisdicTions,

Directors’' Confirmations

The Direciors consider that the Annual Report and
Accounts, taken as a whole s fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the informasion necessary
for shareholders 10 assess the Group's and Company's
position and performance, business model and strateqy.

zach of the Mrectors, whose names and funcions are
listed 1n the 3oard of Directors, confirm thas to the bes: of
their knowledge:

e “he Group financial s;atermen:s. which have been
prepared in accordance with U<-adopred internanonal
accounung s:andards, give a true and farr view of the
assets, habilizies, inanoal pogiion and profit of the
Group,

e -he Company financial statemernss, which have
been preparad in accordance with United <ingdom
Accounting Standards, compnsimg TRSCL give a rue
and fair view of the asseig habilinies and financial
posiion of the Company: and

e he Group Strategic Report incliudes a far review of the
development and performance of the business and the
postiion of the Group and Company, :ogether with a
descnipuon of the principal risks and uncerainnes tha:
1t faces

Approval

Thiz Srarement of Jireciors’ Responsibilities was
approved by the 3oard and signed on 178 behalf by:

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

28 June 2823
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

As the Company and the Alternatve inves:ment —und
Manager (the "A{TM") are each domiciled 1in the Unized
Kingdom, the FCA Handbook rales require that, among
other things, the AlFM makes avallable the following
information 1o shareholders of the Company under the
ATMD (asimplemented in the UK and o notify them of
any matenal change to information previously provided.

These disclosures can also be found on the Company's
website: www.civizassocialhousing.com.

Investment Policy, Leverage and
Liquidity (AIFMD 23(1){a)(b)(h))

The invesimen: sirategy and objecnves of the Company,
the ypes of agses 1t may inves: 1n and the invesimen:
techniques 1t may employ. assoclated risks and any
nvestment restnciions are laid out 1n1 the iInvesimenst
objecuves and policy and other sections of the

Annual Report,

“Jorinformation akouat the circums:ances in which

“he Company may use leverage, the types of sources
permitited and the associated nsks and any restrictions
on the use of leverage and any collateral and asset
re-use arrangements, shareholders are direcred 1o the
disclosures contained 1n the invesimen: cbjecuves and
pohicy section of these financial statemensts as well as
specific A17M 2 related disclosures further helow

Inder the “CA's 1sung Rules, 1o which the Company 18
subject. 11 needs *he prior approval of s shareholders o
make a matenal change o s Investmen: policy.

Since the Campany 1s closed-ended without redempnion
righ:s, hguidey nsk managemens: (s imited 0 the
Liquidiy required 0 meet the Company's obhganons in
retation o s financing arrangements. The AlTM unlises
variouas risk assessmen: methods to measure the nsk of
por:foho ilhigqudiy to meet the Company's okhigations.
This measurement enables the provision of managemen:
winformaton o the AT and the 3oard of the Company t©
enable these nsks o be mom:ored and managed.

Legal Relationship with Investors (AIFMD
23{1)(c)

The Company 1s a pubklic mited company histed on the
“ondorn 5:ock mxchange. The Company 1s incorporazed
under the laws of =ngland and Wales The constitunonal
documen: of the Company 18 1's armcles of associaton
which may only be amended by way of a special
resclution of its shareholders. Lpon the purchase

of shares, an 1Inves:or becomes a shareholder of the
Company A shareholder's alahy ro the Company will
be limied o the amount ancalled on -heir shares.

As the Company 18 incorporated under the laws

of =ngland and Wales, 1t may not be possible for a
shareholder located outside thar junsdiction to effect
service of process within the local junsdictiion in which
-hat shareholder resides upon the Company. All or

a substantal portion of the assets of the Company
may be located ocutside a local junisdiciion in which
a shareholder resides and, as a resuls 1 may not be
possible to satisfy a judgemen: against the Company
1 such local jurisdictuon or to enforce a judgament
obtained in the local junsdiction’s courts agamnst

“he Company.

AIFM and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)(d),
(e) and (1)}

The A.v'M (G20 Capizal Limited) 1s a private himited
company with 138 registered office at 3 More L.ondon
Riverside, _ondon Sz° 2AQ0. GI0 Capital Limited s
aushonsed and regulated by he Financial Conduc:
Authonty (FRN 8489535 [ has been appointed by the
Company to manage the Company under an AlTM
Agreement with effect from 24 Auqust 2017
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The AlTM 18 responsikble for portfolio managemens:
and nsk managemen: and momtorning of the assews of
‘he Company and has discrenionary authority over the
acqgusition and disposimon of the Company's asses.
with power 1o give gquaran:ees and undertake other
rransactions on behalf of the Company subyjec: to the
provisions of the AITM Agresment The Al-V 15 also
responsgible for ensunng compliance with the AL

The AITM's dunies under the A -V Agreemen: are owed
+0o the Company as a whole rather than directly 1o the
shareholders, whether indiwndually or in groups. The
Board of the Company 1s responsible under the ALTM
Agreement for representing he Company in 128 dealings
with the APV

n order 1o comply wirh 115 regulatory okbhganions, the
ATFM holds professional indemnmity insurance.

Depositary and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1}
{d) and (f))

ndos Tmmancial amited {the "Jepositary’; has been
appoinzed as the Depoesiiary of the Company under

a Jepositary Agreemens: 1n accordance with ATV D
requiremnents. The Jepositary 1s a company incorporated
n sngland (regnstered number 88255875 whose
reqigrered office 1s a1 94 Jenchurch Strees, _ondon

EC4V 3]V Inas authonzed 10 act ag a Depositary iy the
FCA {TRN B02528), The Jepostcary 1s responsible for
safekeeping of the Companyzinvestmenss. including
holding in cusrody those investments which are required
<o he held 1in cusrody and venfying ownership and
keeping records of the Company's other invesimen:s, and
for cash montronng.
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

Continued

The Depositary's dunes under the Jeposiiary Agraemean:
are owed 10 the Company as a whole and no: duecty o
shareholders, whether indindually or in groups.

The invesments of the Company are not of a kind
required ‘o be held in custody by the Depositary.

Independent Auditors (AIFMD 23(1){d))

The independen: auditors of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2023 were PricewaterhouseCoopers ...P.
The audizors duties, which are set out on pages 76 and
77, are owed 0 the Company as a whaote. They have a
sranltory responsibility 1o repor: to the members of the
Company as a whole in relation o “he ruth and fairness
of the Company's state of affairs and profir or loss.

Valuation (AIFMD 23(1){g))

The asses of the Company are valued m accardance
with the provisions ser ourin the Valuation Pohcy The
inves men: Commistee which has been setuap by the
AlSMan respec: of the Company and 1ws asse's adds a
further iavel of aversight 1o the valuation process as set
odtn the Corporase Governance secton of the Annuaal
Repart

Fees and Expenses (AIFMD 23(1)(i))

The Company incars cests 1n “he form of depositary fees,
custodian fees. bank fees and charges. marketng fees,
audiors fees. lawyers fees, fund adminisiration fees,
company secrezanal fees and other fees

Fair Treatment of Investors and
Preferential Treatment (AIFMD 23(1)(j»

No preferennial rights have been granzed o any
exisiing shareholder.

The Company and the A” 7 are commired To ensanng
-hat all shareholders are <reaed farly and in accordance
with U< company law They have not and will noT enter
in:o any arrangemen: with one sharehaolder which
could resalt in any overall mazenal disadvantage o the
oher shareholders.

Issue and Redemption of Shareholder
Interests in the Company (AIFMD 23(1)(1))

The Company 7 closed-ended and does nor provide for
redemupiion or repurchase of -he interests of ordinary
shareholders a2 their reques?

Reporting and Performance (AIFMD 23(1)
(k), 23(1)(m} and 23(1){(n))

The histonc performance of the Company, "o the exten-
avallable has bean disclosed -0 shareholders i he
Annaal and =alf Yearly 2eporg which

w1l Le sent 1o shareholders and are avallable from
o fovitazsociathousing com/

The lates: NAV of the Company 1s pukhshed in the
lates: Annual or Half Yearly Repor: or gquarterly
NAV announcemendt.

Prime Broker (AIFMD 23(1)(0))

The Company does not have a prime broker.

Method of Making Ongoing/Periodic
Disclosures (AIFMD 23(1)(p),23(4),23(5))

‘nformaton about the Company s nigk profile and risk
managemens:, :otal leverage and any martenal change 20
*he arrangements for managing the Company's hgudry,
the proporuon of assets {tf any’ subject 1o special
arrangemen:s ansing from hgudry, the maximum
permitted leverage or the gran: of rights of re-use of
collareral or guaraniees In relanon o leverage will be
provided in the Comparny's Annual Reports or on the
Company's websre hup//ovizaszociathousing.com/.

Risk Profile and Risk Management
(AIFMD 23(4)(c))

The appointmens: of the A77W as the ATV of the
Company under the Al'M D means that 17 1s respoansibie
for risk managemen: and :he ongoing process of
dentifying, evaldaling, moniiornng and managing

~he nsks facing *he Company m accordance with the
requremen:s of the AJFM O 'The 3oard keeps the AT7V's
performance of these responsibilines under review as
var: of 17s uverall responsibility for the Company's risk
managemean: and inrernal conrols

The principal risks of the Company are sg: od: in the nsk
managemen: secion in the Annual Repar:. The ATV g
risk management sysiem Icorporates regular review
of these nisks and the eszabhshmen: of appropriate nsk
imis and imternal control processas 1o mitigate The
rnsks. The gengiiivicy of the Company 1o relevan: nsks g
furrher detailled 1n the rnsk managemen: seciion 1in “he
Annual Repor:.

Restrictions on the Use of Leverage and
Maximum Leverage (AIFMD 23(5))

As speciiied In the Invesmean: objeciivaes and pohey in
“he Annual Repor. the Company has the abihyy to puat ap
0 a maximum leverage of 40% of the Company's Gross
Aszer Value and the AV oversees the use of leverage o
ensure “ha” *he usze of horrovwing g consiztan: with this
requiremen: Levearage 1s caleulated using gross assers,
with variods adyasiments. divided by ne: assetg

Lnder A7 /2 the Company s requured —o calcalate
laverage under the wro methodologies specified by
“he hrectve the 'Gross Yathod' and -he 'Commizment
sethod ' che difference bemyg “ha- the Commi-means
ethod allows ceramn exposares “o be offser or need
Nsclosures are made on the websie of the Campany.




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC

Report of the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Opinion
T Our opnion:

e Civitas Social Housing PLC's group financial statements
and company finanoal statements {the "financial
statements’ give a ‘rue and fair view of the state
of the group's and of the company's affairs as at
3L March 2023 and of the group's profit and the group's
cash flows far the year then ended:

e the group finanaal stazemen:s have keen properly
preparad in accordance with UX-adopted international
accouning standards as apphed in accordance with
the pronisions of the Companies Ac: 2006,

e the company financial statemen:s have been properly
prepared in accordance with Unrred <imgdom Generalty
Accepted Accounung Practice (Unred Kingdom
Accouaning Standards, incluading I35 200 "Reduced
Oisclosure rramework”. and apphcable law?) and

e the financial statemen:s have been prepared 1n
accordance with the requiremen:s of the Comparnias
Act 2066,

We have audized the financial statements. included
within the Annaal Report and Accounis the "Annual
rRepor:), which comprise: the Consolidated and Company
Statements of “inancial 2estion as at 31 March 2023,

‘he Consolidated Staremen: of Comprehensive [ncome,
the Consohdated Sratemnen: of Cash :Tows, and the
Conscohdated and Company Statemen:s of Changes

in sgaity for the year then ended; and the notes w0 “he
financal statements, which include a descnpiion of the
significant accouning pohcies.

Qur opinion 18 consigtent with our reporaing 1o the Audi:
and Managemen: tngagement Commitee,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with ‘niernanonal
Srandards on Audiiing (LK} (1SAz (LX) and appheakble
law. Our responsibilines under iSAs (U are further
described in the Addizors’ responsibilizies for the audir of
the financial statemeants section of our repor:. We believe
shas the audir evidence we have obrainad 1s sufficien: and
appropnate 1o provide a basig for our opinion.

Independence

We remaimed independen: of the group 1in accordance
with the ethical requirermnents that are relevant o our
audrr of rthe finanaial staternents in the UK, which includes
‘he "RC's =thical Standard, as applhcable to isted pubhe
inceres: endaes, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibnlitiies In accordance with these reqiirements.

To -he bes: of cur knowledge and behef, we declare
that non-audit services prohilzized by the 2C0's Zthical
Srandard were not provided.

Orher than those digclosed mn note 9.0 1o the Consoldated
finanoal statementy, we have provided no non-audi
services 10 the company or 1I's controlled undertakingsin
“he period under aucdi,

Material Uncertainty Related to

Going Concern

n forming our opinion on the financial statemen-s,
which 1s not modified, we have considered the adeguacy
of the disclosure made in note 2.2 1o “he Consohdared
financial statemen:s and note 2.0 to the Company
financial statemen:s concerning the group's and the
company s ability to continie as a going concern,
respectively. On 9 May 2023 the 3oard of Directors of
Crvitas Social =ousing P1.C ("CS=" or "the group”) and the
3oard of Directors of Wellness Uniuty Limited (an indirec:
whollyv-owrnied subsidiary of CX Asset Haldings Limited)
{collecuvely referrad 1o as "C<} announced that they
have reached agreemen: on the terms and condrions

of a recommended all cash offer for the group. On

23 June 2023, the offer became uncondiuonal. The group's
exisiing committed debt faciliies conzain a siandard
change of controi clause which, from thar poin: forward,
coilld resulzin the existing commaitied deb: facilizies
bemng withdrawn. The DJrectors have not had detaled
vistbility of C{s post complenon funding for the group
and company or the derailed plans behind *he intentuons
statemen:s nclhided within the announcement. These
condirions. along with the other masters explained n
note 2.2 o the Consohdated financial statemen:s, indicate
the exisience of a material uncertamnty which may cas:
sirnificant doubt abourt *he group's and the company's
ability 10 continue ag a going concern. The financial
starerneants do not mcldde “he adjasiments thar would
resultif the group and the company were unakle o
coninue as a gong concern.

naudiing the financial statementg, we have concluded
that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounnng in the preparanon of the financial stazements
15 appropnate.

Qur evaluaton of the directors assessmen: of the group's
and the company's alility o continue o adop: the going
concern asis of accounting incladed:

e  We olrained managemenss lates: forecas:s that
suppor: the Board's agsessment and conclusions with
respec: 10 the gomg concern basis of preparation of
“he financial statemenss.

e«  We checked the mathemancal accuracy of
managements forecasts.

e We evaluated and challenged forecasts and sensiuvity
analysis preparad by managemen: o ensure “hey
are reflective of both the current environmen: and
considernng the risk of a severe and prolonged
economic downtarn We have assessed the extent
and plausikility of these scenanos 1n ighs of curren:
circums:ances. We evaluated the directors plans
for fumare acnons in relalon to ther going concern
assessment. should these be required.

e  We agreed "he mpuass o these analyses 1o The aucdchred
financial information or olzained corrolborative
aiappor: for key agsumpiions as appheabkle
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

¢ We have assessed the deb: covenants as well ag
managemens's assessmen: of possible breach of
covenants agreeing the inputs 1o the aadied results
We have evaluated managemenss siress tes:g on ~he
COvVenants.

* We also considered whether Civitas deb: financing
would impact the ability of the group and company “o
coninie as a going concern. Specifically we have had
congideraton around any debt that is coming due in
the going concern perod.

‘n relanon o the directors reporting on how they have
apphed the UK Corporaze Governance Code, other than
‘he matenal uncerainty idenufied in note 2.2 1o the
financial statemen:s, we have nothing ma:enal to add or
draw azeniion 0 In relanion o the directors szaemen:
in the financial statements abour whether the direciors
considered 1t appropnase to adop: the going concearn
basws of accounning, or in respec: of the direciors’
denification in “he financial statements of any other
material unceriainnes o the group's and the campany's
ability o connnue (o do so over a penad of at leas:
welve months from -he date of approval of the financal
STATeMEnts.

Our responsibihnes and the responsibibnes of the
directors with respect 10 going concern are described 1in
“he relevan: sectians of this repor

Our audit approach

Overview
Audit scope

e  Wetallored the scope of our audit to ensure that we
performed enaugh work o be able “o give an opinion
on the financial s:atemen:s as a whole taking ino
accoun: the structare of the group and the company.
“he accounung processes and controls, and the
indusity in which -“hey operate The group conglg™s of
a single reporiable segmen:

Key audit matters

e  Yaternal uncer-ainty related "o going concerm
e Yaluation of Invesimen: propery «(Jroup’

Materiality

e Overall group matenalizy: £20.0 million
(2022: £204 mulhion! based on "% of total assets,

e Overall company materiahty: £82 milhon
(2022: £8.2 miilion) based on 7% of total asze!s.

e “erformance matenahty: £2.5 million (2022 £7.8 milhon
{group! and £6.2 million {2027 F6.2 mulion) (company.

¢ Speafic group matenality: F1.3m {2022: £.5m) for
cerzain financial stazemen: hine 1zems that impac:
adjusted profit before tax {APBT) - based on 5% of
APRT AP3T 15 equal o profiz before tax adjusted for
the farr value movemen:is in invesunen: propearty and
falr value movemen’s On INeres: rate dervaives,

The Scope of our Audit

As part of desigming our aadi, we determined matenality
and assessed the risks of maenal missiatemen: in the
financial statements

Key Audit Matters

Key audlr marers are those maters thai i “he auditors’
nrofassional jadgemens, were of mos: sigmficance

im ~he aud of the financial statements of the curren:
neriod and include the mos: significant assessed nisks
of matenal mizstaternen: {whether or no: due o fraud?
idenzified by the audizors, including those which had
the greares: effect on: the overall audr: sirategy, the
allocanon of resources in the audiy; and directuing the
effors of the engagemen: Team These maters, and any
commen:s we make an the resul's of our procedures
“hereon, were addressed in the context of our audi:

of the financial statements as a whaole, and in forming
our opinien thereon. and we do no: provide a zeparate
opinion on ‘hese maters.

n addron o going concerrn, degeriked in the Matenal
unceramnty relazed o going concern sechon above we
deermined -he maters descrnibed below "o e the key

auJddir maters 1o ke commumcated in our repor: This g
not a complete st of all nsks idenafied by our aadis,

Abilizy to conrinue as a going concern (Coninuanon
Resolunon, which was a key audis masier lag: year, 1z no
longer included because the Conninuanion esalinon
vote was passed in Seprembier 2 O-herwige “he key
audis maers below are consistens wirh lasT year




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Key Audit Matter

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of Investment Property (Group)

Refer 10 the Report of ine ALdit and Managermean:
Engagemen: Commirce note 3.1 0 the Consoiidated
financia. staiements. Significan: esumae  va.Jalion of
invesimen: property and note 150 10 11e Conso.udated
financia. starements. Invesiment prooaeriy.

Investmen: properiies are ne.d at a fair value ol £953.4 million
as a' 31 March 2023 1in the Consclidated Statomen: of
Financial Position. The valuation of the grodo's invesiment
oroperty is the oy componen: of the ne: asse: val.ae and
anderping e group's result for the year. Thc resuli of the
revaltation this year was a gain of £2.5 miLion, wnicn is
accounted for witnin 'Change in fair vai.e of invesuneon:
oroperties’ in the Cansolidated Siatement of Comprenensive
Income. The group's invesiment propery ponfolio congis:s of
speclalist socia. housing properiics .ocated 1in Cng'and and
Wales wilcn are el to Approved Providers of social nousing
ON ONg-iCIm: Ieases,

Inves:men: oroperiy valuations were carned out py a vurd
vary valuer, Jones Lang LaSalie (TLL or tne Val.ier). Tne
Va.uer was engaged by the Direciors and periormed tneir
wors in accordance with (e Royal Insutaze of Charered
Sarveyors (RICS) RICS Vaiuazion  Protessiona. S:andards and
e requirements of [ntcrnatona Accounting Standard 4G
Tnvestmen: Property’,

In delermining the va..e of a property. ne Va..cr has

raken inio acco.wn: propery-specific inforntaton inci.ding
e easc erm and renta: income payab.e They app.ied
assumplions 1o arrive at the discoun: rae whicn is anomer
<oy inpJat to the valuation This nag relerence 1o nat initial
vic.d and CPI grow:h rate which are inf aenced oy provailing
marse: condinons and comparan e transacions wnere
aoppropriate

e va_sazion of 1ne group’s INVesIMen: progerty portioao
wasg idenified as a ey audi: mater given e valualuon

is innerentiy sudojective duac to. among oher faciors, The
individ.al nai.re of eacn property. i1s .ecation and the
exoeced fulure rental sireams for tna: pariicu.ar prooerty.
The significance of the estimaies and  cdgemen:s invo.ved.
cowp.cd witn tac fact thas onuy a smatl perceniage difference
in individ..a!l properiy valuaions. wnen aggregatad. co..d
res. 1IN d maweria: missarement. warran:ed spocitic
foc.s in tais arn

a.dn

et

Given the inheren: sup ecivily involved in the valuaiion

of the property portfolio, and :harefore e nead tor deeg
market knowledge wnen determining the mmost appropriate
assLrgions and e tlechnicaiidles of valuation memndo.ogy.
we engaged our irernal va.l.ation exper:s ((qaalifled
ehartered sLrveyors) (0 assist wg in our audit of tis area.

Assessing the Valuers' Expertise and Objectivity

Wo read the Valuer's repor: and conflirmed that the aporoach
used was consisien: with tac RICS guideiines. We assessed
the Va.uer's qualifications and experise and read mcir ierms
of engagemen! with the group, determining ha: iere were
no matiers that affecied :neir independence and obectivily
or imposcd scope imitailons woon them. We also considered
lees and ofer COnactual arrangomaen s tha: mign: exist
beiween the group and the Valuer. We found no evidenae io
s.gges: tha: e ooleciivity of the Va:uer was compromised

Assumptions and Estimates Used by the Valuer

In our testing. whicn involved the Lse ol ourinterna! real
csiale va.ualion exgerts. we considered tne assumprions
Ltilised ny the Valuer wiinin the va uation. inc. .ding
undersianding now hese agssamptions were developod.
We a so performed nencnmarking wnere onsarvabh.e
marke: evidence was aval.abie We cha.lenged the Vaiscor
regarding he impact of e regulatory environmen: on
Imvestor senimen: and asset values We atended meetings
with management and tne Vaizer, a: which the vaiuation
menodology and the key assumptions were discussed.
We gaal.enged helrapproacna o tnge val.ations. and the
raliona.e pehind the nore significan: va'aation assuampions
adopred. Where assumpiions were outside (ne expecicd
range, we undertoox furtaer inves igations. neid faraer
discussions wita 1ae Valuer and optained evidence 0
sJAnpor expianaions received. We a.so ¢aa lenged 1ne
Va Lers day 10 the exicn ey have ia<en inlo accoun: ine
impact of cimaw enange and re.aied [SC considerations
wilnin ine valsanons Tae responses orovided by the
Va.uer and supporing evidence, enan.ed us ‘o consider
the property specific faciors thal nmay nave had an impac:
on va.te. inc.uding recen: comparable rransacrions
wnere appropriaie We conciaded that ine ass.mpions
csed Dy the Va.uer were consisient with our expeciations
and comparan.e cencnmarxing and mar<e: transaction
intormasion for the asse: ype
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Pata Used by the Valuer and lLegal Title

We validated (e data wsed oy ineVa uer and found tha: it
was consisien: witn tne information we audited This data
me. L ded INOLTE SUCh as curren: rent, rent indexation (CPI or
CPI+1%) and ‘casc term, wnich we nave agreed on a samp.o
pasis 1o exec.ied ease agreamen:s as par: of our a.di
wors. We vertfied icgai Ownarsnin of Droperias rougn
independen: iiie deed confirmaions on a sampo.c nasis

Woe concoaded hat e assarrions wsed in e va aldons
oy ne Val.ers were suopor-ab.c in ign: of Lac evidenco
oniained and nc disc.oosdres within the Annaa. Repor: are
s.iticion: and approgriate, We 1ave no 1ssLes 1o report in
ospoa: of 1S work
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

How We Tailored the Audit Scope

We tailored the scope of our audt: 1o ensure that we performed enough work to be able 1o give an opinion on the
financial stazemen:s as a whole, -aking n:o accoun: the stracture of the group and the company. the accounzing
processes and controls, and the indus:ry in which they operate.

The group's properties are spread across '59 statutory enaies with the group financial statements betng a
consohdanon of these entities, The group's property porffohio represents a coheren: and diversified portfolic with
similar economic characrerisiics and, as a resul:, the whole porifoho of properues represenis a single operaiing
segmen: or component, and we have scoped our work accordingly All work was carned out by the group audi: team
with addizional procediures performed on the consoldanon to ensure sufficient coverage and appropriaze audn
evidence for our opinton on the group financial statements as a whole.

The Impact of Climate Risk on our Audit

.0 planning our audin, we made enguiries with managemens: o understand the exten: of the porenual impact

of chmate change nisk on the financal statements. Our evaluation of this conclusion included challenging key
judgements and estimates I areas where we considered thar there was greates: potennal for chimate change

impac: We parucalarly considered how climate change nisks would impac: the assumptions made in the valuaion

of invesumen: properiies as explamed in our key audit mazer above. We also considered the consistency of the
disclosures in relation o chimate change made within the Annaal Repor. and “he knowledge obrained from our audit.
Using our knowledge of the business, we evaluated managemen:'s rnsk assessmen: and resulting disclosures where
siggnificant.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our apphcanon of matenaly. We get certamn guantizative thresholds for
mareralirty. These togerther with qualizative consideranons, helped us to desermine the scope of our audir and the
nature, timing and extent of our audi: procedares on the indrnduaal financal statement line irems and disclosures and
In evaluanng the effec: of missrazemenss, both indindaally and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole,

Rased on our professional judgemens, we determined matenality for the financial szatements as a whole as follows:

Financial statements — group Financial statements — company
Overall Y100 milion {2022 F1G.4 mi_ion) FaZ mi ton 2622 F8.2 oo don).
materiality
How we 1% of toTa. asges 1> of "ozal asscs

determined it

Rationale for ne <ey Imeas.re of Tne gro.o’s performance 1s 1nc Tae company's maln aciviy 1€ e ao ding ot

benchmarle “a..anon of Invaesimen: properies and Lie oaanee  invesimen:s in soosidianes, On s 0asls. we sel
applied 50l as a wao.e. Given fais, we se an ovara an overa . company mdieria.ly eve. pased on
group raenaly evel pased on ola. asses. 0lal asscis

n addition o overall group matenahty a specific group matenality was alse apphed o ceriain financial statemen:
lIime 1mems ~ha” impac: Adiasted Proft 3efore Tax (A23T which 1= bazed on profit before tax, adjusted o exclude
farr value movemen-s on investmen: property and denvanves. We set a specific overall mazenalizy level of £1.5
million (2022: £ 5 milhon}, equatiung o0 5% of A23T. 'n arrving a: this judgemenst, we considered the fac: “ha- A73T e
a zecondary iinancal indicazor of the group which 1z disclosed ag 272248 sarningsg in the Annaal epor irefer 1o the
Group Smrateqic fepor: where “he t=rm 1s defined in fall)

“We use performance masenialiny to reduce 1o an appropnasely low leveal the probabili-y that he aggregate of
Jdncorrected and undetecied misstatemerns exceeds overall maenalry Specifically. we use performance masenally
1 desermining the scope of our audr and “he nature and extent of our-esming of accoun” balances, classas of
ransactions and disclogures, for example in determining sample sizes Our performance matenality was 79w

(20722: 758%) of overall matenahry, amounnang to £/ 5 mullion $2022: £7 8 mullion! for the group fiinanaal gtatements and
£e 2 mithon 2022 £6 2 million: for he company finanaial s-arements




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

n derermining the performance ma-teriality, we
considered a number of factors - the hiszory of
misstatements, sk assessment and aggregation nisk
and the effecnivenass of controls - and concluded that
an amoun: at the upper end of our normal range was
appropriate

We aygreed wildn Jie Awdil and Mdiidyermgn. Rrngaygerneil.
Comrmttee tha: we would report 0 them missiatemesn:s
identified dunng our audiz above £500.000 {for1items
audited using overall mazeriahty) and £64, G0 (for items
audited using specific group matenality) (group audit)
{2022 £579,000 and £74 500} and £4.30C0 {company

audiz (2022 £4°°.000) as well as misstaements below
‘hose amounts that i our view, warranted reporineg for
gualizalive reasons.

Reporting on Other Information

The otherinformanion comprnses all of the information

In the Annual Repor: other than the financal statemenss
and our auditors repor: thereon The direciors are
responsible for the other information. Our opimon on the
financial statements does not cover the other informanon
and, accordingly. we do not express an audit pinion or.
excep: 1o the exten: otherwise explict:ly s1azed inthis
report, any form of assurance thereon.

n connection with our aadit of +he financal statements,
aur regponsibiliry 1s 1o read the other informaton and,
in doing so, consider whether the other informasion s
mazerially inconsisient witil the inancial statements

or our knowledge obtained in the audis, or otherwise
appears to he matenally mussiazed. 'f we identfy

an apparent material ingonsisiency or maserial
missiatemen:, we are required 1o perform procedures
to conclude whether there 1€ a material misstatzement
of the financial statements or a material misstalemean:
of the ovher information. .f, based on “he work we

have performed, we conclide tha there 1s a mazenal
misgtatemens: of this other informaton, we are required
o repor: that fact We have nothing o repor: based on
“hese responsibihnes.

With respec: 10 the Group Srateqic Repor: and Report of
~he Jrectors we also considered whether “he dhisclosares
requnred by the U< Compantes Act 2006 have been
mcladed.

Based on our work under:aken 1in the course of the audit,
the Companles Act 2006 requires us also o report certaim
opnions and masrers as described below.

Group Strategic veport and Report of the Directors

It our opinion, kased on the work undertaken in the
course of the audiz, the informaton qiven in the Group
Srategie Repor: and Report of the Directors for the year
ended 37 Varch 2023 1s consistent with the financial
statements and has been prepared in accordance with
apphicable legal requiremen:s.

In high: of the knowledge and understanding of the
group and company and their environment obtained n
the course of the audit, we did not 1dentify any matenal
misstazements in he Group Srateqgic Report and Repor:
of the Directors.

Directors' Remuneration

N odr opinton, the part of the Direciors’ Remuaneration
Report to be audited has been properly prepared 1m
accordance with the Companies A 2006,

Corporate Governance Statement

The Listing Rules requure us o review “he direciors’
statemenie in relation o going concern, longer-term
viability and thas part of the corporate governance
statemnen: relanng to the company’s compliance with

the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review Qur addimonal responsibilinies
with respect to the corporate governance statemen: as
other informanion are described 1n the Reporing on other
mformaton section of this report,
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

3ased on the work undertaken as par: of our audi, we
have concluded that each of the following elements of the
corporate governance staement 1s matenally consisten:
with *he financial zratements and cur knowledge obrained
dunng the audr, and, excep: for the maters reported

In the section headed "Mazerial uncertainty related to
going cancern’, we have nothing material 10 add or draw
atenion o relanon to:

s The direciors confirrnation tha: they have carried out
a robust agsessment of the emerging and principal
risks:

e The dizclosures in the Annual Report tha: describe
shioge principal nsks, whas procedires are in place o
identify emerginig nsks and an explanaton of how
“hese are being managed or mimgated;

e The directors statemens in the fiinancial statemenss
alzour whether they considered it appropnate o
adop: the going concern basis of accouning in
preparng "hem. and “heir idenaficanon of any
masenal uncer:amiues “o the group's and company’s
akilizy o conunue o do so over a period of ar leas:
~welve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements;

e IThe directors explanaton as :o their assessment of
“he group's and company's prospec:s, the period this
agsessment covers and why ‘he penod 1s approprate:
and

e The directors statement as o whether they have a
reasonable expecianon thas the company will be able
tO contnde in operaon and mee: 17s habihitles as “hey
fall due over “he period of 11s assessment, including
any related disclosures drawing anention o any
necessary qualifications or assumpiions.

Orar review of the directors’ statzemen: regarding <he
longer-rerm viabiley of the group and company was
substanually less in scope than an audit and ontly
consisted of making mnquines and considenng the
direcrors process supporing their statemen:; checking
char -he statemens: s 1in ahgnmen: with the relevan:
provisions of the U Corporate Governance Code.
and considerning whe her “he giaemens s consisien”
wrizh the finanoal statemenss and our knowledge and
andersianding of the group and company and their
environmen: obairned in -he course of ~he aude

In addition, based on the work undentaken as par: of
our audit, we have concluded that each of the following
elemen:s of the corporate governance s:arement 1s
masenally consiszen: with the financial statements and
our knowlsdge obitained dunng the audit:

e The direciors statemens: that they consider the
Annual Report, taken ag a whale, 1s fair, balanced
and understandable, and provides the informanon
necessary for the members 10 assess the group’s and
company's posiion, performance, rusiness model and
sirategy;

e The secuon of the Annual Repor: that descnbes the
review of effeciveness of risk managemen: and
internal control sysiems; and

o The zection of the Annual Repar: descenbing tha
work of the Audir and Vanagemen: Engagemer:
Commiies.

We have nothing "o repor: in respect of our responsiihicy
o repor: when the direcors stazemen: relaning o the
company's compliance with “he Code does no: properly
disclose a departare from a relevan: provision of “he
Code specified under “he asang ules for review by the
auditors.

Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements and the Audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the

Financial Statements

Az explained more fally 1in the S:atemen: of Direciors
Responsibiliues. the direciors are responsittle for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the apphcable framewaork and for bemg sanighied
“hat they gqive a trie and fair view. The directors are also
responstble for such internal control as they determine
15 necessary 'o enable the preparanon of financial
sratements thas are free from mazenal missiatemens,
whether due “o fraud or error.

n preparing “he finanaal statements. the direciors are
responsible for asg sing “he group’s and the company’s
abtliry "o coniinide as a going concern, dizclosing.

as apphcable, ma—-ers related -0 going concern and
usineg the going concern bags of accouning unless

~he direc:ors erher intend <o haguida-e <he groap ot “he
company or 10 Cease Qperalons. or have no realistic
al~ernative bat o do so.




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Statements

Qur objectives are 1o oblain reasonable assurance abous
whether the finanoal statemen:s ag a whole are free from
matenal rmigstatemens, whether due <o fraud or error,

and to 1ssue an auditors' repor: that includes our opinwon.
Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance, but 1
not a guarantee that an audit conducted 1n accordance
with [SAs (UK) will always detect a matenal miss:azement
when 1t exists. Misstatemenss <ar arise from fraud or
error and are considered matenal if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied fo influence
the economic dacisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statemensts.

rregualanies, including fraud. are ins:ances of non-
compllance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibihaes, outlined
abaove, 10 detect matenal missiatements 1n respect of
irregalanaes, including fraud. The exten: o which our
procediires are capable of detecung irregulanties,
inchading frauad, 1s detailled below.

3ased on our understanding of the group and indusiry,
we idenufied that the pninaipal nsks of nen-comphance
with laws and regulations related ‘o compliance with

‘he Real kstate nvestment Trust (R5.T) status Zan 12 of

“he Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the UK regulatory
principles, such as those governed by the inancial
Conduc: Authonty, and we considered he exiant to
which non-compliance mugh: have a matenal effect on
“he financial statements. We also considerad shose laws
and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial
statemen:s sach as the Companies Aot 2006. We evaluated
management's incennves and opporunmies for fraudulen:
maniplaion of the finanmal statemenss (including the
risk of avernde of controls), and determined ha: the
principal risks were related o posing mapproprate
journal enmes "o iNcrease revenue ar reduce expandiiure,
and management bias in accounting esamates and
jrdgmental areas of the financial statermnenis such as the
valuanon of iInvesiment properties. Aud: procedures
performed by the engagemen: team in¢luded

Discussions with managemens, including
consideration of known or susbected instances of
non-comphance with laws and regulauons and fraud.
and review of the reports made by management,

e Understanding of managemenss internal conirols
designed o preven: and deect irregulariies:

e Agssessmen: of maters, if any, reported to the Audit
and Managemen: mngagemen: Commiee;

e Reviewing relevan: meeing minugtes, inclading
thosge of the Board of Directors and the Audis and
Vanagemen: nngagemen: Commities;

e Review of tax compliance with the mmvoelvemean: of our
sax specialists in the audit

e Designing audit procedares o ncorporate
unpredictabzdizy over the natire aming and exten: of
our tesung of expenseas:

e rocedures relating to the valuation of invesiment
properaes described 1n the related key audit matier
above; and

e _dentufying and testing journal entries, in particular
any journal en:ries posted with unusual account
combinanionsg and words.

There are iInherent hmitatnons in the audi: procedures
described above We are less hkely 10 become aware of
nszances of non-compliance with laws and reqgulations
-hat are not closely related to events and ransachons
reflecied in the financial staierments. Also, the nsk of not
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud 1s higher
+han the nisk of not detecung one resuling from error,
as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for
example, forgery or iInteniional misrepresentanons, or
+hrough collusion.

Our audit tesung might include tesung complete
populations of cerrain transacions and kalances,
possibly using data audiiing sechniques. mowever, it
mypically involves selecung a limited number of items for
testing, rather than tesung complete populatons. We will
ofien seek 1o target paricatar zems for tesung based on
cheir s1ze or risk characterisucs. ‘n other cases, we will
use audir gamphng o enable us 0 draw a conclusien
abour the popalation from which the sample 15 selectad.

A furrher descnpuon of our responstkihties for the
audit of the financial s;atements 1s locazed on the r'RC's
websanie at www.frcorgak/auditorsresponsibihizies. This
description forms part of our audizors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, inclading the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the company's members as a bodyin
accordance with Chapter 3 of 2art 16 of the Companies
AcCt 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accep: or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or W any other person o whom this repor:
15 shown or o whose hands it may come gave where
expressly agreed by our prior consen: 1n wriiing.

2]
=]
]
o
=]
=
»
-
L
]
g
w
=
>
z
A
m

NGV ANV LHOA0Y

=
3
=
o
o
)
a3
i
Z
g
=
=
[

N
=3
=
-

-
~J



CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023

-
-]

Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Other Required Reporting

Companies Act 2006 Exception Reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion:

s we have not obtained all the information and
explanations we require for our audit; or

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

¢ the company financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report 10 be audited are
not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee, we were
appointed by the members on 31 March 2017 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended 17 November 2016
and subsequent financial periods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is 7 years, covering the years
ended 17 November 2016 to 31 March 2023.

Other Matter

In due course, as required by the Financial Conduct
Authority Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule
4114R, these financial statements will form part of the
ESEF-prepared annual financial report filed on the
National Storage Mechanism of the I'inancial Conduct
Authority in accordance with the ESEF Regulatory
Technical Standard (ESEF RTS). This auditors’ report
provides no assurance over whether the annual financial
report will be prepared using the single electronic format
specified in the ESEF RTS.

Sitra (Aw.:{/b\fj

Saira Choudhry (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

28 June 2023 -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Revenue T
Renta!income

Less direc: property expenses
Netre ntal income

Dircclors remuneration
Invesimen: advisory fees
Genera. and adminis:railve cxpenses

Total expenses

Cnange in fair value of invaesimeon: proverues

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance oxnensc
Change in fair va_ e of Interes: rate derivaivos
Profit before tax
Taxation

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Earn.in“gs per share — basu; and diluted

For the
year gnded ye

Faor the-
at ended

31 Mdrch 2023 31 March 2022

Note £000

£'0on

50 54,607 51535
B 50 (1,941) {a78)
52.666 50 558
6.0 (211) {Z06)
80 (6.217) (6132
90 (5.393) (3.9038)
(a18zn (19247
15.0 i 2,640 o 12.259
43,485 52,580
100 148 2
1.6 (15.335) {12.608)
N0 (2.826) 2,575
25,472 44754
12.0 -
25.472 44754
It T 419p 7230

A amro.ne repared n e Conso idated Siatemen: of Conpreaonsive [neome anove arise from coniin.uing opcralons.

Tae noes on pages 84 0 110 are an iniegra. gart of Thgse conso idated flnanaa swa.cmoen'F




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2023

Assets
Non-current assets
Invesimen: property
Cioer recewvaoles

Dierest rate derivativaes

Current assets
Tradc and otacr reccivaoles

Cash and cash equivalen:s

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
E000

Total assets

S — Hore —_Eoue
150 953364 945737

170 24783 23519

) _ 210 8229 2431
986,276  970.887

170~ 1L260° 12865

180 35588 53337

46.848°  £5.202

Liabilities
Current liabilities

1033124 1037.089

Trade and other payab.es J=Ne] (9,300) {9.497)
Non-current liabilities

Bgnk and ,oangrrowings 20.0 {361,915) (352,080}
Total liabilities ] e _ . (371,215  (351.542)
Total net assets 661,909 675547
Equity

Share capiza. 270 6.225 02725
Sharo prominom reserve 220 292,626 292.525
Capnra reducluon reserve 74.0 317,714 322345
Retained carnings ) - 230 45344 54.331
Total equity o 661,909 675347
Net assets per share_-_bﬁs_ig a_nc_i Qil-lgd T T T T T T -L;J_ ) __IP_QIE& _ l1c30p

Thege conso.dazed linancia. s:atements on nages 86 10 110 were aporoved oy Lhe Board of Direciors of Civiias Socia. Housing

PLC and autnorised forissde and signed on its henadf oy

L |

Michael Wrobel

Chairman and Independen: Kon-Exec. e Direcior
28 Tune 2073

Company Mo 10407528

e noles on pages 84 1o 10 are an inegral par: of these consa.ddated hinancial s:atemeon:s.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Balance at 1 April 2021
Protit and tola. comprenensive income {or e year
Saares reissued rom reasury

Shares cougnl back into reasury

Dividends paid
Balance at 31 March 2022

Profit and total comprehensive income for the vear
Shares reissucd fron ireasury

Shares po.gh! nace Mo ircasury

Dividends paid

Balance at 31 March 2023 o

230
24.0
14C

Shate
capital
£ 000
PP

LY

%3

Shate
premm

teserve
£000

292453

292,626

Caputal
reducucn
reserve
£.000

3310

184
(9.259)

332355

(4,651)

- smma

Retained Tolal
_ Teecs it
43670 673498
44734 44754
- 547
{9.259)
(34093) {34093
54331 575847
25,472 25,472
- (4.651)
(34,459)  (34,459)

45344 661909



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2023

For the

For the yveat! ended
yeat ended 31 March 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Protit tor tne vear belore taxation 25.472 44.754
Caange in fair va.ue of invesimaont proper:ics {2,640) (12.269)
Change in fair va' e of interest raze derivaives 2,826 (2.675)
- Ren: and incentve straighnt line ad;astmen:s 436 397
— Bad debt expensc/icredin 5.0 429 {7
Finance income (148) {7
Financea expense 15,335 10.608
Increasc in lease incen:ive regelvao.e {1,700} (2,010
Decrease/increase) in trade and omner recelvan.es 1,044 (P36)
(Decreaselfincrease in trade and oher payab.cs (1,725) 551
Cash generated from operations N o N o 39,329 39,095
Iierest receved 1438 7
Net cash flow generatéd from o_pe;ating activities B - - o '39.477 © z9102

Investing activities

Improvemen:s and puranasas of invesiment properues (4.679) (27.8695)
Acg.uistuon costs {211) (1.540)
Purcnase of subsidiary - inc.uding proper:y - (13.559)
3a.e proceeds on sale ol suosidiary  exc.uding property - 2595

" (4890)  (40199)

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Financing activities

Cos: of shares ooLgal into rcasary 240 (4,651) {3259}
Praoceeds from snares reissied [rom ireasary 4.0 - 919
Dividends paid 1o equity snargno ders {34,576) (33.828)
Inicrest rase dervative premium paid 210 (8.841)
Proceeds from tne dispoga of ineres: rate darivatives 216 17
Ban< porrowings advanced 200 70,875
Bank norrowings repaid 00 {60,000}
Banx oorrowing iss.e costs paid {3.148) 1.80G5)
Inicrest and sccurity fees pald on san< borrowings and derivaiives (12,.012) (8.590)
Net cash flow used in financing activities  (523%) (52553
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (17.749) (53,750
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 18.0 52,337 107.097
Cash and cash equivalents; at the end of the yea; S o TN 35.§§E 53337

= {lash and cash equivalents and monmes held in restncled acocounts and deposils have been estated as 4l 31 March 2022 {ollowing clanfcation by [FRTC on
classilicanon of tunds with externally imposed resinetons Please reter to detatls innote 2 4

The naes on pages 84 10 11T are an integral par: of these consohdated financial sTatemens.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

1O Corporate mmtormatioe

Civitas Social Houwsing PLC (tne "Comupany™) was mcorporaied in Lng.and and "Wa.cs under ine Companies Ac: 2006 as a pubac
“ompany Jimited py shares on 29 Sepiemoer 2015 with company numoeer 16402528 Uunder he name Civiias REIT PLC wnien was
s.nsequean:ly changed to (ne existing name on 3 Octoner 2016

~The address of the regisiered office is 6:h Floor, 55 Gresham S:rect, London FECZV 7NQ The Company is regisiered as an
investmen: company dnder section 833 ol the Conpanics Act 2006 in Lngland and Wa.es and is dormrici.ed in the Unied Kingdon.
Tne Company did not begmn trading wn 18 Novemper 2016 waen tne saares were admitied 1o rading on ine London Stock
FExchange (T.SED

The Company's Ordinary shares arc admritied 1o the Officia. List ol 1ne Financiat Conduc: Atnority ("FCAD and traded on
“he LST.

Tne principa. aciiviry of e Company and its saosidianes (the "GroupT) 1s 0 provide sharehoiders witn an acracuve .cve. of
income, ;ogether with e potenial for capita: growin lrom inves:ing in a porifo o of socia. homes.

20 K :
The financia’ siatements
e requirenen:s of e Companes Ac: 2008 as applican

514 0 e

ave oeen prevared in accordance wiin JK-adopnted internationa. accounung standards and with
O Comrpanias reporing Lndeor inose siandards.

The Group's consoidaed financia. s;aten:en:s have veean preoared on a husiorica’ cos: pasis. as modified tor e Group's

inves:men. oroperies and deriva:ive financia. msiramen:s at fair va e throagn profic or .oss

Pty o jordnio
The tinandia information ig presented in Pounds 3icring whicn ig a so the fanecuona. currency of e Crown and aio valucs are
roonded (o e neares: thowsand poandg (FOGCs), oxcen: waeore onerwise ndica ed

<

The Growp donelis Irom a secare income

G coniryyg

ream (rom ong lcases witn he Aporoved Providers. Toe Groun s casihy oa ances as
a: 31l Marcn 2023 were F35.588 0G0 of wihlen 72349000 was no.d as resiricied casn. Detals of thig can oe townd in noe 18.0

Tre Conpany and iis Invesiman: Adviser. Civitas Inves'men: Managemen: Turizad UCIMT) continue o word c.ose.y wiil e

Company's ma oI COLNICIDEries 10 monlior "hc posiiuon on e groand and, sqo..d it oe nacded. (o ofter assistance and

guidance wnere possio.c. Tag Board of Direciors pereves "nat the Comparny oueracs a ron..s: and defensive pusiness mode

and (na: gocia, nowsing and spaciaast acagacare are orovimg 1o oo some of e more resLicn! seciors WItn s mar<el given
a.ney are oascd on non-discrelionary 9.0ae secior exopenditure and nvasdemand exceeds sLpny

On 17 Novenoer 20272, an cxtension was gran:ed for ine lact.isy wiina FISBC Band p ¢ wiicn now Cxpires on 28 Noven ocr 2025,
G 13 Feoreary 2023, e Conrpany c.osed a new five year term doo fachny of 70 B75.0500 wiin Deuts
nas ocen dep.oyed (o redeem ne Company's revo ving credic facriy wiin Iooyds Ban< poc of E80000.001
addriona. aguidiy. As a res... now a. dent lacLries nave hixed or capped raes

cae Bans AG The taci ry
G.0CC ag we ©as oroviding

Cn 1 Decerroer 2622, tne Company signed a faciilty wii aninsiasuiona, .onder S.oseq.en: 1o 11is, on 21 June 2023 ;e
Company received cradi: approved ocrms tor an addinena 7612 miLion fixed facidly oased on a 3-year SOMNIA raze a: :he
date of draw down 195008 margin wito a mar.riy dao of 3 ALgas: 2025 Tae cventoda. drawdown on e faciny 1S s.0 e 10
cerain standard closing condinons

"d57¢ odsed on severs aut p.awsin.e downside scenarios 1ave ocen ron.in garic.ar e financia. osrformance
~d rent. As at 31 Maron e rens woud nave o drop oy aporoxamate.y 10Y ocfaorc
dacof approva. of us repor (ne Comoany as safficien: neadroam wiiin s
financia. .oan covenants Tac Comopany a aencils from a soc.rs incorn e sirsam from =¢ witn ong weolgaed avorage
Lnexoired lenm eases As a reg.loine Direciors e 10ve 1al e Growe s we L paaced o manage 12 linancing and omner

L. SINESS 1SS and “1at . Crowp Wil Imaln /A1an e COnin.Lang (o opsrate and meet 18 Jaoliles as 12y la. dua

Casn fLow tors
ot :enanis and a reducion in conire
any of 133 can covenan s arc oreacned A

Tac Company's aric.es of aggomanon inc.wde a regairenren or ne Board w0 praonse an ordinary ross. . on @t tne ann La.
goncra. masang fa.owing e fil anntversary from e inma oooac offenng of s Company for the Comrpany 10 Con'Iinwe
in g curren: form e Conin.auon Rego uion TS 08 was passed in Scoien:iasr 230 e Comoany ‘M COnin.Le 1t

Q .sine as orasen ronsiit ced and Wi 0ropose Tre sante reso. L cion at tac AGM N Seolemoer 2027 and e sery fifin annla.
goencra meaenng nersaber




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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On 9 May 2023, an announcemen: was made o tne market tor an a.-casa offer of Civitas Social Housing PLC (CSEH) trome
Weliness Jnity Limited, a whol.y owned indirec: subsidiary ot CK As Houdings Limiled (CKA). The offer became
ancondinionai on 23 Jane 2023, The Groups exising commitied dent faciizies coniain a standard change of conro. clause
whicn has now oecen sriggered duc o 1ne offer pecoming wneonditicenal. This could result in the existing commiited

deo: facilities being withdrawn. Furtnermore, the Directors do not have vigibilicy of the post compiction funding for the
Grot.p and Company is dime. The Direciors noie the detal.ed intentions statemen: included wiinin the announcemeni
rales nal CKA does not envisage making any changes 0 (he managemen: leam nor any disruniion
L0 any counterparties or 1o ine Lnderlying tenants. However, the condiiions ouilined apove indicaie a maleria’ unceriainty
whica nray cas: significan: downt wpon ne Croup's and Company's ability o continue as a going concern. The ITndependen:
Audiiors Report included within the Ann.al Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 Marcn 2023 aiso nignalig:
uncertainty. Therefore, notwithstanding the matenal uncertainty arising from ne offer trom CKA, (e Directors are satisfied &
‘he going concern Nasis ramains approoriate for “he preparation of the financia’ s:atements. The financial statements do not
inc.ade e adusiments that wou.d resuit if ine Group and The Company were unanie 1o continue ag a going concern.

d’

2% New standards, amenadiments and gyerpretanons
The fo .owing new standards are now effective and nave peen adopted for tne yvear ended 31 March 2023,

e IFRIC Agenda Item: Foliowing c.arification by IFRIC on :he classification of monies neld in resiricted accouns. monies
that are restricted oy Jse on.y are classitied a: 31 Marcn 2023 as Cash and casn cquivalents . As deiated in note 24, the
cormparanve ba.ances have been res:aicd where app.icanle (o ref.ec: inis change m c.assificauon.

s [FRIC Agenda Item: [n Cciober 2C22. the [FRIC issued an agenda decision in respec: of Lessor forgiveness of _ease
oaymen:s (TFRS 9 and TFRS 15) {:1ne [FRIC Decision on Concessions’). Tais conc.uded that josses incurred on granting
reirospeciive rent concessions $1o..d be charged 0 theincome statemen: on the date taat the ega. rights to income arc
conceded ti.c. immediaie recognition in f.u0. ratner than smootned over the ife of the lease). The claritication nas not nad a
Imarena. impac: on the financial staicments

* Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ (cficcive for perieds beginning on or afier 1 Janwary 2022) - gives
c.arification on tne recogniion of contingen: Jabi.ies at acquisrtion and clanfics that coniingant assets shou.d nol ne

ecognised at tne acquisition datc. The amendmen:s nave not nad a signihicant impact on (ne oreparation of e Hinanaia.
stalemenis

« Amendments 1o IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ (etfcctive tor oeriods neginning on or
alrer 1Janagary 2022) - gives c.arilication on cos's 10 incude in estmaring (e cos: of Lo tiling a conirac: [or the nuarpoge of
asgessing wheiner tna: coniract 1s oncroas. Tae anmendmen:s nave no. had a significant impac: on e prepara.ion of e

linancia. stalemens

» Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ {e{feciive for periods beginning on or afier t January 2022)  quves
clanficazion on ne fees an cnuty includes wnen assassing wheiher e terms of a new or modificd financia, taoiily are
sensania.y ditferen: from the terme of 1ne onginal liability. Tne amendmean:s have no: nad a significant impact on the
oreparation of 2ae inanclai sraiemenis.

20 Rostaremen!

SPEC Aaemda Penoniae Heqaorns v an Caatoa

In Marca 2C22. ;a0 [FRS Interpratations Commiziee ( IFRIC) finalised a deeision on the classtfication of momes neld in resiriciad
accoonts, such tna: monies ‘ha: arc resiricied oy Lse onvy, are classified ar 31 Marc 2023 as Cash and cash eq.ivaants

21 T reeatriCieer

Siooipilie Doetios

The Growp hods resiriciad casn lor ienan: deposizs and retenzion monies n relation (o deferred paymenis s.bject o
acaievamen: of ceriain condisions. omer reteniions and casn segregaed o fund repalr. mainicnance and Improvemran: worgs
lo bring ne properies Lo o satsfaciory standards for the Grouo and tha enants

Asares.. ol e [FRIC decision. tne Growo nas revisized its poicy and inc..des thaese monies wiinin 2ie c.assitication ‘casi
and cash equivda ens The adiusiment nas no imoac: on Jhe ¢.assitication ol the net asses ol e Graap on ine Slatemen:
of Financia. Fosiiion, aowever e NMOVAmerns on (aese pa ances are now repor:cd in tne Satemren: of Cashf.ows and
comparative figures nave poen restaied

Comparaiive figares for casyand casn equiva.ents aave increased oy F4252.000 (31 Maran 2021 r3.278 G001 Thas nag
resuiied in an increase o nc comparatve hgare for casn gencrated front operations oy 71,613 000 concerning maovonmaoen:s
on deoosit oa.ances and an increase o tho net cagn f ow wsed in invesung qactivites of £529.00C concerning movemen:s on
reienion monics

Tae Croup aas nol oresenied reviged baiance sneois as atl Aorn 2021 witnn the inancta. statemenss, inaccordance wiin IAS 1
Presoniauon of Financial Siacemrents and [AS 8 Accounting Poacies, Cnanges in Acco iniing Esinnates and Frrors

nig materia.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The following table shows the impact of these adjustments in the prior year:

31 March 2022

31 Match 2022 Restatemont Restated
. e £'000 T.ﬂﬂilii” - FUJ]IJ

(_51-_o_up cash flow statemzﬁt {extract) o o o
Ne:cash flow generated trom operating aciiviies 37489 1.613 39.102
Netcasn fow used in invostmg activities {39.570) {523) {1C.199)
Casn and cash equivaiens a: tne s:ar: of the year 103.819 3.278 107097
Casn and cash equiva.ents at nc end of the year 48975 4362 §3.337
dgccreasce in casn and casnh eq‘nvaicgjsr {51,841} 1.084 (53.750)

25 MNervstandards amoendmanrs
e fo.owing are new standards. interoretations and amendmenis, wlika are not yet effecuve and nave no ocon cary
adopied in s finanala. intormation. tnat wi. or may aave an offoct on e Growp's future financia. statlenents:

andmterpratations sftectese for hoare goeoanting perneds

¢ Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ (eftecive for parinds beginning on or at:er 1 January 2023) - c.arify how companies
accoun: for deferred lax on ransaciions s.cn as eascs and decommissioning on.igations. The amendment's are no:
expeoied 1o nave a significan: impacs on the preparasion of the financla. statemen-s

s Amendments to 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (cifccive [or periods osginning on or after 1 January
2025 arcemntended o ae o entinies in deading waicn accounting vo.cles o disc.ose in cncir financia. sia:ements Tac
amendmens arc no expecied 10 nave a significant impac on e oreparanon of (e linancla. staomens

e Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ (¢ffecive for penods
oeginning on or after 1January 2023} inroduce e delintion of an accoanting esamace and incl.de omner amendmen:s
0 1e g eniiucs distinguisn enanges in acco.ning estintaes from changes in accowniing oolicles. The amendiren:s are
no.axpecied (o Agve a signilican: imeac: on the preparalion of tne finanatda. s.a.emen:s

= Amendments to 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (stfeciive for periods seginning on or afsor 1 Jan.ary 2074)
- c.anly thatilaoyities are cassified as erner carrent or non-currens, depending on Cne figas na exist at e end ot ihe
reporing period and no: expaeciaiions of or actua. even:s after tae reporung daie. Tac anendme a:s0 give c.anficaion
o e deliniion of sedlement of a daniay The amendmen:s are no: expecied o nave a Signitican: 1mpac on e
proparation of ine financia. s:atemen:s

S Seqgracntal intermoition
[FRE 8 Goerating Segmenss req.iras oporating segmens (o o denified on 2ig vasis ol inierna’ financia. reoors ano.;
componcnis of e Grown tharare regaary reviewed oy ‘ne Calef Coeraing Decision Maker waica in tne Gro.o's case is
de.egated to e Invesimen: Adviser wno nas formed an Execuive Team. inorder 1o 4. 0caie resnsroos 10 1ie segmeantsand o
asgess 1 nelr performance.

Taeinterna. financia. reporis received oy ne Invesimen: Advisar's Exec.tive Team conlain tinancia. information at a Gro.n
Ve, as a wao o and ere are no reconcling Lems pelween e resulis oontalned m taese repors and Lie amo.wn:s reporied
N ne conso ldaed linanca sfaiomenss.

ao Direcoors consider e CroLo’s 0roocrsy 0orfo o reoresens a concrens and diversifiod oorfo.io w1 it ar economis
DH orog s E i i

charamensice and as a res, e wWaoe porfolo of DIooories renresents 4 SIiNG.C 000TANNY sagmant In e view of e

according y one reporao @ segment wnder e provisions of [IFRS 8

Aof e Gro o' proveraes are gascd in tae JK Coograpiica intormaion 18 oroded 10 ens.re como 1anas Wit o
dréersiicanon reg.uarements 21 Lae Contoany, 0100T 1an s No geogran ica gro.oing 1s contamed 1n any of 1 in
Inanaia reporns orovided to ac Invesimen: Adsser’s Fxacuve Team and. nerefore, no googragnica. segirsenia ana.ysis 1s
reg ared oy [FRS 8

na

Tae Dircoiors noe e requirentents N IFRS 8 Paragraon 34 peraliung o oniiles L mon conto. and confirme tnas
020 ALc<and Honra o .ions and Gua ras Housimg ‘as essces of e Comreany g 1o nirsa. 2s7ater are Lnder comnon
contra of The soutd) Ho wsing Famr Uy CIC " T3HEY Tac percentage and g.m 0:a. of (ne Comoany's ann.a. contracad rens ro

OCIAaIMING "o ness Souwn'erpariles as i tacy 20 08 3 SINg.e DLsiamer zan oc tound innote 28 0 and an page 9
1

0l 10 Ann.a Foonre




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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A0 Sghs
Tn tne apolication of tne Group's accouning policies, wnica are described in note 4.0, 1hc Directars arc req.aired o make
fudgements, esiimates and assamplions ano.ul e carrying amodnts of asgets and hapilites that are not rcadily apparen:
frony omer sources The judgemen:s, estintates and associared assumplions tha: nave a significant risk of causing a materia.
ad’.stmen: 10 1ne carrying amown:s of assots and liaoilines witnin the financial year are oullined be.ow:

AT AaCLSUNUNY NG MOnts SLEMAlns 3 assumplions

salaatior ot

S Sigrfiean? esatindgte

TR TINE Y (1 et o
The GroLo uses the valaation carried oL oy 155 independent va.uer as “he fair value of its propery oorllodo The valaaton is
hased Jpon assuamprions including Laure rental income and the appropgnate discoant rate, 7ne va.ucrs also make reference o

marke: evidence of ;ransaciion orices for sinvn ar properties. Furtner information is provided in nowe 13.C.

The Group's properiies nave pcen independent.y va.ued oy Jones Lang Lasare Limited {UJLL or the "Va uer’) in accordance
wilh De carrent Roya! Institiuion of Cnartercd Surveyors Va.uation - Glooa. Siandards. incorporating e [VS and ihe RICS
Va.sauon  Gooopa. Bandards 2617 JE nationa. suppiemen: {the RICS "Red Book"). JLL is a wel. recognised professiona. firm
winin social nousing va.uation and nas sufficien: current .oca. and nationa. <nowledge of ooih socia. housing generally and
Socclalis: Supportcd Housing (CSSHY and has the scitls and wnders:anding (o andertace tne vaaalons comoeent.y.

Wi respect o (e Group's consolidated financial statcmen:s, invesiment properics are va wad al (neir fair vaode at each
opalance saect datein accordance witn [FRS 13, Fair va_uc meas.wromoen:s should ba oregenied and ¢'assilied Lging a lair value
nerarcay aal reflecis the significance of Tne inpuis Laed In the measuremreants. accerding o the folowing lovels

Level 1 Unadjusied. qaoted orices tor identica: asses and Jlanillties in acuve ((ypica.ly quoicd) mar<e's.
Level 2 Ino.s other than quoled prices inc sded witain Love. 1 1nat are coscrvapico for the a Or 14600 11V ¢
(ihat ig ag prices) of ndirecty (nal is. derived from prices)
Level 3 B 'Iinpqts for one agser or dabiiy that are ndt aisc)d onﬂdbsorvafoio mar<et daa funooservaple inouigl Va.ue ig the

Directiors best estiimate, pased on advice from relevant xnow.edgeanle experis, .s¢ of recogniscd va:aatdon
wcenniqaes and a detenrinasion of wailch assampiions shou.d be appiied in va.uing s.cn agsets and wit
pardicu.ar focus on the specilic atiribuies of e invesimenls nemselves

Civen tae hespore natare of eacn ol e Group's iInvesimen's. ine pariucilar reguirements of d.c diligence and tinancia
toninbocion opained from Toe vendors wogeiner with tne recen: emergence of 3SH, all of the Grouo's invesiren: properiies
arc inc.Jded in Level 3

T4 Swnificant estinnate - vajnation of mierest rate denvanives
Tnc fair valuc of Grouv's interest rac deri

oy e respecive coLnerpariies. The counterpariics .se a namoer of assumpions in determining (ne lair v
re interes: raes and fuiure casn tL.ows UsSIng cbservab.o yield curves

rerrent of Financia. Position and is de:ermined
e, mciuding

ives is recorded in (e Group 30

esumaions over
33 Swgnibrcant pudageiment - Business combinations

Tae Oroup acgaires sungidianey 'nal own invesiunen: nproveries Al the ame of acgdisiaon. the Group considears wnelner gacn
acquisizion represen:s the acg.aistion ol a business or the acqg.aisiion of an asse:. Management considers 1n¢ substancc of 1ne
aszers and aciividies of e acgaired entity in determining waelher the acguigition represenis e acguisition of a pusiness

Tac Gro.p accouan's for an acg.aigition as a business comolnalion waere an iniegrated ge of acivites is acg.aired in addizion
0 e propery Where suon acqulsitions arc notudged o oc e acguisiion of a pusinaess, tney are not ireated 4s nusiness
compinaions. Ra:ncr (ne cos: to acguire iae corporate entity (s a ocaied belwoeen e identitlan’s assels and aaptiies ol the
e acgalsiicon daie Accordingly. no goodwi . or addiziona deferred 1ax arises.

ently pased Loon neirreatve tair va_.es a

THere Were ne COrooraie acdalsiions made in tae Vedrn

D.ring tac¢ previows vear tne Growo eniared mio a iransacion (o acqaire (e froeno d proveries nperated by CP1 Care Limited
Joon e acgastiion of tie company: 110 oronerins were ransforred 1.0 01107 oL SonTanics and 10 com pany acd.airog

aiong witn s associatad operanons, was soid o Lnvivo Coronduam Bideo Limied, Farhor detais are saown m note 16.0 10 the
linancia siaemen's

ac acqoarad companics meae: e delinution of @ ousiness .nder IFRS 3 and e rransacuon was Jaorefore rocorded as a
DLEINess COMmoinalon,

Because e Group acqaired e Comodany witi e INen: 10 5601010 0uwsSneass, managan an: anon.iad e saor-cul meiaod
nder IFRS 5 3nosidiaries acguired wita a vicw "o resa’e. Under tus metod, cne saosidiary 18 recorded at lair va.,e less cosy
‘o se . and there is no requiremen: (o 1air va.yc e s.osidiary's individaa. asseis and aabn fues.

g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.0} Sigmificant pnageinent - Gpe 35Ng irase conoacis the Group as lessor

Tne Cro.p nas acquired iInvesiman: oroper thatare subec: o comrrmercia. oroverty «©ascs witn Approved Providers
Group has determined. oazed on an ovat.ation of the terms and condiions of the arrangerrencs, pariicuiary e diration
of 1ne easc torms and minimum ‘easc paymen s, tnat i retains all 1ne significan: ngks and rewards ol ownersnip of tnesc
oroperttcs and so aceounis for 1ne .cases as oparaiing (eases.

35 Swgmficant pudgement REIT Statas

Civitas Socia: Housing PLC is a Real Estate Tnvesimen: Trus: (REIT). Thme JK REIT regime applies waen entities mec: cerain
conditions wita ine effcct tha: ine income profits and capiia, gains of (e qualifying oropery rental pusiness are axemp: from
ax. Within tnese condriions ai .eas: 9C% of e Groop's property income must pe disiribuied as dividends 1o snarena.ders and
e Group mus! ens.re al D1e property refita. business represents more an 73% of tota) prolits and asscis.

Fo.owing e comrnaeilon of tne offor, there isa eve. of uncertainy tna: the Group wil remain i 1e REIT regime

40 Sumoary of ~sigmibicant agceanting policias

The principal acco.ning policies apgo.ied in iac preparadion of the consoadated inanoial sTaiemenss are se 0.l go.ow Tae
ooacies nave deen consisien:y apoied 1o a. periods presenied. aness ;mhorwise siated

TU Basre af s onaaitaation

Tac conso klaed financia. statemen's comorise ne financia intormation of ine Gro.p as a

e year cnd date.

Soosidianes are a.! en:ities over wnich (e Greudo 1as coiro,. 7he Growo conirols an en'is e Growp is exnoscd o,

or has rignis 1o variago @ retuIing rom 155 1Invo vemant with ne enity and has “ne aoliy (o affect tnase retums nroaghg
oower to direct ne aciiviiies of e enity Ao INra-groun ransaclions. oa.ances. income and expensas arc e.iminaied on
consoidaion e financia. information ot ihe suonsidiaries is inc:.ded in ne consadidaed hnancia. temrens from ine dac
TIEL CONTTO. COMMoNCces unti a0 dae Lndal CONTO: Ceasts

[f an equity ineres: in a supsidiary (s ransferred nus a coniro.ing inleres: contmacs o0 oo ned afier ;he ransier man ne
crange in ownersalp mieres: s accown:ied for as an eq. iy ransacion,

Coouniing 9o.lcies ol e supsidiaries are congisten: Wit tne policies adopled oy tne Company.

Tovwwnt el or
[NVCSIMmern. Oropery. wiich is oropery qe.d © earn renta.g and/or tor capia. aporocianon, iz inlda.y measurcd ai cos., ooing
e lair va_.e of tne consideration given. inc odimg expendil.re anig dirccly 4000808 D e acgudisiinon ol ne invesimen:
propery Afler invia’ recognition, invesimen: proocry 1s siated atitss fair vasic at e na.ance sneg: date Gaing and osses
ansing from cnanges in e fair va. e of invesimen: property arc me..ded in proli: or 0ss for tne penod in w+icn iney anse in
e Consoddaed Siaicmen: ol Compreaensive [ncome

spperi

S.wosecquen: exoendlore s capitalised on y wacn iTis prooas.c mal tuiure goonome ponctlis are assodlated wit 1 exoendiiare

Ongoing reoairs and main.enance are expenzsed as incarred Overaeads and onoraing €X08nses are no’ caplalised.

Annvesuren: proper:y is derecognised L00n disposa. oF wien D1g INVEsUT eN: Oroper:y 1s permanen: y wizadrawn from ose
and no ta.re cconomic nencils are expecied fron' tne disposa Any gain or 0ss ansing on derecognizion of 1ne oroopery
(ra co.aed as e difference neiwe e netdisoosa. oroceeds and e carrying amo.ln: of (ac assetis mcurred in orohs or
L088 1N e oenad in wAlcn e grogarty s derccognised

signillcan: accoLnung | dgemen's, csamass and ass.mouons ntade [or 1o vaowdion of Invesineonl oroperies arc disoassed

i note 3t

ATCS WASNevor JC farms of 1o sass
Qiaar eases are o assificd as sparaing ea

Lca

ransfer s.ostania.y a. o 1e 11s<s and rewvards of
SVWNETS 10 D L ]

sand acco.n'g

Tac Comrnany aas daicrnmingd caal b relamnes a., o sigminicant ne<s and rewards of swnersals ot
for ine contracis as operaling .cages as dizoosged in noe 34

ses are no. .dedain nvesimen: oropcry 1 ne Danso.idaiad 3tatemren: of Financia.
DAS1E 2VCr T ermT OfF 1€ re euant dagseys

Pronerics cased 0. .nder oparaiing .es
Posiion Renta income ITOM 00Cr4lng cascs is recogmsad 2n a siraig 1. ing

[zasc Inceni/e oosis are recogmised as an asse: and amorased orer tae Life of 10
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11 Fmapcial Assels

I B M

The Group ciassifies s inancia. asses in ne (Dl.owing measuremen: caegories:

e noge 10 be measured sansequenty a:fair value (either througn olther comprehensive income or tNro..gh proflt or .oss) and
e “hose 10 be measured ar amorased cost.

The ciassificanon devends on e entily's pusiness model lor managing e financial assels and the contraci.lal lerms
ot ine cash tows. For asseis meas.red af fair value. gains and .ossas wil ei:her be recorded in profit or [oss or oiner
comerchensive income

VLot e
Trade and other receivapies are amounis d.e in the ordinary co.rse of buginess. If colecuon is expected in ocne ycar or ‘ess.
ey are classitied as current asse's. I now they are presen.ed ag non cLrren: asse's

EEE T T T

Trade raceivabes are recognisad ininaiy allair valae and s.nseduaently are measJred at amorliged cost Lg2ing ine aeffective

interest meod. less impairment provision. Tne Group holds the rade receivanles wiln e oneciive 1o col.ecl e conract.a.

cash [Lows.

g
The Group's financia. asses are supject o the expecied craedi: 0ss mode.

For tradc receivabices. the Grouwo apo.ies (ne simplified approach ocrmitied oy IFR3 9, which requires cxpacied lfctime losses

10 be recognised from initia. recognition of (e receivab.es.

The cxpected .oss rates arc bascd on nc payment profiles of (case income over a poeriod of up 0 12 mon:hs before 31 March
2023 or 1 Aprl. 2022 respecuvely and 1ne corresponding nisionca: credi .o8ses experienced wiinin this period. The historical
toss rates are adlisied o ref.ect curren: and forward-'oo<ing inlormanon on macroeconomic laciors attecung e liaplity

ol the :cnants o seine “he receivapic Such forward-loo<ing informartion wo.l.d inc..do: cnangas in cconomic. reg. aory.
technologica. and environmental faciors «such as indusTy o.0ilooL GDP emp.oymen: and po'ltics!: exiernar rarsal indicators:
and tenan: gasc

Bascd on :he assessmren: and ne gpecilic worg tnat is wnderway around co..eclion of aged arrcars. a provision of
£459.000 (2022 £239.000) has peen reflocied in ne annua. resuits,

Trade receivap.es are writien olf wnen there is no reasonan.c expeclaion of recovery

Indica:ors tna: 1aerg 18 no recasonap.c cxpeciauosn of recovery inc.wde, among o:aers. tha grooabl.iiy of inga.venay or
significant hnancal difficuties of the deotor Impaired deo:s are derecognised wacn they are assessed as unco. eoddae

[ N L TR AT B L

Casn and cash equiva ents incl.de cash in nand. casiv neid by awyers and iquidizy tinds with a ierm of no moere @ian iree
rontas tnas are readily conversiole io a snown amo.ant of casn and which arc suojec: 1o an insignilican: ris of cnanges inval.e

Resiricied cash reoresen:s amounts ae.d for specilic commiiments. tenan: deoosits and retention money neid by awyersin
re ation o deforred paymen:s suoico o achicvemen: of ceriain conditions. other reientions and casn segregated o fund

repalr mainienance and improvemen: works (0 ring he properties Lp o sausfactory standards [or ‘he Group and the lenans.

e T . T -~

Derivalve iInancia. insiraments. wlg:l comprige inierest rate caps and swaps [or nedgmng ourposces, arce initdally recogniscd
a:fair va e aracq.isiiion and are suoseguenl y meas.red atfair va. e ocing 1ne cslimaied amoun at 1ae Growp wou'd
recelve or nay o se. or ransfer the agrecment at ine period ond date 1aking inio accouni CLITCNT INTETest 1ae exncciations
and ne carren: credit rading of tne 'endor and i's countorparacs. The insirumaen nay be an assel or a dability. Tne galn or .oss
a: cach falr va «oremeas.renion: date s recognised in e Crowes Consoddaied Siatenten: ol Comprehensive [ncomao.

Dertvaiive financia insirameants are derecogmsed whaen (e rngns o receive casn Lows fron the agreement nave exoired
or nave veen ransferred, and tac Gro.wp as wransferred suosan.ia. vy an ine ns<s and rewards of ownersnio The differonce
peiween e carrying amoun: and consideration reecewvaed is recognised as a gain or oss in e Group's Consoudated
Sraremen: of Comrprensnsive Income

The Crowe wses val Lalon leganig.es nad arc aovpragriae in e crcamsiances and for which sufficient daza is avallao.s
0 meas.rae fair va,Le, maximising tne ge of ro_ovant opscrvao.c Inpuis and minurising o cseof Lnopservan @ inous
significan: 1o he fair va..e n'eas.ramernt as a who.e

Other than derivauve finanaial insiramen:s waien are not designaed ag nedging msiromen:s. the Grown does no: have any
assels 12.d for rrading nor docs 1L vo Lniarl y classily any tinancial asseis as peing at lalr vaue throuagn prolic or  oss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

45 Financrat nabihues
The Gro.p recognises a hnancia. ldapLiy wnen i irs: oecomaes a party ‘o (e contractual rignis and ootganons inthe coniract

Al Tmancial Habiiiies are Inlda.y recognised a: falr va.we. minus {in the case of a linancia. tability 'nat is not at fair value
Saroagh profll or .nss) ransacton costs thad are directy atinibuian.e "o 1ssuing the financa. labritty Financia. Jaabiilies are
subsequontly measured a. amorised cost. un.ess ne Group opled Lo meas.re a dapiaty a: fair va:ve throug profit or loss

A financia. jaonility is derecognised wnen ne ob.dgation inder the rantlity is discaarged. cana
b

od or expiras.

Troache 3l LTotwl ey Aty

Trade and omaer payanles are c.assified as current liaoi.nes if paymen: is due wiihin one year or _ess [f not. ey are presented
asg non-current liabiities Trade and other payao.es are recognised mizia.y a: ‘neir fair value and suoseg.enl.y measured at
amortised cos uniL serted. Tne fair vaiue of a non-interes: bearing :laptlity g iis discounied repayment amo.wnt If the due
date of tie Janllity is .ess than one vear discoLniing is omised.

LR

: g i

and oiner porrowings are inilaily recognised at fair va.ue ess direct.y aurib.iab.e ransaction coss Ateriniia.
raecognition al vank and omer porrowings are meas.rod ar amortised ¢ogi, wging (e effective Interast memod. Any
arripaabe Tansacilon cosis reuating 0 e ssue of e oand oorrowings are amorised mrougn e Growp's Slatemen: of
Comoprehensive Income over tnc ife of (e destinsiranien: on a siraign.-.ine oasis.

T e

Borrowings are renoved fron: 1ne conso.ddaed s:atemen: of financia: posution when “ne oollgaton soecifled in the contrac:
18 discnarged, cance..ed or expired. The differcnce celween Mg carrying amoun: ol a financial Jlagilty inar nas ocen
exringulsned and the consideration paid is recognised in orofiz or loss as a {inance cos:

s Pros

HR Y EF R

Provigsions are recognised waen the Gro.up 1as @ presen: ooidgation (ega or congirLcivel as a res.a of a pastevent s
prooan'e 11a: ae Growp wil pe regaired (o seine tnat onagaton and a reliao ¢ esiimate can oc made ol 1ne amoun: of the
op.igation

TAe amoun: recodnised a3 a orovIsion 18 Do ocst esumae of (ne consideraton requaired (@ 50106 e Drogen: opdgauon at e
pa.ance snce; daic tadang 1IN0 acco L 1ac Ns<s and Lneerainties sarrounding e 00 1gaion

Tawanies:

aon on tae orofil or .oss [or e penad not exemrn: nder JK REIT raga.alons 1s comonsed of curren and deferred ax Tax
ognised in the Consoudared Slatemrent of Connreicnsive [Ncomeas 9XCoDT To tne CXICNT 11al 1L re.aios o ems recognised
as a direc: moveImen: In aq.wiy. 1IN Wilen caso 1018 recognised as a direct movenmen: in eq.iiy Cairent lax is cxoccicd ax
pavao.e on any non-REIT laxan.o income for 1ac vonod. Lsing jax rates enacied or swosianiive y enacied al 1o pa.anae s188:
daze. and any ad!asimen: 10 lax payan.en respect of previo.,s periods

The curren: lax cnarge g cacu.ated on oroflls ansing in iac period and in accordanc
enacied or s.osania..y enac:od e na.ance gaeal dalc

A1 0 gis.alan WIS as veen

Deferred fax is providad on emporary differences noiween e carrying amo.nts of asseg and aaniiies for inanaoia.
reponing porposes and 1ne amoants -sod for axation purposes. Tao amown: ol deforred tax nat is provided is oased on
“ne 2xocoicd manner of 1ealdsanon or soraman of Te carrying amro.ant of assels and daolildes Lsing tax rates enacied or
s.osanivey enaced al (e oa.ance 10 date

12 Tarm

SrrAges et
Thc Gro.ns oo eciies WACH Manaying caota. are o safcgLard e Cr
;)TT)'J\ii‘." re-.rns for shareno AT o Mmaimam an LJoanTa ag

10 COMNINLC 48 a going concern in order o
e cos: ol capia .

Caplia ass

sontorse ae o owing:

3t March 2023 31 March 2022

£000 £ 00
Procsedsiir:;}r S1c 18,8 ;;t—Oaiinar',' s_ngr_—k and r:tan.we-:?;z;nmgs T 0 - 661.509 __gﬁ.ﬁﬂf’
Bans< and .oan nporrowings 261,915
Total - (7 D T iomsaa




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

~

The DIrectors may Lse gearing (o enhance aquity returns. Tae level of borrowing wil
and will secx 10 acniove a low cost of funds, whils: mainiaining the flexibility in the
sructare of tnc Group.

ba on a pradent basis tor the assel o
nder.ying securily reguiremen:s and :

Tao Groun may. fo owing a decision of the Board, raise dep: from bangs and/or the capiial marseis and the aggregase
oorrowings of tne Group wil. always o0 sL.b. ot 10 an ansoluie maximum, calcuiated at (ne time of drawdown, of be ow 40% ol
ne Gross Assel Value on a fully invested pasis.

19 Divviends payabide 1o sharenoidsres
Dividends are included in the financia. siatements in :ho yvear in waich they are paid

IO Rental income

Rensa: inconte from invesimeant proper:y is recognised on a straigh:-ine oasis over (he werm of ongong leases and is shown
gross of any UK incorre tax. Lease incenuves are spread eveny over the (casc icrm Losses incurred on granung rerospective
ren: concessions are charged o e income s:atemen: on the daie that e iega. rights 1o income are concedead {ie immediae
recognizion in fuli rather tnan smoothed over ne .ife of the case)

Ing.rance recnarges and oner surilar receip's are recognised under IFRS 15 Revenue from coniracts with cusiomers, and are
inctaded in net renta. and proverty ncome gross of tne related cosis as he Direciors consider the Group acis as pringipa. in
‘his respect.

I Fiance mdone

Finance incone 1s recognised as mnceresi, and is accrued on casn and cash equivalent baiances neid oy e Groupn.

112 Frnance contls

Finance cosis consis: of interes: and oiner cosis that ine Gro e INcars in connection wiin ban< and omer norrowings. Bank
interes: and bank cnarges are recognised on an accerua’s oasis, Borrowing rransaciion cosis are amor:ised using (0¢ offective
ineres: rate.

113 Lapenses
AL expenses, incoading Invesiment Advisory (ees are recogriused in 2ne Consolidated Statemen: of Comoprenhensive Income on
an accrda s nasis.

1Y Simdreassue conis
The eosts ol $SLING OF TeasquInng egully insruments (ommear tnan in a bustness comrpinaton) are aceoun:ed for ay a deduction
from equity.

115 Exveptional itemns
Excoptional ilems refate 1o amoudnts wihich do no nerma.ly 9ccar in e nonma course of ousiness

ne

Excopliona. profzasionar costs for two major pro/cais nave neen disc.osed separate.y Thesa re.ale (o codls asgsoidied wits
offer [or e ourgiase of tne entire share capral of e Company oy a suinsidiary of CK Asset Holdings Linited (CKA} and cos's
yosiponed,

associazed win a planned bond iss.c wnicn was

115 Strare hoejd iy tred-uvy

The cogs. including dircer v atirinuraple rransachions costs, of purcnasing the Company's own sidres 1o oe ne.d in reasury
are deducisd from equiy and ©ac ¢osts arc snown in tae Conso.ddated Saemen: of Changes it Loty Congidaraion
rocordad. ne: of ransaciion cos:s, [or ac resa.e of ‘nese snares is aso included in eqaaty, Wals oae Company noids saares in

treas.iry e calc. atons for netasser va.se and carnings per saare arc ad_. 1o oxciude those shares.

:
:
:
-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

30 Kentaonoaac

For the For the

year ended year ended
31 Malchg?g:g ka ) Mdrclll::l‘?UZS
FE:I_A‘ income troom mvies:n:e_n: pIOVCIY T T T T | __“S';G’,ST o 51.0%8 -
Ren: siraigh: ‘ine ad;ustiman:s 586 529
Lease inconiave amoriisaion (1,022) (926}
Rechargean.e cosis recejved 1,512 995
Rental income i - - T 34607 51878
Less direct property expenses
Insurance and service cnarge ¢osts (1,512) (995)
Bad debt (429) 17
Direct property expenses - B T T Taean 978
rm_fental incame T - T - T T 52666 T 50608

Recnargeap e cosis received rcoresent ins.arance and service cnarge cos:s pald by 1ne Grouwp and recnarged 1o iae
Approved Providers and are accounted for wnder TFRS 13 'Reven.ce from conrac:s wiil cusiomers’

Ag per e .case agroements wita tac Groap and Apobroved Providers, the Aporoved Providers are responsin.e for me
cmen: of a . presen: and fulire rates laxes and 07erimo0siions payaos c i rasoec of 18 prodery. A arres., Lono fariner
Drooery exXnNonsss were mo.rred

A0 Dire Dros reE e ity
For the For the
yeat ended year ended
3 March 2023 31 Match 2022
_ — - - R — £ 000 £000
Dircciors fees 194 190
Emo.oyers Nationa Insuarance Contripuiions 17 13
Total 211 A0Sy

e Direciors are remaneraad for Drerr servicss i accordancs wita (e Romaneranon POy Wil SOIS Daran e.ars wiimimn
wnicn Direc.ors’ remancrasion may oe st Tne Rentuneration Po.ley is approved ny snareno ders

Dige 0s.res reg.ared oy ag Companies A 2005 on DIrecors romanaranion e Lding 4. aries. $1are Q0ions. 9ension
coniriouiiony and oension eniliemen: and 1os ficd oy e Lisiing R..es of 1ac Finanaa. Cond.c ALnonty are ing wded

on vages 54 10 57 1n 1ne Remuneration Fepor: and form par: ol *hcse Flnanacia Siatemans

Toro Partn qlars b o

Tae oLy wad noemo o

Z
z
=




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

&0 investiment advisory feps

Fot the For the
year ended year endeod
31 March 2023 31 Mdrch 2022
o . . L —— . FooOD £000
Advisory feo 6,206 8132
Disoursomeants n
Tulal 6,217 3132

Civitas Inves:ment Managemen: Limited ("CIM"} is the apeeinied [nvesimen: Adviser ol tne Conpany. Under the current
fnvesimen: Managemen: Agreemen:, :ne Advisory Foo sha.l oc an amouwnt calculaled in respect of each guarler, in each

casc pased spon the Ner Assel Valie mos recenty annowneed 1o tne marker at the reievant (ime (as adiusied for iss.es or
repurchases of shares in the period between the date of sucn announcemen: and the date of tne relevan: caiculation). on 1ne
fol owing hasgig

a) on hat par: of the Net Asse: Value up 1o and inciuding 7250.000.000. an amoun: equa. 1o 1% of suen par: of thc Net Asset Va.ua,

b) on that pars of the Net Assel Val.e over £250.000,00C and up 1o and including £360,000.00C. an amount equiai 1o G.9% of such
part of thie Net Assct Valuc:

¢} on aa. part of the Ne: Asset Va.ue over £500,000.00C and wp 0 and including £1.00C,000.00C, an amoun: egua. o 0.8% ot

oo pars of e Net Asse: Vaoue:

d} on ha parof the Net Asset Va..e over £LCCC.0CC.C00. an amount eq.a’ o G 7% ol such par: of tne Net Asset Va_ue

The appeinmment of the Invesiment Adviser snal conunue in force uniess and cniil terminated by either sarty giving to the

oiner no! ess than 12 monins writ'en notice. sica notice no! 0 expire ear.ier than 30 May 2028

9.0 General and administralive espenses

For the For the
T arch s 51 iaareh s02
£000 E'000
Le(ﬁ. ‘and ;Jré)lessiona tees ’ ) ) a ].250 1.439
Excepnona. professiona cosis 1816 -
Adminisiration fees 1,044 1.037
Cons...ancy tees 143 130
Andi foes 441 340
Aporive cos:s 48 194
Valuazon fees 96 1CC
Deposiary fces 71 i
Grants and donations 65 26
Insurance 97 84
Mar<cling 2258 343
Eeg.iaormy tees 21 23
Sundry expenses 76 Qz
Total . o o "~ 5393 3909

Aporive cosis represent cgal and professional feos incorred In re.aton 1o e acdg.isiiton of invesimen: proonories and
at were considerad 0wl sudsagLonty anorad.

oroposed gnare iss.es

Cenera. and adminmsiralive cxocnses [or 1ne carrent year coniain exceouona. professiona. cos:s of CLBI6.COG (B077 7INi ) Thas
costs periain o iwo sirategic pro ccig the Company 2as ocen eva'sating and contonsge ot £1,28400C (20224 Ini} associaed win
“ne offer for tno purchase ol (e entire snare capta. of the Corrpany by a s.osidiary of CK Asse: Ho.dings limited (CKA) and
£E22.000 (2022, FNi ) associaed wih a p anned oond tgsuc whicn was oosioonad

ALD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Servreer provided by e Group s aaditorsand 1hou dssooatasy

The Group 1as optained the folowing services from 1ac Grour's a.diiors and their associates:

T - - T B o - TForthe | Forthe
year ended year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2027

. . I - o o L0un £000

Fees payable to the Group's auditors and their associates for auditing financial statements:

Andi of 1ne Group's finanaia. statemenst 358 286

Tolal fees payable for audit services 358 235

Fees payahle to the Group’s auditors and their associates for other services:

A.dil re.ated services - review ol (he ha.f year financial statements 83

Ciner services® o o L - )

Total fees payable to the Group's auditors and their associates 441 452

1 Tncludes £64,000 (2022 £18 000) costn relatuon 16 the previeus yeat audit
2 This amount was recogmised within vxcepuonal legat and professional costs in the year ended 31 March 2022

et Furrogne v dere animyer

TFor the For the

year ended yeat ended

3t March 2023 3 March 2022

. _ . o o m o ,L‘ oo

In:cres: ancd dividonds re 148 4

Banx< intcres: recerved - 3

Total 148 7

HH] 1

For the For thie

year ended yeat ended

31March 2023 31 March 2uz2

I . e . e [ o R ﬂ . £ o0

Bans< ciaarges 8 €}

Inieres: paid and pavao.e on pan< polirowings and denvaiives 12,151 8937

Amoriisaion of .oan lss.e 00ss 1,869 15533
Cosis of eary repaymen: of deo: 1271

Loan sec.rity fees 36 42

Total 15,335 10,558

Doring e year e Loyds Bang p.o 000 revo.ving aredl: faciny was repaid Co ol caryrepaymen: ol deoline o

1ind cne write off of 1ac remamning wnamoriased 0an 1ss .e

0 rom corporalion tax on e orofitg and gamns ITon 108 ropeny INVesiIcn. D.sinass,
:eriain condilions as s owlin e JE REIT reg. anons, For e correns year ended 21 Marcn 2523, 01e Gro.p

ere = no dx Snargs In oA year Ifoqore were any non-g.aat ing

orevided i moes
didd no. 1ave any non-g.a-itying orofiis and according.y
oroflig and gains. tnese w0 . d 00 5.0 8010 COrpOTaNoNn 1ax

Deterred tax aag not ooen recognized on lemporary differences ro.anng @0 51 oroQerty renta o .siness Mo doforrad ax assel
tsed residaa current year 0$s0gag 1 s N0t anikacacd al sothicient resid La.
oven: faat C1viias prooery 0oritlo »was o oc so.d al /3. .aiuon. any gains

d onosioa disposa.s may 08 £.0 00 W0 axdanon in e JK Ceneraly disoosa s 0y a REIT ol asse's wo.d tor ne ourpose
ol 8 Dropery renia. ousmess 100 d oe mo: from JK corporainon tax e Direciors do no oe i Jasany oropories

w1 e Crnias proosrsy noridfoio meeal Dac condions tor assats 1e.d 4g nar of 110 D000y TEN'A D LSINESE N0INg $..0.9 2
corgaraion tax on diggosa. According U tae Cr/ras gropery oundo o was o oe soda va Laton. s Diracions ssmain gl
no Soroord 10N Jax daniisy wa o.d anss on 1a. se

neci ol 1ae Wna

AL oe goeneratad in e foare Inc




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Fo. owing ne compietion of the offer, tneres a lovel of Lncerialniy tnat the Growp win remain in ithe REIT reginnc.

For the For the

yearended year ended

31 Match 2023 31 Maich 2022

_ ) . _ i ) £000 £'000
Corporaion tax charge for he year -

Total - -

For the For the

year ended vear ended

SIMBIChE?':[.]jS k11 M:lr(‘,hﬁ?il)‘lj(?i
Group - ) o - ) ) o o
Profiz pefore taxation - 25472 44,754
UK corporalion ax rale 19% 19%
Theoretica. tax at UK corporation tax rale 4,840 8,503
Effccis of.
Change inva..e of exemp! inves.men: proper.ies (502) {7.331)
Exemrp: REIT income (6,019) (5,598}
Amoun:s not deduciiole for tax gurposcs 1081 1230)
Unutihged residual current yedr ax losses 600 555
Total - - - -

A deferred tax asse: of E2877.000 2622 F1288.000). caculated using the fortheoming tax rate ot 25%, 1as no: peen recognised in
respea ol e anutilised resid sa. current vear iossas as it is not anticipated tha: suffician: residua prohli's wi. be generated in
e tdiure.

Tae siandard raie of corporation tax is cuLrreniy 19%. The s:.andard rate of corporation ax increased o 25% wiin eltect from
1 Aoti: 2023

:
3
:
:
:

REI” exempi income inc..des oroperiy rena. income (nasis exerro: rem UK Corporation Tax in accordance with Part 12 of
Corporation Tax Act 2010

130 Larmngs pey share
Larmings por snare {"EPSY amoun:s are calculaed by dividing profis for the year asrioutaoic 1o Ordinary equity noders of e
Company by e weighied average n.moer of Ordinary shares in issue during e year

The ca.cg.aion of basic and di..ed edarnings ner yaare is pased on the foowing:

For the For the

year ended year ended

3 March 2025 31 March 2022

- £000 oo
Calculation of earnings per share

et profic atrinuiaoie (o Ordinary snareno dars (FCO0) 25,472 44754

Weignted average namper of Ordinary saarcs {exc..ding saares ne.d in reas.ry) 608,552,681 518.797.947

Earnings per share — basic and diluted 4.19p 7230

FEO0E SLNNOLIY GNY LLOdIH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

P10 Dyviddginds

rorthe For the

year ended year endad
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£00 Boon

Dividend of 138750 tor f1e 3 mon:ns 1o 31 March 2022
(135C00 3 montns 1o 31 Maren 2021 8,474 8403
Drvidend ol 142500 1or tne 3 mon:ns o 3G June 2622

(138750 3monts o 30 J.ne 2020 8703 8657
Dividend of 1.425Cp for the 3 montns 10 30 Scoeiner 2622

{13875p 3 monins 10 30 Sepemoer 2G21) 8.641 8.355
Dividend of 142500 for 1ne 3 mon:hs (o 31 Decomoear 2022

{1.38750 3 mon: s (o 31 December 2621) 8,641 8498

Total e - 34,459

On 9 May 2023, t1ne Company anne.nced a divitdend of 1425 ponce per share in respoc: of ne peniod 1 Tanuary 2023 1o 31 Marcnh
2023 (olaling F8.81L000. The dividend paymen: was madae on 9 lune 2023 (o snarenodors o 11e regisier as a: 1% May 2023, The
financia: staiements do not rel oot this dividend. Tne dividend was paid as a REIT prooserny mcome disirioation (PID7).

P dnvastment tragerrts,

Forrhe For the

year ended year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

. P - _ . . R o £000 oo
Ba.ance a! neginning of vear 968,756 915,589
Properiy acqgulsiions 543 33456
Imorovemen:s 0 invesimen: propariies 4,844 5818

Lease mmeendives and rein: siraign. .ing ad. . 1264 1514
I va..o 2,640

Changein f

Va..e advised oy (e proporty va,\,-ers 978:14'7 35875

L.ess leasa inceniive assels and ren: stralgn: ine assc (24.783)

Total 953,364
Improvemen:s o Ives men: properties inc..des capra oxpendiiire incarred of £128.000 (2022 F12.0C0) in respes of camae
oange ininanves

During 1ne previous year, (ne Group acq.ired a propery 1o.dmg company trone Hareva Progeries Limited waizn 1e.d
assais 10 ing Y8A1LCCS These are inciuded wiirun Propery Acd.asiiions in e note anova. Har.eva Frooeries Limized 15
a s.osidiary of Speciadis: Heaoncare Operasons Limied CSHO™ Androw Dawocor and Tom Pndmore (0011 direciors of -ne
Invesimen: Ad asen. are 14992 saareno.ders 1n SHO. Tney are not dirccsors of 3HO. and nave no operaliona ro.cin tnas
iness SHO docs no: mee tac definition of a re_ated narty wnder IAS 24,

Vrinatia

In aczordanco w1 'TAS A0 Invesiren: Prooery’. D 1e INvesinon: orooc
armd. sa uer wita recogrnised and re evant orofessiona. .a.dfications and roecen: cxoeriencs of e acatlon
FITENT DIoNXT Y OelNg Va wad, M0WevYar 108 V4. .atlong ATc 1e L mae regoonsiorn ny e Direcions

TV oaas oeen mdeoendenty va Lod altair va. .e oy

Cratas Soma. Ho using PLC oropeny porlo 0 on ae oasis of zaza indrad..a orooery and Tne -acorenca sae of
3 WILOL 1 oanelll of any corporate wraoner at 978147 000 as a: 31 Maren 20 FO58.754.000

JLL nas orovidad va waton servieas o e Coroany wiiragards o saa proserics donng e vear JLL qas orovided addiiona
dl LALION SIS 0N D0e ACLIsiilnn of inves me ronery oy e Comoany d .ring Te yoar Toe Direciors qave ensure:d
taar JLL as aporopnaie oroced.Lres It D ace O ens Lre Liere are no indepcendanee E
Comoany. In ro alion 72 102 year andod 31 Maren 2N37% roporuan of tne tota. fo
moom 1an 5 and g saeretore minima. Adduiona, . 1ML has a rolanan 201
TTIe vAa Lations rolate alter seven vears

anbics Wi e seraces oronded 1o e
rayaa < oy ne Comraany o lLle a i
In O Aace wWacIcny e SIgNnasnes on

ras ¢




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

With 1he exception of the acquisition detal.ed in note 16.C. all corporate acquisitions duaring the year and the comparative year
have ocen treated as as rather an pusiness compinatons necause foLowing review ol e [FRS 3 conceniration
test, They are considered o be acquisitions of properiies rather than businesses (noze 3.3),

| nurchas

Tac following iasle provides the tair va.de measuremen: nierarciyy for INVesumnen: property:

Ouoted prices in Signibicant Significant

active markets observable unobservable
Total Lol 1 inputc (Lovil 2 inpute (Level 3}
Lo Foog £'000 £000

Investment properties measured at fair value:

31 March 2023 953,364
31 March 2022 ) B 945237

2
joy
T
£
T
T
=

Tacre nave ocen no ransiers between Leve:r 1and Leve. 7 during any of the yearsg, nor have there neen any transfer.
Leve. 2 and Leve! 5 during any of the ycars.

Tae valuations have peen prepared in accordance with (e RICS Va uation  Professiona. Standards (incorporating the
Inzernationa. Valuaton S;andards) by JLL. onc of the leading professiona. lirms engaged 1n tae socla. housing sea.or

Ag noted oreviously al. of (he Group's investmen:s arc recoried as Leve 3 in accordance wita IFRS 13 where inpuis are notl
oased on opservab.e mar<e: data and :he va e is pased upon advice trom relevan: «now.edgeable experts.

In -his mstance, the determination of the fair vaue of investmen: nroperty requires an examinaion of ne spocific merits of
eacn nproperty that are in tarm considered periinen: (o Tae vaiaasion.

These inciude:

i} Thereguiated socia: nousing secior and demand for (he facilities offered oy eaca S3H oropery ownad by the Group:

i) :ne paricu.arsiruciare of the Group's transaciions wacre vendors, a: their own expense, meet the majority ol ine
rofurbisamen: oosig of each propery and ceriain purchage Cosis:

iii) detaled tinancia. analysgis with discodn: rates sLpporting (e carrying va.Le ol eacn prooperty

iv) a ful repairing and insuring .case win annua. indexation nased on CPl or CRIH%

The fo. owing descripiions and delinitlons relating to va.saion recaniques and <oy wnobsarvaa.e inpus made in deermining

falr va.ugs arc as [oLlows:

Valuation techiugues: ncoms appraanh
Fair va_uc is definced as the price tha: would be received 1o el an asse: or pald 10 ranster a ‘iaariy inan order.y ‘ransacion
pelwaen MAar<e: paricipan:s at e meas.remen: dae (e an coxit orice).

The valiation meinodology used ov the valuers fo .ows e income aporoach. Thus approaca considers the rental income
cuarrenily payaple: -ne nex: Lolitt due on tal income on review: ne li<elinocod ot a continuation of Tha: rental incomea with
grow:n in accordanca wiin the eases  over e remaiming terms; and then a long-:erm reverston wnicn considers (ne lice.y
abilty of tne properies (o conunue © generale rent taroogh supported nousing occueation, as distinet from a reversion i<
Vacan: possession valuge.
Rigzs arc mnvolved 1N Dot assessing 11e va we of the indexed renta. income over tho remaining “orms of he cases and 1n a.so
predicung shat income wil condinge neyand e end of e existuing eases Tnigis & na anced judgment wihich can proper.y
pe retlecied in the exit yie d anoied o the fina. vears income and in tne overa . retarn w0 a purchaser.
Avaronrlag laxKalion ca.o..anons arc adopied for overy oroperty nased on 13 va o€ and on e assumpion of the ga = of

3 dircely ag ooposed (o shares of a supstdiary company 2o ding 11e aroperty and nave considered the
individ.a characierisics of the oropcrucs,

D12 OIoDorty assels

Thore are two nCEIn Lnongervan.e InpLis tas determing ac fair va we of the Crouos investmen: orooer.y’

i) Therae of 2% perannam das ooen wsed for CPTover the lerm of 11e SUD ool properies 1cases 1N .Ne with e bang of

Fnglands long-term: inf.ation targess for CPT I shoa d ce noted 1mat a | eases nenal: from etmer CPIor CPHI Indexation

if) The discoun rawe apoiod w0 ne renta. fows

3
B
E
3
2
E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Koy faciors in determining the discouni ra:es app.ied meiude the regu.ated socia, housing sec:or and demand for eacn S5H
prooerty owned oy 1nc Group. costs ol acquisition and relurbisnmen: of cach property. the anticipated Liiure Lnderiying casn
tows for eacn properly. nencnmar<ing of eacn wnder ying ren: for cach droperty (passing ren:). impac: of ciimate change. and
the fact that a:l of :he properiies wiiun (ne Growo's porifo.do have ne oenelit of [.:| repairing and inssring .cases enzered into
oy an Aoproved Provider

As at the na.ance sneet date, 1ne lease .eng:ns within the Croup’'s porifolio ranged from an efteciive 14 years 1o 35 years {2022
15 years 10 36 years) with a weigr.ed average anoxpired lease term: of 215 years (2022 22.1). The greater the _engtin of 1ne easge.
then. al. omer metrics acing ¢q..a.. the greater the va.ue of (he propery

Sensiuvitios of measurement of signiftcant unobservable giputs

As zet out within gignifican: accouniing esiimaies a: 3.1 anove. 1ne GroLp's provery INvesimen: va.Lation is open o mnieren:
unceriainies in the Inpiuts tnat determine fair value. Managemen: nas re-considercd the sensiivily ranges and widened raans
for Tne c.rrent year as a resuil ol macroeconomic wncerainty As a result 1ne following sensilivity ana ysis has ocen prepared:

Averacge discoun rase Sodd range

Tne average discount rate wsed by tne valuerin the Group's property Porio.o Va wation is 5.38% (2022: 5.5%). In setung tne
discount raies adopted 1n e valualon. the va..ers have consideraod mar<et standard and antcipaied ret irms o set a
oencamarx for ihe porrfol1o as a wiole. They nave then considered 1ne vano.s cnaracenstics of ine individ ..al propersics in
order o ad, 4s! 1nose rates for cach property JLL wil <eep yvieids and merefore discount rates, under reg.. ar review

Tae range ot discouns raes wsed oy the va..erin tne Growo’s proper:y Porifolio Va_.astion i from 45% to 11.7% (2022 4.6%
0 11 5% In as ing the range of discounts, 1ne vai.er considers (e <oy nelmiial vie.d whien wol.d 0o sougn 0oy 1ac
invesimeant marka: and ouilds addinional disco.n:is 1o retect added risg into the discount rate of (e lerny and. in soma o
e discoant rate [or e reversion For exano.c. whiere larger rena. grow'ilis a. owed during :ne case. an additiona. dis
is 0ol into ne reversion oecause of the greaterris< of a fall m the rent at ine end ol the casc

Xan

Similar.y additiona: dis s are considered wnere prooperies are in e process of oeing re-purposed and promiams are
considered where residentia’ care asse:s arc funded by oac<-lo-pacs eases with care providers,

T2 @0 ¢ 0 0w LLSTTaes e cnange o ne va e of invesimen: oronertes if tae discouni rate and CPLLsed for tae pornfono
Va. .dllon Ca.c. auons ara cnangod

10%In +10%
discount tate discount rate 1 5% 10 CPI 6 5% 10 CP)
R e £onn _ L:VIJ()[) Erll(Nl "77”7751 (Eli
Increase/(decrease) in the IFRS fair value of investment properties at:
31 Marcen 2073 71.929 {62.507) 56,676 (52,583)
31 Mare- 7% 154000y 58,15C (53.815)

3T March 2023 51 March 2022

. . . o o ) C‘U_Uy_ £ noqg
s.oudiary comrganies {inc..ding ntercomnany  oan - 13.559
AL LISLI0N 0SS - 735
Transier 1o INvesiT.on Droocry - L3299

Sa.e prowceds -

Total ) - ) ) ) - -

Doring the pravioLs vear (o Gro.g enterad o 4 ransa
F13.550.000

Joon ine acg asinon of e sompames for 71

on o acg Jare e treenad aroperias aperated oy CPI Care Limied
TTANSACION C0ES 1L DTOPENEs were ransterrad Into 0l1or gro.p
companies and e comrpany acdalred. a. ong Wil rs as and operanons was go.d o Inviyo Cor.nd am Bidoo Taniad for
£2.295.050 Envivo Corundom Bideo Limied is a s.osidiary ol 3pecia s Hca - acars Oocralions Limited C3HO™ Andrew Dawaer
and Tomr Pridnrore (on-a directors of Die Invesimsn: Advisery are 1499% sharc o darsin 31O Thoy ara not dircoiors of 3HO
and nave nooporaiona. o e SHO doess not mee: e detimion of are ated gary wnder [AS 24




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

PP O Trade and 0thaer 1eoeivatios

31 March 2023

31March 2022

o . e £'000 00D
Amounts falling due in less than one year
Trade receivaoles 6,676 4960
Less provision for impairment of rade recoivables (459) (239)
Accried moone 3,312 40872
Prepaymeniz and other receivanics 1,730 3162
Total T 11,260 12.855

Prepaymen:s and oner receivao. e amoadnis inc.ude prepaid lega. and professional lees of N 2022: £34.000) nat nave been
incarred 10 conneciion with acq.igitions yel 1o be comp.eted and £286.00C (2022: £1.046.0C0) in respeact of ongoing works on

e property porfolio

Accrued income relates main.y o ren: accraed for the year oJd not val demandead.

31 March 2023

4YMarch 2022

£'000 F'0an
:ﬁﬁounls falling due after more than one year o o ’ ) B o
Srraigns dne ad;ostments 2.639 2053
Leasc incentives 22,144 21.455
Total T a I 24.76 23519

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

e _ ) _ £0600 £ 000
Debtors past due
Curren: 2,518 1777
= 30 davs 862 355
3C-6C days 275 1G5
= A0 days o 3.021 2723

T I 6,676 1.960
Debtors past due o a 7 o
L. nrovision for impairmren: {459) 1239
Total o ) S 77”776:2?_? 4721
e Dirceors congider the lair vaoue of recelvaples cguals Thcir carrying amoun
Oiner categories witnin trade and other reecivanies do not include impaired assers.
The provision for impairment movemren: was as fo. ows:

o ’ _For the I'or the

year ended
31 March 2023

year ended
31 March 2022

. . £000 Foon
Ba ance ar pegmnning of vegr 238 258
Impairment orovision nade 306 1C9
Amouan: recovered (67) (1258,
Amaants written off (1%} -
Balance at end of y.éar i o 459 239

252
o
= =
53
=
=
=
oo
5 E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

PO T anh dand cashoEguntaicins

Cash ne.d oy soiicitors
Ligaidiny funds
Cash he.d at pan<

Unrestricted casn and cash equivalen:s

Resiricied cash

Total

31March 2023

31 March 2022

£'200 £900
64 T
15,636 1C.489
16,939 58110
22,639 48975
2,949 1362
35,588 53,537

Liguidry funds refer o money p aced in money maret funds. These are nigh.y Tiquid funds wii accessioly wiinin 24 no.rs

and subes o insignifican: nsk of cnanges in va'ue,

Casn neid by solcliors 1s money nae.d in eserow [or oxpoenses exoecied 1o pe maurred in relation 1o INVesIMen: orapearies
pending comp.enon. Taese funds are avaran e immediac y on demand.

Resricted casa reprasonts amo.n:s hield for specilic comniutments

nan: deposits and roention money eld inrelation

to deferred paymenss supect 1o achuevemen: ol cerain condinons, oter releniions and casa segregaled (o fund repair.
mainienance and improvemen: wor<s 1o aring ine proocries Lo o sansfaciory siandards for t1e Grosp and e enants

i) Tracde and ariner a,dnte .

Deferred incomea

Acaisition costs acoraed
Finance ©os's

Dividend wimnao ding tax payanio
Accr.a s and oner crediiors

Tonan: deposiis

31 March 2023
D]

761
600
3.688
940
773
2,538
9,300

31 March 2022
{Restated*)
0y

* Compatanyes have been restarad 1o carrect the analysis ot £1 896 000 of tenant deposits which had previously been maeluded 1in aaquisiion costs seetged

20 G Bane and ioan Lias soerings

Banc norrowings arc sec.red oy caargeas ovaer ndizid .a invesiman: gropsriss 12 d oy ]
sidianes and any m-ermediary 10 ding contoaniss of nose s.osidiarios
e year ond arg offser agains: amo.onis drawn on

Dan<s 4.30 10.d caaryges over (e sharces of cerlain s

Any assoclawed fees in Arrandging e oans gorrowings wnanmorised as at

NS 1ACLIES a8 S 0WN T 20 [a0.0 08 O

Ban< oorrowings drawn T ol year
Ban< oorrowings adranceead
Ban< norrowings reoaid

ot year

Bans oofrowings drawn a:t

Unamaorimed cosiz atsiar of year
Less oan ey @ 008 s Inc .rred
~dd- Loan iss

Add oaniss Le comg amanrisanon

amoriscd OGN reEpament of sang

JTnamorised cosis at end ot year

At end of yéar

rrain asse

Ao ding guosidiaries T

For the

year ended
31 March 2023
£ noo

357,050
70.875
(60,000)
367,925
© (5.000)
(3.544)
665

(6.010)
361,915

For ihe

year ended
31 March 2022
£ 000

5

37050




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

ﬁéiﬁrity of bank borrowings
Repayahle wiihin 1 year
Repayable netween 11o 2 yearsy
Repayaple petween 2 10 5 years
Repayable afier 5 years
Totat

1 Loan balance nel ol unameornsed costs

The Group nas ocon pary o te toilowing .oan faci.ity agroemaonts in mne yearn

Summary of Borrdi\ﬁﬁ;g S

Scoddish Widows Limited 1G-year facility
Lovds Ban< pc

Deuscne Bang AC

HEBC Bank ple

Naiaona. Wesimins:cr Bang Plc 5-year taciiity

MEG Inves:men: Managemen: Linuiled 7-year facuity
MG Invesimer: Managemen: Lintled /-yeal 1y

Scoisa Widows Limited 1G-year taciiiy principa. F52.5C0.000

Deusene Bang AG Loan Woles principa. £76.875.000

HSBC Bang plc faclity principa. F100.60C.000

National Wesiminster Banx P.o S-year faclity orincipa £60.00

Loan Balance?  Loan Balance' Loan Principal Loan Pnncipat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
EODD foon £'000 £0uy

59.600 158,746 60,000 160.006
302,315 89,365 307,925 60.0002
- 133,929 - 137050

361915 32050  367.8928  357.05C

Loan Frincipal

i

[

Revolving credit facility

Revolving credii facility
Revolving credi: facility

MEG Invesiren: Managen:ent Limited 7-year faciy pnncipa. £84.55C.000

A3 Maren 2023, 0ac Crown is in comrodance witya .

£00M0 Expiry Date Interest rate
532,300 02M /2027 299358% lixed
- - SONIA + 167%
70,873 03/C2/2028 5.09Y hixed

180000 28/1/7025 SONTA 1 215%
60000 14/08/2024  SOKIA + 200%
84550  24/02/2078 2137% fixed

367,925 D

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

£'000 L£u0g

o T 173510 173.777
168,610 -

23,116 222745

137.827 135.330
230,279 230487

TAac covenan:s in o ace Lnder t1e five agreenten:s are summarised in tne laop.e pelow:

Leoan:
Scotisn Widows Limiied 10-year laciiiny
Deuische Bang AG Loan Notes

HEBC Bang eole faciay

Matona. Westming.er Ban< P S-year lachiy

ME&C Tnves nmen: Managemen: Limiicd 7-year faciiy

Histoncal and projected mtetest cover Loan to Value Ratio

Al eag: 325% Mg no. exceaed 40%
Al lcast 175% Mus: nol exceed 50%
Al eas: 250% Mgt not excoed 50%
A7 easl 250% M.s: no: exceed 50%
AT lcast A50¥ Mg no exeeed 35%

1Interest rate caps have been pulchasaed o cap interest costs on this facihty as per detalls i noies 210 and 317%

2 Tixed by way ol an interest rate swap as detatled 1o note 210

LNILODDY NV LHODTH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

ST 0 Inteirest rate dermvanves

Tne Groun nas cntercd inio an interes: rate swap with Na:West Mar<e:s in order 10 mitgate (ne ris< ot ¢nanges in inierest ra‘as
anigloan witt Nationa: Wesiminsier Bank Po wnder whicn £50 milion is currenty drawn. The swap nas a nodonal va.ue of
£48C.CC0.0C0 and fixes interes: a: 2.50% {inciuding the 2% margin on :ne bhangiocan).

During “ne year, the Group has entered mto taree new Interast rate ¢ap arrangemean:s for a tofa. eost of £8.841.000:

An inieres: rate cap hat capped ne FHC.CO0COTC ILoyds Banx ple faci.ily al 392% (inc..ding the 187% margin on he loan
facilizy) tor ine period from 16 Sepiemner 2022 10 20 Feoruary 2023 This arrangemen: was so:d upon ne repaymaen: of tne .oan
with proceads of F17.000

An inicres: rate cap that capped (ne SONIA intcrest ratc on tae C100.0C0.000 ISBC Bank pic facility a: 2.50% for tae penod from
21 Seplemper 2022 w0 17 Apri. 2023,

Aninicraes: ra¢ cap iransacton © miigarte tha risk of tae SONIA interest rale excecding 2.45% pa. on e principa. of
P

£100,0C0.3CC HSBC Banx ple faciiity for the period from 17 Apri. 2023 to 28 Novermrper 2025 Tals ingirumen: covers the rencaining

cenm of tac rovolving credit faclity witn HISBC Bang ¢ and its extensgion 1o Novemper 2035
For the For the
vear ended vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
B - _ - __E_U(& L0
Interest rate derivative assets/(liabilities)
Al start of year 2,131 (544)
neres: rate cap oremilns paid 8,841
Disposa. procecds (17) -
Reaiised .ogs on disposat (187)
nange in fair val.o doring tne year (2,639)
At end of year 8,129
Tne tabh.e oo ow shows iac fairva' e meas.roment nierarcay for inieres: derivativeys
Uuole prices in Sigurhcant sigruficant
Aclive Markels Observable Unobservabie
(Level 1) Inputs {Level 2) Inputs (Level 33
. R _ . F'000 £000 £'000
31t Marcn 2023 - 8,129 -
31 Maren 2022 - 2131 -

The fair va e of CroLo’s interes: rate denvanves s recardedan e Growo 3:3iemen: of Finanaa. Position and is determined
Iy TN regnecive CoLNarnarias. e CoLniarnarries Lse a namoar of ass.moions indelermining e fair va...es. inc.ading
eslimaons over fuiire interest rates and futare cash fows using oonsaervab.e yia:d carves Tae fair va. e repre
oresent va..e of tne difference peiweesn e casn f ows oroduced oy 1ne coniracied rate and (he va..alionra‘s
reranmig.ae fas s witun Leve, 2of tae fair vao e ictarcny as defined oy [FE5 13

Tais va..ation

Tnere nave osen no ransterg ontwaoen Love Tand Love, Zdaning any of e 0enods nor aave tars ogen any cransiers
oenween Level 2 and Leve. 3 dunng any of the periods

GESpare ean g

\-
EAS
37arc capita.) rceroscnis 1ac nomina. va. .o of consideration recelved o e Company tor e ss.e ol Ordinary snare

For the Far the yoar

year ended rnded
31March 2023 31 March 2022
£060 £ 4000
Share capital
At peginiing and ond of vear 6.225

Number of shares issued and fully paid Ordinary shares of £0.01 each

Al ocginmng and cnd of yoar 622461380 522451380




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

During e year the Company parchasad 6.050.060C Ordinary shares to oe he.d in reasJry at a cost of £4.651.6C0 (31 March 2022:
10.625.00C Crdinary shares tor £9.259.000).

During e previous year, ‘ne Company reiss.ed 555000 Ordmary shares held in treasury for £647.00C The cos: of purcnasing
tnese shares into ireas.ry ot £484,00C nas oeen credied 10 the capitai rteduction reserve witn ine gain credited to the Snare
premiln: reserve

AU3 March 2023, the Company ne'd 16.075.000 (31 Marca 2022 10.025.0C0) Crdinary shares in ireasury. The snares wi continue
10 be held in reasury an:ll erher reissuced or cancelied.

AL 31 Marcn 2023, ine number of Ordinary shares Jsed o calci.aie (e net asse: va.Le ner snarc 18 566.386.38C (31 March 2072
512436 380 which exc.ades (he shares heid 1n reasury.

L3I0 Share pramium reEsLerve

Tne share oremrium reserve reprasen:s the amounts subscriived for Ordinary svare capia. in excess of nomina. va.uc less

assoclaicd issue costs of 1ne sunseripiions.

For the For the

year ended year ended

31March 2023 31 March 2022

— ) o B . £000 £000

At beginning of year 292,626 292453
Premiam arising on gnares reissucd rom tre - 153
At end of year 292,626 Z97.626

For movernents in the year. p.casc sce de:ais in note 220

210 Caprralvedactiop soserwe

The capia redacion regerve is a disirioJdian.e reserve o whi
Purs.an: 1o Aric.e 3 of The Com oames (Red.ction of Share Capital) Order 2008, (e ba:ance nexd in the capiial redaciion
[0serve 15 10 oo reated tor the aurposes of Part 23 of e Companies Act 2005 as a rea ised prolir and tnerefore avallapic for
disribuiion in accordance witn seation 830 ol tne Compantes Ac The Company nas uscd 1his resarve for tne cosis of buying
pack shareg 10 pe ae.d 1n reasury and paymen: ol dividends

e va we ol (ne cancelled snare premiur was iranslerred.

For the For the

year ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 Match 2022
- R .. fo0a #0600
A beginning of year 322,365 331.11C
sharces reissued from treas.ry - 484
Snares oo < inso rreas.ry {4,651) (9,259}
At end of year 317.714 3223658
For movamen:s 1 g year, p.ease sec dataiis in none 22 ¢
29 1 Hefamed sarimng s
This roserve reptesens ne orotey and Josses of the Gro.p
For the for the
year ended year ended
31 Match 2023 51 March 2022
- [ . geno, £'000
Al oaginning ol yoar 54,331 43570
Frolit for .ne year 25,472 41,754
Dividends paid (34,459) 134.09%)
At end of year 45,344 534,331

SINIWILIVLS TVIONVNIL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

26,0 Net asset value

Basic NAV per share is ca.cniaed by dividing net assets in 2he Consolidated Siatemen: ot Financia. Positton attrinuzab.e o
Ordinary equity hoiders of the paren: py :he numper of Ordinary snares oustanding a: tne end of the year,

Ne: asse: va.ues have peen cascu:ated as to.ows:

Net assets (f'000)
Nomber of Ordinary shares in iss.ie ar end ol year
Number of Ordinary snarcs ne.d in treasury

31 March 2025

3 March 2022

Number of Ordinary shares excluging treas?n—r sh_ares held by theEc;mpany
NAV per share — basic and diluted 7

661,909 575547

622461380 52451380
(16,075.000) {10025000)

" 606386380 512436380
©w0916p 110300

A AN ss ot Tz Boada e 300 AR5 e s Gl ety TR0 DAL ] ALt vt ies

H\VC Eegirnhiihig c)l year

Cash flows from financing activities

Loan 1ssae ¢costs paid

Iniarest rae denvative premiams oalkd

Procesds lrom tae sa.e of [NIores: rate derivauves
Bans norrowings advanced

Ban< porrowings raoaid

Non cash movements

Loan 1ss.e fees aceraed

Amrorasaion of .oan 1gg.e coss

Unamorused oan arrangertent lees writien off

Caange in fair va..e of ineres: ratc derivaives

At end of year

AL oodginning of year
Cash flows from financing activities

Loan draw down

Non cash movements

Loan ms.e foeg cayan.e

Amorisaton of caniss.oe cosis

Crange i fair va_ .o of interas: rae darvainves

At end of year

interest rale

denvalives
£'000

(2,131)

(8,841)
17

2.826
(8,129)

[nterest rate
detivanves
£000

544

Bank
DOTYOWINGS
£non

352,050

(3,148)

70,875
(60,00Q)

(396)
1,869
065

361915

Bank
bortowings
£00

o
el

For the

yeat ended

I March 2023
£000

349,919

(3.148)
{8,841)
17
70,875

(60,000}

(396)
1,869
665
2.826
353.786

Fort the

vear ended
31 March 2022
£O00

)
U1
wl

1

3
9

L
(23751
39




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

28.0 Operanng leases
e Grodo is party (0 a numper of operaling eases on its investment properies wiiy Approved Providers. The futire minimum
.edse paymen:s under non-cance: able operaling eases receivable oy ine Group are as follows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£°000 £anG

Amoun:s receivab e

< 1year 57,262 53.821
1-Z years 57,352 533.879
2-5 ycars 172.536 161.940
> Syears 958,236 928.210
_:\t end of year o N o T ) 7 1.245.436 Ll?’f‘iﬂd

Leases are direct-.2l agreemen:s with Aporoved Providers for a term between 20-40 years with indexed linked annua. ren:
reviows. Al curron: ieases are fall repairing and insuring ‘cases; ine enan:s are merefore opaged 1o repair. maintain and
renaw the properies pacg (0 tne origina: conditions

Tae forowing ramie gives detals ol percentage of annua: renia: income per Approved Provider:

A1 March 2023 31 March 2022
% %

Eckland tHome So:q.-ions :;r;i O‘Aa_.\:as Houging ' ' - "24.9 244
Faicon [Housing Association CIC 19.1 187
Respoke Supportive Tenancics 12.5 12.5
Inciasicn Heousing CIC 94 9.3
Westmore.and Supporied Housing Limited 5.6 59
Encirc.e Housing Linmied 5.2 59
Trinity Housing Association Limied 5.2 5.1
Pivoial Housing Associalion 4.0 5.8
Chrysa.is Supoorted Association Limned 37 3.5
New Wa < Propery Managemen: CIC 2.7 48
Harpour Ligat Assisiod Living CIC 2.3 35
My Space Housing 5ol ions 1.3 13
Livsiom Healthcare Limiied 11

TKE Supooried Housing Limised 1.0 11
Hillda'c Housing Associaion Limiied 1.0 14
Windr,gh Alllance JK CIC 0.7 o7
T..y Rose Sappor:cd [lousing 0.2 C1
Blue Sguare Residentia Tod 0.1 c1

Total o ) 1000 13670

Asckand Hone Sotaiens and Qua.iias Houwsing are oo memoers of e Soqal ITowsing Fami y CIC and s.b ect o commaon
conTolL. TACH ann.a ren’ hgures nave ticrefore necn aggregased in the tao e anove The pereeniage re.atiing to Acc<and
Home So..1ons and Gea.dtas [Tousing was 1652 and 84% (202215 3% and 8.1%) respecuve.y. The ann.aa. rens a: 31 Marc 2023 tor

ALcand Hone So.Lions and Gua'iag Houging was £9.260.000 and £4.730.000 2022 £8A79.000 and F4.334.500) respecive.y.

Tag Gronp 15 d 50 0ary 0 anwmaoer of speraung eases on iis.ong caseno d oroperiies. The grownd rent paymaon.
commrizmaen:s Jnder thege ooeraling cases are negiigio.e so tne filure mmim . n ease paynients under (nese @ases nave nos
ocen disciosed in ese nanacia s1aicments.

;
:
:

S20¢ SLNNOHDY UNY LHO4TH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

29 0 Copnoroling oa
As a3l Marcn 2023, tnere ig No W.Iiimae coniro.ing party

RSV

0 Related nacty Gosoianiiies

A st of al s.ubsidiary andera<ings including ine address of the ragisiered office 1s dezailed 1n note 8.0 10 the Company
accounts on pages 15 o U8,

A0 Transactons with Dnectors

Tae Direciors are remanerated lor teir services at suwchrate as the Direciars snail from dime o time delermine Thc aggregae
remuncration and beneflis In <ind of the Direciors of 1ne Company (in each case, solely In nair capacity as sweh) in respect of
‘ne year ended 31 Marcn 2023 oayao.c our of (ne assets of tne Company is no. expeaed 10 excaed £230.000

Faes of £194 006 (2022 F190,000) were mairred and paid 1o (ne Direciors.
As al 31 March 2023 and 2C22. the Directors he.d the fo lowing nuirber ol shares

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Ordinary ardinary

B shares shares

Director T ) o
Michae, Wrope. Chaairman 200,000 120,598
Azasgiair Moss DircCtor 11.766 11,755
Alison Hadden Direaor 31,937 -
Caro.ine G.. iver Audir and Managemen: Tngagemens: Comnriee Chair 58,832 58 832

Peicr Baxter Dire< or o o 82,065

The Investimen: Adviser nas roviewsed s remanarannn policies and procodares 0 onsL e incentives are ahignad wita ne
requirements of AIFMD, I e udes meds.res o avold conflics of interes: s..ch as oroviding sial! wiia a fiked monin.y
sa.ary and doiorminimng diserationary payments oy 1ne perlormanae of the Inves nten: Adviser as a wno.¢ and no: an<ed
‘o any one AlF in oaruco.ar Tae Invesimen: Adviser and s s aff recerve no rem aneration Sroagn oot share, carried

d o e Company's pertformance

inicrest. co-investmen: or oUer sehemes reat

e dnee s tmeennt A

-"") c‘ I?xl'.“ﬁ‘l"'_h,‘AH' N
On 1 Novemper 2014, Civizas Invesimen: Mahagemen: Limited {CIM™ was aonoinied as tac Invesuren: Adviser of the Company
I's addrass is shown on page 12110 e Repor.

Foes of F52058.C00 (2027 £6132.000) were incurred and paid 1o CIM In addiion FNCET 12022 £nil) disp..rsemen s wore naid in
e year

The [nvestment Adviser agreed o contrinaie fm {2022: T10C.000) towards ega. and professiona. fees incurrad Tois amown:
was ohise: agains: oga and prolessiona fees in note 9.0

Aga: 31 Marcn 2523 a net amoun: of SA8S20 (2522 TI51L.000 was d e from CIM, w naa 1as since oeen re

As a5l Marca 2023, CIM ac.d 187,354 (2022 35006 Grdinary saarss in .

Connany




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

3.0 Frnanaiai 17-0 manage e g

LB rAnctal sirst amenis

Tne Group's principal inanclal assess and uapilities are those that anse direcly from iis operations: irade and oner
receivanies. Tade and otaer payan os and casn amd cash eqaivalents. Tne Gro.o's other orincipal financial Jabiities are nank
porrowings, the main purpose of waich is 1o finance the acquisition and development of (nc Groups invesimeaen! property
vortfoio. and interes: rate denvasives as detalced in notes 20.0 and 21.0

A hinancia. flaolitles are measured a amorisced cost. oxcen: inierest rate derivatives, wmen are measured a: tair vatue Al
financia instraments weare designated in (helr carrent categorics 4pon initia. recognition.

Se! oo palow is a comparison by ¢ ass of tne carrying amo.un:s and fair va.ue ol tne Group's financia. instrumen s that are
carried in e linancia’ statemens

Book value Faur value Book valua Faur value

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2027 31 March 2022

£'000 £008 EOU0 £000

Financial assets - T o h

[nteres: rate derivalives 8,129 8,129 2131 AKE

Trade and ather recevaples 34,549 34,949 34,580 34,580

Cash and cash cqaiva.cnts 35.588 35,588 53.337 53,337
Financial liabilities

Trade and omner sayan.es 7.599 7.599 B8.632 8632

Bans porrowings o 361,915 350,179 352050 349405

1 Excludes prepayments
2 Excludes deferred income and dividend withholding tax payable

Trne Group nas five bank .oans as deiailed innote 20 G. The fair va.ue of the fixed rae .oan is determined oy comparing ‘ne
discounted tuture casa Hows.

Tinapncral sk manaastile ot

The Group is exposed [0 MAar<a: sk, nteras: rate risg. credit risc and liguadiny ris<in the corrent and fut.are years The Board of
Dirccsors overseas e managenen: of 1nese risks. The Board of Direciors raviews and agrees pollcies for managing eaan of
lege risks that are summarised bo.ow.

Gt2 Mark

Thaa Groug's acuvities will expose it primari.y 1o e nrarde nss associated wiin caanges in properyy va..es and cnanges in

et rish

incres: rales.

RN ST e Lt orertDol b gTuveriS

Invesiren: in oroper:y is suoect o varynng degrees of ris< Sore lactors that affee: Tno va e ol e invesimen In propaery
ina ade:

e Clanges in ;e generai ceonomic aimaie:

e comoaiiuon [oravaran ¢ properies:

e  obso escence: and

e govornmen: reguladions inelading p.anning, onvironmenia and (ax .aws

Variatdons in e anove lactors can affec: e va Ladion ol assels ne d oy e Croup and as a res.o caninfl.cnee e tinancia
performancce of (ne Gro.o.

g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Hoime 150091 0 . R S KT KT & IS LI S Vel oSl U3iAle et -
The Croup nods positions m two AAA rated Hgaidity funds thar invest in a diversiied range of government and
non-governmen: moneay mar<ei securities, whian arc sub,ect 1o varying degrees of risg. Some factors (hat aftect e va.we ol

the iq.idiy fLndsincl.de:

e e porformance of the wnderying governmen: and non-governmen. money marke: securizies: and
® INICTesT rales

Variations in the above factors can affec: the valuation of ass
periormance of ine Group.

s newd oy tho Group and as a resu. can int..ence e financia.

313 Interest rate risi
Inieres: rae ris< s (e ns< 1nad the farr va. .e or tuture cagn Lows of a linancia’ insirumen: wil fuctaate pecause of changes in
market inTeresi ra

A3 March 2623 all long-Torm borrowings are ellner a: Lxed raic or have an iniores: rate cap or INarest raie §wap in pacs
wnloh nas ntltigazed e risg ol risimg interes: rate Inerest ra:e dorvative insiriIments are In g ace 1o e oan ma.riv dae on
he varian.e rate .oans.

Tne taoie oe.ow shows the bank .oans. derivaiive ingiranmen:s and 1neres: rates.

Loan Frincipal Derivanue nSTIMERE iteen .
Summary of Borrewings £ 10 Exply Date Interest rate In place payable
Scottisn Widows Limited 10-year laci ity o ' 52,500  CA//2077  28935% fixed 2.99%
Doutscne Bang AG 70.875  03/02/2G28 5.69% fixed 5.69%
HSBC Bank olc 100,000 28A1/2025  SCGNIA + 213Y Iniorest rate capr 475%
Na‘ional Westminsier Banxs P.c S-year faci'ty 60,000 14/08/2024  SONIA + 2.00%  Ineres: raie swao 260
M&EC Invesimen: Managemaon: Limiied 7-year faci.i 84,580 2A/0342528 I1Z7% fixed

S 367,925 T

1 Maximum interest rate reduees 104 6% from 18 Apnot 2023

e oxposure of the Group o vanab.e rates of InLere W ens.Lre nal e

Cro.o's exnos.re 1o lnerey rae [ .el.aions isw

s considered Lpon drawing of any new oan 1aa ine
n accepian.c ovess,

e Board

Tne Invesiment AdvISCr monitors e Gro.p's eXpos.are 1o any coanges in inieros: Tac on an ongoing 0asis. wii
«odazed ona quaarery oasiz of the corren exnos.ure of the Grouo's loan faciitics.

As a3l Marc 2043 i irterast rates nad peen 100 nasis poinis AgAcr/Lower wiin a_ . 0TSy Farnao ¢
on profiig afier taxation for @he year wo..d ne as oelow. Tne nvesimen. AdJviser an
oossio.e pased on e noservation of current mar<el condiitons nalin:

d consiant
C.§ aIc rcasonan.y
2resirales wou d nol fugiuate more than 1%

10 DAt

1Da.es T1esc ¢

31March 2023 Sl March 2642

£ 000 £
Increase/(decrease) in profits due to interest rates
1275 0asls doInis ugacr 256 1055
150 pasis pointy owvar (210) 1572

3 and 2327 were az {o.ows

3t Match 2028 31 March 2022
%

=
Ban« porrowings - fixed rae 2.65 731
Ban< oorrowings  varian.e raic 6.07 223
Casnoand casn o.avra en.s 0.82 !

1 Warable 1ate DultowiIngs 412 subject o 4 Tuaximum inierest r4te of 4 75% due 1 an inierest (412 ap The mdXmum Nt 1esl Tate radues o4 n% trom 18 Apnil 204%




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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314 Credir risi

Credis risk is the ris< tha: a counierparty wil. not meet its on.igations wnder a financial nsirumen: or C.$0moer Conirac:,
leading 1o a tinancial ioss The Group is exposed (o creditrisks from noin Ity teasing acuvites and financing aciivities.
including depoesits with Danss and financia: institaions.

Deptors and aceried income renresen: ren: due or acerued. Tnese amounts due are diversilied between a numper of differon:
Approved Providers of differing financia” sirengin. see note 280 for details of the differen: counterparties. None ot the
Approved Providers nave a credis ranng however the diversilied nature of 1y assel supports e credit qua.ity.

Tae Group nas polcies in place to ensure that rental coniracis are entersd inio only wit ‘essecs wity an appropriaie credit
and operaliond. history, and Jdmis exposure 10 any one ‘enan. The credil risk s considered 1o ge furiaer reducad as 1neg
source of :he rents received ny 'he Croup is cltimarely provided by tae Covernment. by way of aousing benefir and care
orovision. via a diverse range of .oca. authorities.

For de:ai.s of provisions for impairment p.ease refer (o note 17.0.

RN TE T A N RS LR A D
‘e Croup wil arise wiin 1ne bangs and financia. insiizations The Board of Direclors beieves
is imited because the counierpariics are nanxks

Uitz pasle ceeeatond 10 1
One of 71e onncipa. credit risks of
shat tne credit risk on shor-term deposits and curren: accoun: ¢asn paiances
considered 1© be of good credit qiality In the case of cash deposits neld with lawycers. the credit nis< s amited because the
g neld oy iae awyers within clent accounts at ban«s win gn credic qualiy.

“ne credl: ralings for pangsg where pa.ances arc he.d oy ‘he Cro.uo are as fol.ows:

I oyds Bank p. At/Fl
HSBC Banx olo Ab-/F1+
RBS Inernationa. Limited A/FT

Waional Wesiminster Ban< p.o A+/F1

Raungy advised gy Fien

N balances are held with Deafsche Bank AG

31 % Lipudity risk

T1e Group manages itg Hg.idiey and lunding ris<s oy considering casn fLow torecasis and ensunng sufficion: casn od.ances
are held within the Group o mce: future needs Proden: hgquidity ris managemen: impues maintaining suificien: cash and
mar<elan e securlles, the avataplity of financing (nrougn appropriaie and adequa:e credit (incs and ne abliy of cusiomers
o sel ¢ onligations within norma. terms of credit. Tne Grodp ensurcs. throsgh forecasiing of capital requircmen:s, 11a:
adeqaae casn s availao.e

Tae fa owing tan.e detal s e Growp's malurcy orofile in respect of its financia. Instrument aoilles oased on coniractiod.
andiscounted paymonts:

2n demand =1 year 15 yedls ~ G vears Total

o . LO00 £ 000 l’;'[ll)ﬁ . £000) £ Oﬂ(!r
31 March 2023
Tradc and other pavaon.es 7.599 - - - 7.599
Ban< oarrowings - 14,482 407,770 - 422,252
S o ) © 7599 14482 407.770 - 429851
31 March 2022
Trade and otner 2ayan.os 85372 B8.332

Bans norrowings 245974

144.6C2 399917
A5 974

Lo
|

A
oy

ara FOO0
[N

T orofle above shows e maturiiy profie at 31 Maraen 2023 and ine.ded winun e conracied paymaenis is F54 3270
(2022, £42.8562,000) of oan in-cres. payaoie Sp 1o e poimn: of mat.rins

144502 408544
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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TSy A SO nNnaen s
AL 31 March 2023, the Company nhad funds commitied totaliing FNi {2622 £92.000 concerning capita. expenditire for a proper:y
n Surrey)

300 Pos Balance sheast event,

Doegdemtzdsy

On 9 May 2023, the Company annoanced a dividend ol 1425 pence per share in respec: of ihe period [ January 2023 o
31 March 2023 totauing £8.641.00C The dividend payment was made on 9 June 2023 1o saarenolkders on the regisier as
a: 19 May 2023 The linancia: statemen:s do not reflec: nis dividend. The dividend was paid as a REIT propery income
disirioution ("PID")

Finanoindg

On 1 Dacemper 2022, e Company signed a taciity with an ins rutional iender Supsegoen: 0 2his. on 21 June 2073,
Conmpany received credir aporoved erms for an additiona. £610 milion fixed laciiy pased on a 3-year SONIA rate a: Jne
daze of draw down +19500s margin with a maturity date of 3 ALgLst 2025 Tne cveniua. drawdown on 12 tac 15y 15 5. 0.6¢
cerain siandard c.osing condiions.

Hen Gniote el - andt abfer by the £ o

On 9 May 2023 an announcemen: was made [0 e marke: tor an a-.-casa offer of Civizas Socia. Ho.using PLC /Civiias) from
Wooiness Uney Limited. a whoey owned indirect suosidiary ot CKA Asset Ho dings Limited (CKAY The offer of 8 nence
por saare received va.ues e entire 1ssaed share canlia. (exe oding ireas.ary shares) of CSH a: approximare.y F485 m1 10on.
Tas represents a 444% premium 0 Tne saare price of 554 pence per share on 3 May 2073 Che as: Tading day prior o
anno.ncement of the otferl. and 257% discouni w0 31 Marcn 2023 NAV o 109150, Tris provides saareho ders <00 opporanbly |
exilin fu. @nd In cash At a significan: oromicin o the CLITens snare unes. The oller wi oe imp emenied oy way of a ;akcover
offer witin e ireaning of Par: 28 of tne Companies Act

=z

O 22 May 2023 he Offer Documen: was mads aval.ao.c The ofler pecame neonditiona. on 2% June 2023 Paymen: of

consideraion d.e o snarenaiders wao nave saomited vaad accepiances wi. o¢ mads no lacr nan M ca endar days

afzer 1ae date fhe Offer oecorres or 1s dec.ared Lncondrona’, orin ro.alon o vaid acceplanaes received atier s.en date.

witnm 14 ca endar days of roceipr of (nal acceplance. According o tae Ctfer Doc.amen:. i@ is Intended na: Civizas Invesinen:

Managemen: Limuied ( CIM } is maintained as tne Tnvesimen: Adviser o Civiias €0 1hat Jhe day-o-day managemen: of )
e Crvitas portlo o wil coniinue wninterr.oed. and Civiias oe re-regisiered as a onvate Limiied company as soon as i
nracucas.e fo. owing tne canc : . sing and rading of Civitas shares. AT ine pa ance snec: date. CKA, as an indirec: |
mves:or in CIM. was not a re a'od party - c Gro.p as per 1AS 24, On 23 June 2023, waen 1c offer perante Lncondiziona .

CKA 2.8 uenly oecame 11e coniro.ing pary of tae Contnany. and a re.ated oarty .nder [AS 24




Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2023

Assets
Fixed assets
Invesimen: in sansidiarics

31 March 2023 31 Maich 2022
Nute Eono £ana

7.0 794,733 793,284

Current agsets
Trade and oter receivanies

Casn and casn equiva.en:s

Total assets

Liabilities
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

Trade and o her payvao:es

9.0 2,599 4.310
10.0 26,193 . 23.438
28,792 27.748

823,525 821.032

no (318.414)  (274.070)

{(318,414)  (271.020)

Total liabilities
Total net assets

(318.414)  (274.020)
505111  547.012

Equity

saarc capiia.

Saare premium reserve
Capital reduction reservo

Accumaiaied osses

Tc_n;l"equity

Tae Commrpany nas tagen advaniage of :he provisions of Companiss Act 2006 s408 and does not disc.o

RO

individi.a orofil and oss accoun: Loss for e year wag £2791.000 (2022; profit £21.352.000)

12.C 6,225 5.225
130 292,626 292,625
145 317.714 3722365

150 (111,454) {74204
505,111 347.012

se the Company's

Tae Company linanaia. glazementy on pages 111 o 120 were approved by tac Board of RDirectors of Civitas Socia. Housing PLC

and autnaonsed foriss.ue and signed on its oonail oy

} '\,huf ]

Michael Wrobel

Cnairman and Independen: Non-Exec.

= Diractor
28 Tune 2023

Canpany Mo 10407578
I Y
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the yvear ended 31 March 2023

Capital

Shaie
Shate premudin reduction
capital reserve reserve
o . . . Note £00 _ £on0 £000
Balance at 1 April 2021 5,225 292452 331140
Profit and tota. comporehensive income for e year - -
Shares reissuad from reas.ry 484
Shares 00.ghnl hbac< inio reasury (9.259)

Dividends paid

Balance at 31 March 2022

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - -
Shares rassuzd from reas.ry 13.0 - -
Shares D0agh. DacK MO rEasuTy 14.0 - -
Dividends vaid 15.0 - -

Balance at 31 March 2023

T322355

{4,651)

Accumulated Total
tosses equity

Looy £ 000
(614773} 568,354
21352 21362

- 548

(5,259}

(34.093) (34.6933)

(74.204) 347012

(2,791} (2,791)

- (4.651)

- (34.459) (34,459)
317,714

(11,454) 50511

The Company's dis'nbutable reserves comprnse retamned earnings/{accumaulated losses) and the capizal reducion
reserve. These in aggregate had sufficien: realised distrilnaiable reserves o suppor: dividends paid to date.

T noes o pages N300 120 are an nicgra. gar of Tnose hinanaa, s aienonis



Notes to the Company Financial Statements
As at 31 March 2023

1.0 Corperdate informanaci

Civiras Social llousing PLC (":he Company™} was incorperated in England and Wa.cs ander the Comrpantes Act 2006 as a publc
company limitcd oy sharss on 29 Sepremoer 2015 with company numoper 10402528 undar tne name Civiias REIT PLC. which was
suhsegaenly cnanged 10 tac cxisting name on 3 Ocroper 2015

The addrass ol (ne regisiered office 13 510 Fioor. 65 Gresaam Strect. London DC2V 7NQ The Company is regisiaerad ag

an invesimen: company ander section 833 of (ng Companies Act 2066 in Eng.and and Wa.es and 1s domicied in t1c

Unitaed Kingdorm,

The Company did no: ocgin trading anul 18 November 2016 when the shares were admitted to trading on e London Stock
Exchange CLSE™)

The Company's Ordinary shares save oeen admiited 1o the Officia. List of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). and are
-raded on the LSE

The principa. activity of the Company is t0 act as e Liimate paren: company of its saosidiaries (he "Group” and <o pravide
sharcholders with an ailraciive eve of income. ‘ogetner with the potenua: for canita. growin from investing in a portto'io ol
social homes.

24 Basis ol prepdranion

The tinancia. statomen:s have peon prepared on a Austorical cost basis and in accordance with Financia: Reporting Standard
121 Reduced Discos.are Framewors (FRS 1017 and the Companies Act 2006 as app.ican.e lo companies using FR3 101

In prevdaring (nese financial s:azements. The Company appiics the recognition. meastrament and disciosure requiremen's of
Internanona. Fiancia. Reporting S:andards ("Adopied IFRSs™), b..t makes amendments where necessary in order 1o comp.y
witn the Companies Acl 2006 and has sct ou: oe.ow waers advaniage of :hic FRS 101 disc.osure exemptions nas oeen la<en.

In preparing rhesc financial s1a:ements (e Company has ta<en advaniage of a . disclosure exemptions conferred by FR3 101

Therefors, these financia. statements do not includer
« ceriain comrparative information as olherwise required by [FRS:

¢ certain disclos.ares regarding tne Company's canita. management.

e certain disclosurces in re.ation tao [FRS 15 Revenue Contracts wity Customears:
e asiacmen: of casn hows:

e (ne effect of future accouning standards not yet adopted:

+ e discos.ara ol the renconeration of key managemen: personnes and

e discosure of related party ransaciions witn other whol.y owned memoers of Civiras Social [lousing PLC

In addrion. and 1y accordance witn FRS 1C1 furtaer disclosure cxemplions nave pecn adonied necause equiva.en: disc ogures
‘he Company's conso.daed financia. siatemen:s. These tinancia. slatements do no: inc ude ceran
disc.os.res in respec: of,

are ina aded m

¢ linancia: insirarents; and
e fair value measuremen: o:ner than cerain discos.res regaired as a result of recording financia insrumrents at fair va.ue

The Company nas laken advaniage of the cxempiion in seciion AG8 of tne Companics At 2006 not (o presen: its own income
$ialement oI $1a1Cm.en: of conprenensive income

New standarda. amendimein?s grebimterpretations
Aher a review of new accowning standards whic: are now effcctive. none are re evan! 2o o adopied In .
Company's financlal statiemen:s for tne year ended 31 Maran 2023

: preparation of Tae

CIOLI] € nitesrn

Tae Hnancia. siawcren:

nave necn preparcd on a going conacern oass

As disc.issc

Tqe Company HNancla. s:aicmen:s snow an acc.moaed oss qowever s s doe o a dire- ag on orohis from swosidiary
companios neing moved L0 "ne sir.ciare i e form of dividends

™o Comrnany 1as net cuLIrend danpilines of £289,522,000 (2027: F245.272.00G0) Thus pa.ance arises d .o o e intercompany
na.ances ‘oia. ang £318.128.000 (2022: £271632.060) wita tae Company's s.osdlary companies. 7ne am ours Drncna. Y re.ae o
pan< .oans drawn in tne Company's s.osidlary comoanies in order to linance tne puronase ol new acguisizions in accordance
Wi 110 Group's o.siness mode: Tne directors of 7ie swosidiary companes nave provided a eler ol comfors tal ey wil not
sees revaymen: of “hese ba.ances wWitnin 12 montas from e date of approval of 1he Company’s inancia! statements

xin the Group fingnciai s:atemenis apove, e wnderying assels ol e Company ocnefl rom a sea.re income siraam,

Y1308 SVLIALD
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

The Company’s aric.es of associauon ine ude a requiremen: for the Board 0 oropose an ordinary resoluzion at the annual

k ¥
genera. meeting to. owing e fifth anniversary from “he initia: pub.ic oftering of 1ne Company for the Company (o continue
inits curren: form {the Continuation Resotauon) This voic was passed in Sepiember 2022 so ine Company wil continue its
business as presen: y consuiuied and will propose e same resosution a: e AGM 1n Seplember 2027 and every fillh ann.a
general meeting hereafter

On 9 May 2423 an annoJncement was made 1o the marxe: for an al-cash otfer of Civiiag Socia. Housing PLC {CSH) from
We.lness Jnity Limred, a wnolly owned indirect supsidiary of CK Assets Holdings Limited (CKA). The offer occame
unconditiona. on 23 June 2023. The Groap's existing committed deb: taciiities conlain a standard change of con'ro. claase nas
now peen iriggered due 1o the offer necoming wncondinonal, Tais could resuitin e existing committad deot faciilies peing
witndrawn. Furinerniore. the Diraciors do no: aave visibiiy of tae postcom on funding for e Group and Company at
chis time The Direciors noie the detalled intentons statement incluaded within tac annouancemen: on 9 May 2023, wnicn states
Jhat CKA docs not envisage ma<ing any changes 1o 1he managamen: ieam nor any disrupiion (o any Couniernarties or .o

‘he underlying enan:s. However, 1ne conditions oulined anove indicale a maenal uncerain'y which may cas: significan:
doshlunon ine Grouwp's and Company's anillly (o continue as a going concern. “he Independen: Auditors’ Reonort inc..ded
wiinin ne Ann.al Repor: and Accounis for ne year ended 31 March 2023 a.so highlights this maiena. uncerainty. Taeretore,
nomwiiasanding ne ma:cra. uncertainty arising frone the otter from CKA. the Dirccrors arc satisfied tha: "ne gomng concern
oasis remains appropriate tor e preparaion of 1ne financa. siatenran:s, Te financa. staemeniy do notinclude (ne
adiusime cwaoldd resait H ine Croup and tne Company woere .nan € 10 conin.ee as a going concern

Sigrntirant udgen el anig sanlues ff Gnliinnaio:
The Loy source of astimalion Lncerainiy re.aies 1o 1c Company's invasimer. in Growp companies. and s siated in ine
Company's separate Hinancial g:a’ements ar cost 0ss impairmen: Losses. if any Tmpairmen: osses are determined win
reference 10 e invaesiments fair vai.e [oss cstintated costs of disposa’ Invesiment progeries ne.d by tne ssosidiary
compantes are supooried oy Indeooenden: va.sation JTuadgenmen:is and ass.mpliong assoclaied with ‘ne groperty values ol ine
invesimen:s ne.d by the suosidiary comr pamies are detal.ed in the Group financia. staenmoenss.

IV EATAU A IVRE § Ly

SO0 ACemunting Lot aens
TAe finanalal staienen:s of e Company o ow the accouning p0.1c1es taid outin tae Gro.n's conso.ldated tinancia.
slaemenig a ong with e 1o . owing acco..niung poilcics waldn nave peon consistanty ann.iad

1140 AT SRSt
e inves: in s.osidiary companies are inc. uded in :ne Company's S:aicmen: of Finanaia: Position al cosl .ess Drovision
for impainmren: Imopairren: ‘osses are determimed witn reterence 1o the invasimean’s fair va Le ass esumaied se .ng co -On
disposa | ne differencs pelweaan 19 ne: disposal procccds and 18 carrying amourn: s inc.ded in e meome s.aemaen:

A

Themvesanen: in a sLuhsidiary company may inc ude 0oty e poranase of shares and an inierconm nany Loan woucn s
SL0SCQUONLY caplraised Inrel.n lor snares in e seosidiary company Toe intcreamaany 0an caolda ised g disc oscd in
note 70 as a ransfer nerween tne snares and .oan coLuimns

Tendiis to ssivsididanie s

Loans made o swosidiary companies wiuc ange a8 par: of (e ransacions for 1ac acqguasiiaon of inves:man:s and ars
gupgeg any capralised py thie isgoe of gnareg are recognised as IMvesirent in s.oskiiaries at cost AL lne poInllic oan is
caoita ised This ransaciion s recognised as a rransfer wiiain ac lan en noa 7O

ST e T SR SN COn A s

Ba.ances arising wiin s.osidiary comoanies of a lemrpordary nal.re are INia.y recognised at fair va.qe and s .ose
mecas .red atamorised aos:

Y3 Liendend -
Drvaidends are mo. ded 1in e financla. s1aomanis in tacs yoar in wae ey are gaid Delars ol dividends paid and oroposed

arc <. dedn nots Jdated hinanacia omrants

147 ot e Growp's cons

b rrpo e s

Detals of Dirgciors rem.anera’ion are inge Lded v note 3¢ of tie consoadated inancla. slacmanig 7ac Comoany had no
om0 oyees dorng ae year (202

2Z:niy

S Auacotfees
A_ditfees in re.ation 10 1ac Comoany s inansla sialdmaenis 0a
note 9 of e Croup inanoa. slaenaenis

Gi Fortorier deal s, 0 ease refer .o




Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

70 Investment insubsidiaries

o he

Srares oaslo year ended

wnsdares sbdanes TiMarch atiel

Year ended 31 March 2023 L - . _ £Ong Loca o wldn
Balance a: ine oeginning of the year 768,075 25,209 793.284
Increase in invesimen:s 1,090 600 1,690
Tnans ransferrred 7727 (2,727 -
Impairment (241) - (241)
Jlt_t}}e end of the year - 776.651 18,082 794,733

- T o - o T T o theyear
Shates in Loans o ended

subsidianies subsicdiaries 31 Match 2022

Yeal ended 31_|:da|ch 20?:2__ _ o L o . _ £ ﬂ £000 E'ong
Balance al ine beginning of the year 703,435 17.483 725,918
increase in investmen:s 41712 31,013 F27725

L.oans ranslerred 23287 (23,287

Impairmen: {359) (359
At the end of the year 768.075 75209 793,284

Fol owing a review comparing cost of invesimen:s (0 iae wnderying ne: assets of subsidiary companies. an impairmrent
DrovISIOn nas been madse of 241000 (2022: £359.000)

B0 Subsidiary entittes

The Company nas provided a gudaraniee .nder $473C of tne Companies Ac: 2006 in respect of the finanmal year ended

21 Marca 2823 for a number of its suosidiary companies (as indica:ed in 1he lao.e on the o lowing pages) The gaaraniee 18
over a.. oulstlanding iabilties 1o which e suasidiary companies are saojec: ad 31 Marcn 2023 anilu they are satisfied in b
The Grodap consists of a paren: company, Civitas Social Housing PLC. incorporaied in Eng.and and Wales (company numbe
10402528) and a n.moer of siosidiaries he.d direc: v by Civizas Scaa Housing PL.C. which operate and arc incornorated in
England and Wa'es or Jersey.

The Group owns 100% equdity shares of 4. ssosidiaries Jsied below and nas (ne gower 10 appoin: and remove ing maority of
‘ne board of directors of :nose supsidianes e relevan: activines of the below swosidianes are determined oy 1ne Board of
Directors pased on e ourpose of cach company

Theretore. 1ae Directors concluded tna: e Croup nas conirol over a .ness entdes and all those enuhes have oean
conso idaed winin the consolidaied financia statemen:s

A s ofa re aled undertaxings inclided within these consoddated financia. stacmen:s are nowd oelow Indirecy ne d
gupsidiary companics are marked oy an ind2niainon 1n e lanio ne owe

Country of 1hcot poration

Name Reqgistersd numbet

E’v-las é::;r a Hous g Ftna?l-::e C;)mgjam-,:i L::n.le_d‘ T 10837707 :ri;:emy Eng.and & J\E;
Clovtas Sooia. Housing Jersey 1 Lrmited 120123 Houdong comr pany Lersey

w.kas SPV1 Lomteds 10518729 Fraverty nvestnient Fag.and & Wwa es

flas SPV2 Lo ted® 10111251 Pre ty nvesiment Eag.and S wales

Las SPU L e 16346719 Froperty nvestorent England & Wales

Crkas SPVIS Lomuted” CAVTIEED Pronerty nvestaient Fig and & 'Wa'es

wias STV 25S Lomaiteds 10791473 Pranerty - Lag.and & 'Va es

Crvitas SPV2Y Lo ied 10884112 Praperty and & Ma es

{9 33 oted” 16345407 avestment tand & Mues

Linted” 10388530 Avestent and & Wa.es

V38 Lo ted® 16735318 Prooerty avestaenl and & Wales

34 Loreds 10547333 Froverty vestreant and & Wa es

as SPV40 Lirted® Prooerty nvestrent and & Wa.es

f s SPUEH L 1ed Prooerty vestent Lngoand & ‘Wa'es

i
.

stas SPval Lrted 10773414 Fraperty -westmsant Eag.and & 'Wa.es

Tostas Socia. Howsing Poaence Cornany 2 Lmted” 10397598 Frnances corpany FEag.and & Wa.es
O wdas Sooa. Hous nyg jevsey 2 Lanted 124879 Hood ng company jersey

Covlas 5PV Loanaed® t0156229 Property mvestnent Lag.and & Ma.as

2
z
o
;
-
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&
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W
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

__Reqistered number Prinaipal actonty

Name Couniry of Incoiporation

Civitas 8PV L 1 - 10433744 Property ‘nvestment Engand & Wa'ss
Crvitas SPVS Limited® 10479104 Property nysstment Fngand & Wa.es
Civitas SPVO Lirited* 10674495 Property investrent Lng.and & Wales
Civilas 5PV3 Lonited* 10556388 Iroperty investrent Lng and & Wales
Civitas SPVIC Limted® 105532473 Froperty invesurenl Lngand & Wales
Clvitas SPVIZ2 Limited® 1€346753 Froperty nwestment Eagland & Waies
Covilas SPVTY Limited® 10473036 Proverty mvestment Engiand & Wa.es
Civitas SPVI8 Limited” 1346651 Property nvestmeant England % Wales
v tas SPVIS Limited™ 10548932 Property /estment England & 'Wa.es
C.v.tas SPV20 Limited” 10588735 Froperty avestment Lng.and & Wales
Cwvitas SPV22 1 mied” 16743938 Property nvestment Eng.and & ‘WVaes
Civitas SPV24 [ ited* 10751512 Froperty nvestiant Lngand & Wa.es
Clvitas SEVZ0 Linded” 10864336 Fraperty nvestreant Lag.and & Wa es
Civitas SEVZD Lo red” 10913463 ; rvestrent Foug and & Wa.es
Civitas SPVEC Lin ted® 10936673 nvestent Frg and & Wa.es
Civ tas SPVI Limted® 16974889 Property nvestrent Engiond & vVa.es
Cuv.tas SPV3AZ Limited® NoC/1+3 Pronerty sivestirent Lng.and & Wales
Clv.tas 30WV34 Lomoted” 10758581 Froperty iavestrent Lngiand & Wales
Coritas SPV3EG Lorcted® 16388792 ivestrent Lng.and & ‘Waies
Covitas SPVAA Lomied® 10755556 sestrant Lhag.and & wales
Clvitas SFWVS [ n ited” 10334877 Feperty orrestirent Lag.and & Wa es
Covitas SEV4S Lo teds 10R71354 Froverty vestment Fg and & 'Waes
Cuvitas SPV4e Loy 1ed* 10871910 Froverty avestrent Fagland & 'Wa.es
Covitas SPVAY Lorted” 1CR73270 Property wastment Englawl & wa.es
Covitas 3PVAE Laied” 10875253 Prooerty isest ent Lngland & Naes
Covtas STV Lo aedr 1C82a69% Fromerty nvestmeant Lngand & Wa.es

Cortas 5 Lo teds vestment Evgand & Wa.es
Chvitas SPVES Lo ted” erfy yestment £ and & 'Waes
Clv Froperty nvestrent Frgand & Vo es
o8 roDerty vestrent Engand & 'Wa.es
Crvitas SEVY Limiteds Froverty nvestment g and & Waes

wotas STV7E Liritad®
tas SFV7 T orred”

tas SEV7S 1y ted”

Fromerty nv Lngand & Naes

[
c fng.and & Waes
C

Tagand & 'Wa s

Costas SEVEC Line 1 g and & Waes
Civtas SPV1EE Lonted” tny.and & 'Wa.es
Covtas Souia. Hansng Fnance Convoany 3 Loaedt Lagand &

Lo oreds
“tas SEVZo Lo otedt
5 5FYSS Lo redt

Lng.and %A
Fag ad & Waes

Egand 5% i

1oz kg and S
1931444 Erigand &
IMACA Eagand &
1CAZT5A2 tagand %

3 Lrygaent &’
Lagand %

Eag.and
Frigand &
S8 Lo ted” Eryand &
SEVaZ 1 1136073% Engaand &
15N 58 enty =t Ly and &
NnEeL713 e ant Lagand 3%

112051m44 Creesty s Frg et s

14555 30 Fagands

N30L3A5 Lrig.and % Naoes




Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

Name

Crvitas SPYICS Tintt
Civitas SPVI06 Lmited”
Citas SPYVI07 Limited”
C.wiras SPV116 L.med®
Civitas SPVNT Limuied”

Covitas Socia, tlausing Fonance Company 4 Lim red*®

Covitas SPV23 Limited®
Clwttas SPV34 Limited®
Civitas SPV39 Limied”
Covitas SFV69 Limited™
Covitas SPVY/S Limued?
Covitas SEVHEd Limited™
Clvitas SPVas Limired*
Covitas SFVE7 Limited®
C.vitas SPV88 Limited™
Civitas SPVS0 Limited*
Crnras SPV AL Limired®
Ciitas SPVA2 Limired®
Crvitas SPVI3 Linted®
Civilas SPVI4 Loauted®
Civitas SPVY95 Limued”
Civitas SFVICO Linted®
Cvitas SPVICT Limiuted®
Civ.tas 5PVIC2 Limued®
Civitas SPV1C9 Limited®
Civitas 5PV112 L.mited”
Civitas SPV14 Lim.ed”
Crvitas SPVIS Lertted®
Clvllas SPYNB Linted”
Civ_tas SPVI21 Lomited”
Civitas SPVI12Z2 Lim ted®
Clvitas SPYVI1Z6 Limited®
Clvitas SPVI27 Lo 'ted™
Clvltas SPVIZ9 Limited™
Civitas SPY13C Limr ed®
Clvitas SPVYLS] Limited®
Clvitas SPVIE2 Limited®
Clvitas SPVIME Lie'ted®

SPY1S3 Lorlled (nreviousy Fe'doay Lo lted;”

Civ_tas SPVI148 Limited®
Crwvitas 3PV Limited®
Covtas SPVIBO i ired”
FFI CG 324 Lds

e
{

etas SPVY Loned”

vrtas 3PVIS Lenitedt
wtas SFVE7 Lo red”
atas SPYA4 Lomiteds
svitas SPV4d Limited®
vitas 3PV E6 Linted”

+

~

0

T O

watas SPVeZ Lor o tedt
Liitas SP Loroterd™
lvitas SPYSY Lorited”

T 00

natas §PVAS Lomteds
svitas SPVSE Lonlte

—
{

9]

tas Soc.a. Housing F nanee Oornany 5 Limled?

Registered number

runaipal activity

11532177
11532179
11532182
115¢4399
11504443
nacesen
10746881
11C3975C
MmNz
1m423572
10939075
1381453
114184732
10888903
10949044
101939131
10901377
11449913
11043111
112C8103
H27C786
1063703
09978282
11521833
11532120
11579750
11579733
11522178
11411438
11039917
11482645
11139821
10941401
116643%4
11765074
11673132
11473735
118423005
3219012
11632533
114625691
11462533
1G33019
15083077

,
1)
3

10588783
110317343

110356403
10957528
10938467
10937929
10938269
11478535

Property imvestment
Froperty investment
Iropernty vestment
Property mivestmenl
Property imvestment
I'nance Conpany

Property (mivesinment
Froperty investmenlt
Property investmeanl
P-operty inveastment
Property investnent
Property nvestnent
Mroverty investment
Proverty ‘nvestnent
Proverty 1nvestnent
Property 1nvestment
Property investnient
Property investrrient
P-operty investment
Property investment
Proverty investrent
Property .avestiient
Property nvestnent
Property investment
Proverty investment
Property investment
Property vestnent
Property investment
Property iInvestnent
Proverty investrent
Property .nvestnent
Property vesrrent
Property vestent
Froperty mmvestme:n
Proverty nvestment
Provperty investinienl
Pronerty investrent
Ho ding company

Property mnvestrent
Property nvestrent
Froperty rwvestnient
Property nvestenl
Froperty nvestment
Fiianue Connany

Froperty iavestment
Frone-ty imveastenl
Fronerty rywastinenl
Proverty mvestir el
Pronerty investieenl

|rty avestant
erty cyvestment
Erooerty wvestyent
Fronerty nvestient
Fronerty vesienl
Property mvastrmanl

Counuy of incorporanon

England & ‘Wales
Ingland & Wa.es
England & Wales
England & Wales
Eng:and & Walgs
Lngland & Wwalas
kng.and & Wales
Lng and & Wales
England & Wales
Lngland & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wwa:es
Engiand & Wa.es
Lngland & Wa es
Eng.and & Waes
Eng.and &M
Frig.and & Wates
Fng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa.es
England & ‘Waes
Eng.and &% Wa.es
Eng and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa es
Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng and & Wales

s

Erg and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
England & 'Wa es
Eng:and & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
Fngland & Wa.es
Frig and & Wa.es
England & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Fng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa.es
Engiand & Wa.es
bng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa eg
Eng and & Wa ey
Eng.and & Wa es
g and & Wales
Eag.and & Wales
Frg and & WVaes
Lag.and S Wa es
Lng.and & Wa es
England & Wa.es
Eng and & 'WVa.es
Eng.and & Wa'es
Frig and & Wales
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

Name Registered number Principal acuvity Country of Incorporation

C:'\ma:; SPVa Q l-,',."riled‘ 11478/07 Property nvestment bng.and & ‘WNa.es
Covitas SPVICA Lin:ted® 115321744 Fronerty investent England & Wales
Civitas SPVICS Lom.ted® 11332135 Froperty investirent Eng and & 'Wa es
C.vitas SPVITS Limited® 11580068 Froperty invesivent Eng.and & Wa es
Cvitas SPVIZE Lintited® (8233432 Froperty vestTient Lng.and & Wa.es
Contas SPVSS Lomted® 11698372 Froparty nvestent Lag.and & Wa.es
Covitas SPVI34 Lin aed* 11689461 Froperty avestrent Lngand & Wa'es
Covitas SPVI33 Lomited® 11579880 Froperty investent Ergaand & Wa es
Cuvitas SPV1S6 Limned® 115/976C Froperty investment England & Wa es
Civitas SPV143 Lirited* 11546808 rroperty investn:ient Eng.and & Wa.es
Civitas SPVI144 Lo ted® NRI6H30 Froperty ‘nvestnent Eng.and & Wales
Civitas 5PV146 Lomited” 11861300 Holdig Company Eng.and & Wa.es
Bryv Etnin (2019) Liiteds 11644898 Froperty .nvestaie:nt Wales
Crvtas SPVI47 o ted™ 1n8s19/4 tHoldmg Company Engiand & Wa'es
Mynydd Mawr (2619 L'm ted” 1844917 roverty investment Lngland & wWales
Covitas SPVIS2 Limuted™ 11955719 Property nvestment Ergrand & Wa es
Covtas SrViss L o redt 12044281 Froperty _avestne:t Eagland & Wa es
Coyttas SPV1S6 Linited® 120810494 Promearty ryrasiment Frgland & ‘Wa.es
as SPV1sY Limited® 12188610 Prouerly crrestment Waes
Clvtas SPVISe Linited® 122026744 ty vestrment Wa es
Covitas SPV1B0 Lim ted™ 1227290645 Proverty investment Wa.es
Bediord SFV1 Loyitsd” 12315318 Pronerty vestntent ‘Wa es
Br:dge Frooerty Herts L o ted” 124 33 Pro ty myestment 5% 'Waes
Bridge Froouo Lo ted® 12445459 Prooerty investment Fgand & Wa es

FPT Cor 234 Ltd® 11313226 Promarty nvestncent Eng.and & Wales
O tas 3PV L o iter 1044790411 r- ty -nvestnient FErig.and & 'AMaes
Cowtas 5Fv HP Ltd * 12784893 Frave-ty nvestmrent Eng.and & Wa.es
Cortas §Pyvi1e Lomited™ (33917357 Frone-ty nvesltnent Engand & 'Waes
C 156351541 Froverty nvestorent Ling.and & Wa.es
C 122581315 Froverty iInvestrant Engaand & Waes
i 15248151 Holdmg Cornany Eng and & ‘Va &«

* Theseg aontities ate exempl [fTom the requirements of the Compantes Act 2006 relatitg to the audit ol indwvdual finanoal statements by wirfue of Section 4794 of that
At These are all enuues that have a year end «f 31 March 2023

The regisiered addresses for Tac s.osidiaries are constsien: pased on e couniry of incorporazion and ars as fo .ows:

¢ England & Wales entities: [.in< Company Ma::ers Limized. 5:21 F.oor 35 Gresham 3ircet London LC2ZV 7MNG

e Jersey entities: 17 Cas.e Siree:, 31 Tteorn Jorsey JE2 Z3RT

G0 Troace vl TRSr e S 3 e

31 March 2023 ST Marech 2042

£ 000 £000
Trade recervan os o 1544 1150
Preoaymaon:s and oiner recsivan.es 420 1937
Accrasd incomne 635 1.258
Total T 2,599 4310

31006 114 1ave occn
of Lnoomo.cied wores

ot oL AG

GO IT resy

Pre s and oiaerre
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

10 0 Cask and cash equuvalents

3t March 2023 31 March 2022

R o R E000  EW0D
m_ﬁod Dy souicilors - T - 64 376
Liquuidity tunds 15,636 10.489
Casn ned at banx 10,239 12.258
Ciasn 7and cash_ équﬁ;—l_on[s T o - T i ) o ﬁﬁ o 23123
Resiricied casn 254 315
Tatal cash heid at bank ) i T T N © 77 26483 23438

Liguidity funds refer 1o nroney placed in money marke: fonds Toesc are nighly ligaid funds wii accessibi.ity within 24 hours
and sap ect o insignifican: risk of caanges in va..le

Cash ne.d ny soficiiors is money ne.d in escrow for expenses expecied o oc incurred in refalon o inves:men: properties
pending completion Thaese lunds arc avaiiable immediately on demand

Restricted casn reprosents amo.uns neld for specitic commrmensts, tenant deposits and reweniion money ne.d oy lawyers in
reiation 1o deferred payments sub e 1o acruevemen: of ceriain conditions, other retenuons and cash segregared o fund repair.
mainienance and imorovement works (o oring the properiies .p 1o saldsfactory standards for ine Group and :he tenan's.

180 Trade and othuer payabies

31 Maich 2022

31 March 2023 Restaled
e e PR 1121 L

Rewentions® - ) o 20 60
Accraals 745 635
Dindend witnno’ding tax payaolc 940 1057
Deferred mcome 374 358
Amoanis due W0 subsidiary companics 316,128 271532
Tenant dopasis ned” 207 ]
Totalﬁm? - T - T o —3i8,4147 274020

* Compalatives have been te-apalysed 1o conet the analysis ol £228 000 af lenant deposiis whieh had previously been included in retenuons

12.0 Share capital
Share capiia. represen's tne nominal value of consideration recerved by the Company for ine iss.c ot Crdinary saares.

For the For the

year ended year ended

31March 2023 31March 2022

- o L _ £000 £000

Share capital

At pcginning and end of year 6.225 t5.225
Tooptibie o S e bt et DI TS B RS A I A T

For the For the

yeat ended year erded

3t March 2023 31 March 2022

a&i;aTy_shares of £0.01 each

AT oogl‘]@ning:‘md angd of year 622.461,380” (2?:.46177@

During e year 11c Comrpany purenased 5030.000 Ordinary snares 1o oe ne.d in ireasary al o cost of £4.551.000 (31 Marca 2022
1C.025.060 Ordinary shares tor £9239.500)

DLring (e arevio.s year, The Company reiss.ed 555000 Crdinary snarcs ne d in reasary tor r347.600 The cos: of paronasing
Lese §ares INTo Teas.ry of £484.000 has been credited 1o ine caona. reduciion reserve with ine gain crediiad 1o ine snare
oremiuIr reserve

A3 Maroa 20230 e Company neld 16075000 (31 Marcn 2022 10.025.000) Crdinary snares in ireas.ry 7ne saiares wi., conin.o
o ne eidin reasary ancil saer reissuwed or cance.ed.

A3 Marea 20230 :ne pamoer of Ordinary snares wsod 1o ca ¢o.aic e net asse: value per share 13 063856380 (31 Maran 2622
012430.380) woien eXe sdes tne shares e d i ireas.ry
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

150 Share promaneg réeseiue

ThC snare premium roserve Teprasents ine amosn:s s.escribed tor Ordinary share capiia.

aggocialed issie coyis of the supscripions

AL peginning of year

Premium ariging on shares rel L reasary

In excess of nontina value iess

At end of year

For movermen:s in ‘ne year. please sec detaiis in nowe 120,

TLO Cap S RCTOn rEstve
The capta. red..cion reserve is a digiriparaboe reserve o walen e va e ol e
Pursuani o Arlicie 3 of The Companies (Reducuon of Share Car

pacs snares o pe nold In reas.ry

AL osglnning of year

Snares raiss.ed trom reasary

Snares gowgnl bacg into reas.ry

-

For nmovemenis in (e yedr, p.casc sce detai’s in note 129

oA il sun e .
Tls reserve reproscnts (ne oroilis and .osses of the Company

At peginning af year
{Tosg)/profi: for 1ne year
Diwvidends paid
At exih of yea;-

1 b Coprratiing nat.as

As al 31 Maron 2023, C1ers 18 N0 LLUMate SOnTo ing party

P Relarea Pty Trarsacton

Fora. rc.acd pary iransacions and ransacions Wi
e Cro.o's consoadaed tinanaa giawmenisand ama.nigd.e 10

TS et DA -

F case reter :o noe

Since ne year and. Crvlzas Socta Ho
Tac Company nla ng £l ¥

A5

3. Oreder 2008, ©
reserve is 1o oo reated tor the purposes of Part 23 of the Companics Ac: 2005 as a rea
dis:rin.uon in accordance witn seciton 83C of thc Companies Ac. Tne Company 1ds

For the For the

year ended vear ended

31 March 2023 31 Maich 2022

_ o _ £000 £000
292,626 292462

- 154

252,626 292.628

cance._cd share premiam was ranslarred.

aen

Farthe

vear ended
S1Maich 2023
000

322,365

317,714

s.osidlary contnanies i noe 110 anase

Cro.o Consoadarod inanoa. staiemen:s on paga 10

For the

year ended
J1March 2023
£'000

" (74,204
@791)
(34.459)

(65D

lance hed Inne capnra. red.aciion
ased orofi: and ;merefore aval.aoie for
ssed tus reserve for ine cos's of puying

ros the

year ended

31 March 2022
£'000

331140
484

Fot the

vear ended
31 March 2022
£000
(531.473)
21354

(34.0951

1oae Investmen: Adviger ooedse mase roteranes o noes 30 land 302 of

sing Jersey 1 Limrad and Criiias Socia o wsing lersey 2 Limicd navess.od dividends o
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other
alternative performance measures

The Gro.p has chosaen 0 adopt LPRA pest oracitice guidelines for caicu.ating <ey aliernative performance measures, Noles 1.0
10 70 supoor: the LPRA metrics disc.osed on pages 28 and 29 of (he Repor: where the definition and purpose of eacn metric
are outiined.

FIE] EPHA Larniing.

Fou lhe year For the yeat

ended ended

) o . o o 31 March EQ i1 Ma}cfﬂ
Earnings from operational activities
Profit afier taxation (F"GCO) 25,472 14,754
Change in tair value of derivauve tinancial insiruments (£'GG0) 2,826 (2575
Changes inva:.e ol inves:ment proper:ics (£'CC0) (2,640) 112.259)
Costs of cary reoayment of dep‘. (£ ) o ) 1‘2'11_ )
[PRA Famings (€0C3) L ) “ma

‘Néig'ﬁfcd average numoer of snares in issue (ad;.As:t:é_for shares ne.d in :rr)a?;qry) 608.555,681 518797.912
EPRA Earnings per snare (EPS)ﬁ— 'ogszc &fii nd 7 4.43p 48@

S FPRA MNAY Ml g

EPRA Met EPeA Mer EPRA Net

Reinstatement Tangible Dispesal
. . N . S I _Value  Adsery __ Value
31 March 2023 o ’
Ne: asscis (£ CCO) 661,909 661,909 661,509
Fair va..e of derivative financial ins:rumenis ('CCCY (8.129) (8.129) -
Ad;usimen: o tair va.we for pan< aorrowings (F00G) - - 11,736
NAVEDOR_ .. _ 653780 _ &%3780 673645
N.amoer of snareg in issue ‘ad’ .sied for snared ne.d in reasury) 606,386,380 606,386,380 606,386,380
NAV por s}ﬁarc_,____ o o . o . o _IO'I_.BZp __i?SZp_ ___lll.DBp_
- - _ - T - 4— T T LPRA Nct - LPRA N-CT B EIPRA Net
Reinstatement Tangible Disposal
- - N P Value Assels L'?ll](‘
31 March 2022 T T T T T T
Ne!asses ED00) a73.547 575,547 373.547
Fair va .c of denvanve financia. ins:iromen's {£500) (71310 (Z131) -
Ad usiment to fair va..c for oan< oorrowings (E’CQC 2044
I?P:V [$2 ‘CLC"*W - - o - o - o 573.4-1€ - 67'5.415 B B gl;l
FPoaroor of s1ares mnissue tad Lsiad for saared hcd inreas.aryy 012436380 0l2438380 H124A30380
N AW nar snare 1793950 129950 135 710
306 EPHA Neotlarual Yieia
T o T T - o - 7 N - For [h_t' _____ For l[\(_-
. 51 March 020 31 arcn oo
et progery 000 - o o o - 978347 958758
A owance for esumaicd parenasers o 59,973
Gross Lol y o Droberty o?’)rtfoﬁlo : ' h ) o o o o 1.0387,7172?
Ann.a ised ne: rents °F T T o T 57,654
Add notiona. ren: zHDIranon of rent free - - )
’"oo)adlﬁ ne:iarm,,aJsedwr\:t s o ) B 57.6§ 7:)4 29l
TPRA NTY ) T o B T o  5.55% 5787,
LFRA Topoed- oo NTY o 5.5&% 5.8%



Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other
alternative performance measures
Continued

30 EPka Vacanboy Hawe

For the For the

yeat ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ﬁ;ed Market Rencal Va.ae (ERVE of vacan( spaces -(f-'L-ZCO) T 10
Ls:imazed Market Renzal Va Le {ERV) of wnole porifoao (KGCS) 57,654 54,691
FPRA Vacancy Rate o  002%  000%
5.0 EPHA Tosrs Raue
T S S For the For VlllE
year ended year ended
3 Marchﬁ?ggé 31 Marrhf:z(())('i!ﬁ
Tola. adminisirative and operaing expenscs T T 11,821 T 10247
Direct property cxpenscs 1941 Q78
Less propeny expenses recovered tnrough rents {1512) {995)
EPRA Costs (including direct vacancy costs) o 12280 10,230
Direct vacancy costs -
EPRA Costs (excluding direct vacancy costs) . - @50 16230
Ren:a. income 54,607 51.6345
Leasgs rachargeao.e ¢osts received 1,512) (995)
Gross rental income - ' - 53,095 50541
EPRA Cost Ratio (including direct vacancy costs) 23.07% Z0.20%
EPRA Cost Ratio (excluding direct vacancy costs) | 23.07%  2020%

The Group nas norincurred any direc: vacancy cos's

60 LPFRA LTV

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

- - o 0oy 7000
Net Debt
Borrowings trom financia. ins:it.ions (F70G0) 367,925 537,050

Cash and casn egualva.en:s (£0CC) (35.588)

53
332337 303713

Total Property Value

hesiman: nroperiics at tar va e (Fioo) 953,364 943,237
Ne: recervables (F0CO) 26,743 25895

980.107 972129

EPRA LTV N - o ) &” 2

31 Match 2023 31 Match 2022
£'000 £ onn

Net receivables comprises

Ciacr recoivaon.es 24,783 43519
Trade and olacr roccivan.es 11,260 12,855
[.ess irade and olner payan.cs {9,300) 19.497)
Tatal ’ S o 26743 2589
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other

alternative performance measures
Continued

C&fnb&hems of Net Assets used in EPRA LTV calculation
Invastmen: propertics a: fair va..e

Nol recelvab.es

Cash and casn egumvalents

Less oorr_o_wings from linancia: ins:l:u_’.lons
Net assets used in the EPRA LTV calculation
Less amounts excl.ded from he ca.cd.alion

Interest ratc derivaltives

Tnamarlised .oan iss.c costs
Net assets

."-\-c-f“(imgizjons nec \,dincj (nc1donja1 coss ol ;).Jrcfa&rnse
Deveopment
Investment properties

Incrementa. .eltanle space

Ennancing iclao.c space

Tonan’ lncenives

Ouner Mmateria’ non-a. ocaed ypes of cxponditare
Capita.ised inlares:
Total CapitaJ-E;ﬁgﬂ_c-ﬁ-tﬁre
Convef;:)n trom accr:;a',s 1O Casn VOH;I.; 7

Total Capital Expenditure on a cash basis

Tae Cro.p nas no: capladsed any overacad or operating cxponses,

The Grosn 1as no Joint Ven:i.res o thers s o oin ven: . 0roperty o disc 0se in

o

31 March 2023
£000

953,364
26,743
35,588

(367,925)

647,770

8.129
6.010
661,908

For the

year ended
31 March 2023
£'000

543

4,944
1,700

7187

" 6,590

aoove ai.e

(597) o

31 March 2022
£000_

945237
268972
53,337

(357.050)

658415

T 67

For the

vear ended
31March 2022
£000

33485

40.898
1312

12,216




Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other
alternative performance measures
Continued

8.¢ Leverage:d hivternal Bate of Return JRKG
ThIS IS the annud: grow'h rale, based on growih in net asse: value per share since .a.nch and dividends paid o
Ordinary snarcno.ders.

31 March 2023

31 March 2023

NAV per share 109.1600p 11030000
31 May 2017 [n:eriny dividend 0.7500p C 75000
3t August 2017 Inzernim dividend 0.7500p C.73C00
30 Novemoer 2017 In:crim dividend 0.7500p C 7300p
9 Marcn 2018 In:erim dividend 0.7500p C.750C0
8 Junc 2018 Interim dividend 1.2500p 1.253Cp
7 Sepemper 7018 In:crim dividend 1.2500p 1.7230Cp
30 November 2018 Inierim dividend 1.2500p 1.25G0CH
11 lanuary 2019 Intennm dividend 1.1100p 11100
28 Feoruary 2018 In:erim dividend 0.1400p Cl40Cp
7 Junc 2019 Intenm dividend 1.3250p 1.325Cp
B Semenper 2019 Inzerim dividend 1.3250p 13250p
29 Novemper 2019 mierim dividend 1.3250p 1.325Cp
28 Feoruary 2020 [nterim dividend 1.3250p 13250p
12 Tune 2020 [nterim dividend 13250p 13250p
7 September 2020 [nterim dividend 1.3500p 1.3500p
4 Decont per 2028 Inrenm dividend 1.3500p 1350Cp
1 March 2671 Interim dividend 1.3500p 13300p
11 Tune 2321 [nterim dividend 1.3500p 1.350CD
10 Scpiember 2021 Interim dividend 1.3875p 138750
15 December 2021 nterim dividend 1.3875p 1.3875p
11 Marcn 2022 Interim dividend 1.3875p 138750
28 Tuane 2022 Interim dividend 1.3875p -
S Sepiempoer 2022 Intenim dividend 1.4250p
S Deocen oer 2072 Interim dividend 1.4250p
11 Marca 2023 Inierim dividend 1.4250p -
139.0100p 134.4875p
NAV ger snare a: .a.nch 98.0000p 98 0CCGD
6.29% 553%

levered IRR
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Five Year Financial Results

fa:ous Statement »f Comprelicugsvye Income

Tor the For the For the tor the For the

year ended year euded  year ended year euded  year ended
31Ma rchﬂ?gluﬁu f” Mdrchﬂ‘z[:lj'}l! i1 Marcl’;:;‘!](:]l[: 31 Marf:hﬁ?r?(?'f: a1 Mﬂ'Chf:Z[;:;la
Revenue o T
Ren:al income 54,607 51636 49,020 45158 35738
Lass diree: Droneriy oxpenses {1,.941) (978} (1175} (259) -
Net rental income o o 52666 50558 47848 45905 35738
Direotors ren sneration (211) {206) (198} (175) (163)
Investmen: adwvisory fees (6,217) (5.132) (5.117} {6.183) (5,457
Censra. and adminisitative exponscs (5.393) {3.809) (3.183) {330 (3.02.2)
Total expenses WV 82 (10247 (9.498)  (9860)  (9.542)
Change in fair vaiue of invesiment properies 2,640 12,259 551 9389 3,357
Operating Profit 43485 52880 43858 45435 29748
Finance income o T 143 7 2'5 - mlilC 491
Finance cxpenses — relating to pan< norrowings (15,335) {1C.508) (7737 (7.3473) (3.975)
Finance cxpenses  ralating o C share amor:iisaiion - - (540G
Change in lair va.de of interes: rate denvaiives (2,826) 2675 (35} {4781
Profit before tax T T T25472 44794 35.075 37723 19.854
Taxalnon - - - - -
Profit heiﬁgrtibt;i comprehensive income N 7 25472 14751 35073 37725 19.854
Earnings per share — basic 419p 7230 580G 506D 1670
Earnings per share — diluted 419p 7230 5.8Co 505p A %50
Dividend declared {per share} 5.70p 5550 540D 530p 50¢o

CIVITAS SOdTA
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Five Year Financial Results
Continued

Group Statement of Frtanaial Posthion

31 March 2023 21 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 Match 2020 3t March 2019

o _ o £00D £000 L"lg)rﬂi e F'nun . 79'[!7(7)(1
Assets
Non-current assets
Invesmeant property 353,364 915257 893,584 867988 820.094
Othun teceivakies 24,783 23.019 21906 10755 5.074
Tnteres: rate derivatives 8,129 2131 -

986276 970887 915589 878743 825918

Non-current assets

“rade and other recoivan.es 11.260 12.865 12.821 57723
Casn and casn egavalents 35,588 53337 137.097 54,347
T o o - T 46,848 55202 119518 an.a70
Total assets . 1033124 1037089 1035507 885,988
Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade andd piner pavaoles {9,300) {9,492 {9.345) {7,743} (15.324)
Bank and loan borrowings - - (59,937 (59.730)
S o (3.300) 9497 (692820 (57473 (15324
Non-current liabilities

Bank and oan borrowings (361,915)  {(352.050) (292.183) (209440 (203.156)
Interes: rate derivalives - - (544) {478) -
- o T (®61815) (352050)  (R92777)  (209.918)  {203.156)
Total liabilities @M 381547 GEA00%) (2773810 (220480

661909 675547 673498 670564 466508

Total net assets

Assets [
Share caplra. 6.225 3,225 0.225 6.225 5225 g
Snare premi.m reserve 292,626 292,625 292.453 292405 292405 1<
Capia. reduction reserve 317,714 322,355 331140 333.926 331625 §
-
Retainerd sarnings 45,344 54 331 43,576 41.00G8 30.453 E
Total equity 661.909 575.547 673498 570,504 566,508 8
ey __En Lot 9t > =]
=
Net assets per share - kasic 109.16p NG3ECH W8.3Co 107.870 107080 5
Net assets per share — diluted 109.16p ND3Co 128 3Cp 107.870 157 C8p g
Share price 83.70p B7 400 107 8Co 95.4C0 96.000
Total shareholder return (on a NAV basis) 4184% 3723 29.58% 23.64% 17.45%
Leverage 35.61% 34 4%, 74 487 26 9CH 22 GO¥
g
E
>
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CIVITAS SUCTAL HOUSING PLe
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Shareholder Information

Share Information

The Company's Ordinary shares of 1p each are quoted

on ~he Official List of the "CA and wraded on the premiam
segmen: of the Main Marke: of the ondon $iock Sxchange
(LS

SEDOL number 3)8-5)3

ISIN _GBOGBDEHBOS
Ticker/TIDM  CSk o )
LEI | 238C0PG3GBAIAGMBIYY

Frequency of NAV Publication

The Company's NAV 1s released "0 the LShL on a quarerly
basis and published on ~he Company's websiie
www.Clvitassocialhousing.com.

Sources of Further Information

Coples of the Company's Annual and kalf-Yearly Reports,
Srock “xchange announcements and further infermanon
on the Company can be obrained from s website:
WWwW. CIVITassocialhoasime. com.

Share Register Enquiries

The register for the Company's Ordimary shares s
maimnzained by .ank Group. .n the even: of queries
regarding your holding, please ¢ontac: the Reqgistrar
on 03747 664 300 {calls are charged at the standard
geographie rate and wul vary by provider: calls ourside
she U< will be charged a: the applicable mzernanional
ratel. inas are open batween 9.00am and 5.30pm.
vonday o Tnday. excluding puabhic holidays in =ngland

and wales. You can atso emald enduines@imkgroup.coak.

Changes of name and/or address must be notfied in
wrinng t0 “he Reqisrar: ank Group, Central Sqraare,
29 wellingion Sireet _eeds "5 40,

Key Dates
June Annuaal regul}s announced
- Paymen: of fourth internim dividend

Septemhel'___ Company's half-year end

- Annual gen=ral meaing -

o :zzf,'ment of flré_: HITc‘TlmﬂleEdehd
Decefr;ber —alf-yearly resu]:s announced
T i laymen: of second intenm dividend
Febl:{xary _ Paymen: of “hird mrerim dl"J]di—?l]d B
March Company's year end

Association of Investment Companies
1he Company s a member of the AC which
pubhshes stanstucal information in respec: of
member companies. The AC can ke conzaced on

Q720 7282 55585, engrames@thealc.couk or visit the websie:

www.theaic couk,

Electronic Communications from
the Company

Shareholders now have the oppormanny o be noafied by
emall when the Company's Annual Repor:, Zalf-Yearly
Repor: and other formal commurications are avallable
on the Company’'s website, insiead of recewving printed
coples by post. This has environmen:al benefizs in “he
reduction of paper. printiing. energy and water usage. as
well as reducing ¢osws 10 the Company.

fyou have no: already elected 0 receive elecironic
communicanions fraom the Company and wish 1o do o,
pleage contact the Requetrar,



Glossary

AIFM means the Alternative nvesimen: Fund Manager.

AIFMD means the Al:ernative nvestment “und Managers
Regulations 2075 (as amended by The Alternatuve
nvestmern: Tund Managers {Amendmen: et (U £x1%)
Requlations 20°9) and the Invesiment Junds Sourcebook
forming par: of the "CA Handbook,

ALMO means an arm's length managemens: organisauon,
a not-for-profit company tha: provides housing services
on kehalf of a local authonty.

Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) means a
financial measure of husroncal financial performance,
financial posiuon. or cash flows, other than a financial
measure defined or specified in the applicable financial
repornng framewaork.

Annual contracted rent roll means the annual
contractual renzal iIncome currently receivable on a
property asg at the 3alance Shee: date.

Approved Provider means Approved *roviders, local
authornties, ALMQOs, Communty Interes: Companies,
Regisiered Charities and other regulated organisations
directly or indirectly 1in receipt of payment from local or
central government including the NHS.

Care Provider means a provider of care services 1o the
occupants of Speciahs: Suppored —ousing, regisiered
with “he Care Qualizy Commission.

CIM means Civuas nves'ment Yanagemen: _imiied or
Cv {formerly known as Civitas cousing Adwvisors Limited
Jantl ite change of name on v May 20200,

Community Interest Company or CIC means a
company approved by the Office of the Regularor of
Community ‘nieres: Companiss as a commuanity iieres:
company and registered as such with Comparnles —ousea,

Company means Civitas Social “ousing 2L.C, a company
incorperated in =ngland and Wales with company
number 0402528

CMA Order means the 3:atitory Audit Services Order
2074 1s5ued by the Competntion and Marke's Authonty.

Current Leverage means the perceniage taken as otal
Lank borrowings drawn aver :otal assets

Dividend Yield means the ratio of gzl annual dividends
declared for *he financial year over market price per
share

EPRA means the ~uropean Jublic Real -gtate Associatian.

EPRA EPS 15 the -’34 earmings divided by the weighred
average number of shares inissue 1in the periad.

EPRA LTV 15 the ZPRA loan to value ratio calculated as
debt net of cash balances dwvided by the market valie
of property (including net recervables) as defined 1n the
EPRA Bes: Practice Guidelines.

EPRA Net Initial Yield (“EPRA NIY"™) s calculated as
~he annualised rental income based on the cash rents
passing at the halance sheet date less non-recoverakble
propery operating expenses, divided by the gross
marke: value of the property.

EPRA Net Reinstatement Value (“EPRA NRV™) 15 an
E3RA NAV metric which assumes tha: entimes never sell
asse's and aims to represern: the value required o rebuild
~he entity,

EPRA Net Tangible Assets (“EPRA NTA") 15 an “7RA
NAV me:Tic which assumes “ha® entities buy and sell
assets. thereby crystallising certain levels of unavoidable
deferred ax.

EPRA Net Disposal Value (“EPRA NDV™) 15 an EPRA

NAYV metmic which represents the shareholders’ value
under a disposal scenano, where deferred tax, financial
inszrumensts and certain other adjustments are calculared
+0 he full exen: of their habihty, net of any resulung tax.

Gross Asset Value mearns ‘ol asseis
Group means he Company and 118 subsidiaries,

Housing Association or HA meang an independent
society, body of trastees or company established for
~he purpose of providing low-cost soctal housing for
people in housing need generally on a nen-profit
making basis. Any rrading surplus s typically used o
maintain exisung homes and 0 help finance new ones.
Sousing Associanons are regulazed by the Reguiator of
Social mousing.

Investment Adviser means Crvitas investimen:
Managemen: amited {(*C. M"Y, a company incorporazed in
tngland and Wales with company number 10278444, 10 178
capacly asnves'men: adwviser to the Company

IPO means niual 2ubhe Offening
IRR meang internal rate of retam

Levered IRR means ~he mrernal rate of return imcluding
“he impac: of deb:.

Local Authority or LA means “he adrmimsrative bodies
for the iocal governmen: in zngland compnsing 376
adthornes (ncluding 22 ondon boroughs).
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Glossary
Continued

Net Asset Value or NAV means the ne: asset value of the
Group on the relevant date prepared in accordance with
(RS accounung principles.

Net Initial Yield means the ranio of ne: renzal income
and gross purchase price of a property,

NHS means the publicly funded healthcare system of
‘he United Xingdom compnsing The National Health
Service in “ngland, NHS Scotland, N3 Wales and Health
and Soaal Care in Northern reland, mncluding, for the
avolrdance of doubz, NHS Trusts.

NHS Trust means a legal encity, set up by order of the
Secretary of State under secuon 25 of, and Schedule 4 o,
the Natonal Eealth Service Act 2006, to provide goods
and services for the purposes of the health service

Ongoing Charges means ‘he figure published annually
by the Company which shows the drag on performance
caused by operancnal expenses. More specifically. it 1s
-he annual percentage reduction in shareholder returns
as a result of recarnng operational expenses assuming
markes remain static and the porfolic s not raded
Alzhovugh the Ongoing Charges figare 1s based on
hiszorical information. 12 provides shareholders with an
indication of the hikely level of costs “hat will be incarred
i managmg the Company in the future

Portfolic means the Group's porfolio of asses

Portfolio Valuation means an mdependen: valuation of
‘he Poriffolio by Jones ".ang _asalle .imited or such other
property adviser as the Directors may select from ume
o nme, baged upon the 2orifohio being held, directly or
indirec:ly, within a corporate vehicle or equivalen: enity
which 18 a2 wholly owned sub=idiary of the Company and
oherwise prepared m accordance with RICS "Red 3o0k”
guidelines.

REIT means a qualifying real es7a‘e INvesimen: ris: in
accordanae with the UX 22T Reqime incroduced by the
LU inance Act 2006 and subsegaenily re-wnten inio
2ar 2 of the Corporanon Tax Ao 20°C

RICS means Roval nerranon of Chareared Surveyors

RSH means "he 2agulator of Social Fousing, the
execunve non-departmen:al public body, sponsored
by the Minisiry of Fousing, Commiininies and Local
Governmens:, which 1s the regulazor for Social Homes
providers in Angland and Wales

Social homes or social housing means social renzed
homes and other accommodaton tha: are offered at
rents subsidised below marke: level or are consivaen:s
of other appropriate rent regimes such as exemp: ren:s
or are subjec: to bespoke agreement with entites such as
N=8 Trass and are provided by Approved Providers,

Specialist Supported Housing or SSH means soctal
housing which incorporates some form of care or other
ancillary service on the premises.

SPV means special purpose vehicle, a comorate vehicle
n which the Group's propernes are held.

Target Return means the farge: return on Invesimen:

Total Return means Ne: Total Return, being the change
In NAV over the relevan: perod plus dividend paid.

Total Shareholder Return means a2 measure of the
return based upon share price movemen: over the penod
plas dividend paid.

Valuation means an independen: valuauon of *he
Portiolio by Jones fang LaSalle amited or guch other
proper:y adwviger as the Direcrors may selec: from
me to ame prepared in accordance with R1C5 "ed
3o0k” guidelines and based upon a valuation of each
andearlying invesumen: property rather than the value
ascrnibed <o the portfoho and on the assumption of

a theaorencal sale of each property rather than “he
corporate eniies in which all of the Company's
invesimen: properties are held.

WAULT or “Weighted Average Unexpired Lease Term”
15 “he product of annual contracted rens roll at penod end
and “he 1men years 10 whan the lease explires for each
agiven lease. summed across leases, and “hen dinded by
~he o al annual contracted rens roll of he porrffoho. The
result s expressed in years. WAL T 15 a key measure of
“he qualty of the Caompany's porifolio Long lease terms
dnderpim che zecunsy of the Company's (ncome siraam,
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Alison Hadden
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Registered Office
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Alternative Investment Fund Manager

G10 Capital Limited
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Investment Adviser

Civitas Investment Management Limited
25 Maddox Sree:
London WS 2QN

Joint Corporate Brokers

Liberum Capital Limited
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25 Ropemaker Stree:
London ~CAY g

Panmure Gordon (UK) Limited
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London =C4M SAF

Company Secretary

Link Company Matters Limited
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65 Gresham Straet

London sC2V 7NQ

Administrator

Link Alternative Fund Administrators Limited
aroadwalk —ouse
Sourhernhay Wes:

wxeter X0 UIS

Depositary

INDOS Financial Limited
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54 Fenchurch Street
London 2C3M 3]V

Registrar

Link Group
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Independent Auditors
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Legal and Tax Adviser
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Buchanan
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London =C2V 6N

Tax Adviser

BDO LLP
55 Baker Siree:
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Civitas Social Housing PLC
“ink Company Maters Limited
5°h Sloor

65 Gresham 3rees

wondan AC2Y N0

T 020 3058 4840

E enquiries@civitasim.com

W wwwcivitasim.com




